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THEHBRXBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(BHEAEH K BEEETRENL)

(In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)

WA
EF

EF=

reEm (EE)(H23)

REFE(H73)

EBITDA(#77#3)

EBITDAGFI R (f17#3)
RRRIREEERF (EE) (F:23)
FFIE(F53)
FHEEBBRRE(H:23%4)
FHARR B R R B SR RE (M F3R5)

Revenue

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (loss) (Note 3)

Operating margin (Note 3)

EBITDA (Note 3)

EBITDA margin (Note 3)

Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 3)

Net profit margin (Note 3)

Return on average total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
(Note 3 and 5)

R4 RETEERRTER
BEAS (H#3)

BERB(NE3)

BERR(HE3)

#FE

FEHRAREHZ(R)(ME1)
BN & (R 80 (Hi£3)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (Note 3)

Total assets (Note 3)

Total liabilities (Note 3)

Inventories

Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)
Current ratio (times) (Note 3)

BB (EE) — EXCE)

Earnings (loss) per share — Basic (HK cents)

BRRECEM) Dividend per share (HK cents)
B L& Dividend payout ratio
mHRBRNEE (FiR) Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
m{ERRE Market capitalization
FRFITEE Stores as at year end
BEEE Direct-operated stores
CMEEGWE2) Franchised stores (Note 2) ...
ZIRPITT AR E Total stores worldwide
Hiat - Notes:
1. FREBAZFER S EMATFTIAFER A 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by number

m—EEBaEAE  MESFRREB(2016F K
ARTEFEE) « BB (CO1TERNRFE) RE=E
N A R I i)

2018 R Z AR 2 MF I R ARM B BH RS
HRIZE16EEEMIEL AR

REFEBRMEREENER AR MR EERER

PR IR FE AL TS B4R 4 M B A R0 R AR AR R R AR
eI P R

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= 5

W EBEAE R QA

of days in the year

2. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, Kuwait and
Qatar (prior to year 2015), Vietnam (prior to year 2017), and third-party
franchisees

3. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16
Leases are not reflected in the years in and prior to 2018

4. Profit after income taxes for the year divided by average of opening and
closing balance of total assets

5. Profit after income taxes for the year attributable to shareholders of the

Company divided by average of opening and closing balance of equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company
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THEHBREZBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

3,919 3,873 3,799 3,380 3,122 4,852 5,509 5,412 5,145 5,381

2,234 2,263 2,146 1,930 1,736 2,846 3,250 3,221 3,055 3,097
57.0% 58.4% 56.5% 57.1% 55.6% 58.7% 59.0% 59.5% 59.4% 57.6%
377 503 425 263 (105) 397 625 689 568 556
9.6% 13.0% 11.2% 7.8% -3.4% 8.2% 11.3% 12.7% 11.0% 10.3%
880 1,015 913 811 555 1,183 821 874 748 743
22.5% 26.2% 24.0% 24.0% 17.8% 24.4% 14.9% 16.1% 14.5% 13.8%
216 345 268 190 (112) 230 480 500 434 426
5.5% 8.9% 7.1% 5.6% -3.6% 4.7% 8.7% 9.2% 8.4% 7.9%
6.6% 9.9% 8.0% 5.2% -2.3% 6.2% 12.8% 13.5% 12.2% 11.5%
10.3% 15.3% 11.4% 7.8% -4.4% 8.5% 16.8% 17.5% 15.2% 14.5%
810 905 948 875 1,104 994 1,017 1,167 1,095 1,076
558 639 890 960 916 714 1,465 1,626 1,410 1,405
3,766 3,856 4,008 4,208 4,383 5,196 4,124 4,322 4,114 3,847
1,646 1,544 1,486 1,645 1,752 2,349 1,115 1,181 1,147 881
508 474 612 606 434 548 552 524 447 491
110 108 135 153 115 100 89 87 78 78
1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.9
13.40 21.60 17.00 12.00 (7.10) 14.60 30.50 31.80 27.70 27.10

14.00 30.50 23.50 16.50 10.00 14.60 33.50 35.00 27.50 27.00
104.5% 141.3% 138.2% 187.5% TiEANA 100.0% 109.8% 110.1% 99.3% 99.6%
1,616,175 1,613,417 1,579,817 1,578,937 1,577,631 1,578,501 1,578,501 1,570,631 1,570,953 1,570,395
2,715 4,259 2,733 2,353 1,798 3,709 5,840 6,534 6,582 5,701

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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THE CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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The past year has presented significant challenges for the apparel
sector, shaped by evolving consumer expectations, shifting
spending patterns and macro-economic uncertainty. Adapting
to this rapidly changing landscape requires resilience, a renewed
focus on Giordano’s core strengths and a steadfast commitment
to our long-term vision.

In April 2024, the management team entered a new chapter with
Mr. Colin CURRIE joining as the CEO of Giordano. Since then,
under his leadership, the team has worked diligently towards
transforming and laying the foundations for Giordano to become
a growth company, and to create more value for shareholders.

Our ‘Beyond Boundaries’ five-year strategy provides a
comprehensive roadmap for resetting, revitalising, recalibrating,
and reconnecting every facet of Giordano’s business. This
strategy embodies our commitment to innovation, driving
efficiency, and fostering deeper engagement with our valued
customers. Despite a challenging economic climate and the
complexities of internal changes, our ability to adapt and leverage
our diversified market presence has effectively mitigated risks
and released promising, emerging opportunities. In this new
chapter, Giordano is also refining its brand identity and solidifying
its position within the competitive fashion apparel industry, while
continuing to innovate, adapt, and strive for growth.

The Board of Directors fully supports the strategic direction set
by Colin and his team. His leadership has been instrumental not
only in driving this transformation, but also in fostering a dynamic
culture of ‘One team, One Giordano’ and embedding operational
excellence and customer-centricity at every level.

We recognise the importance of strong leadership in navigating
periods of change and we believe that Colin’s vision and
expertise are essential to Giordano’s future success. The Board
remains committed to providing the team with its unwavering
support and strategic guidance required to implement these
critical initiatives.
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TEHRESE
THE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Moving forward, Giordano will maintain a sharp focus on the
opportunities that lie ahead. Creating long-term value for
our shareholders remains a top priority, and we believe that
a disciplined approach to investment and a commitment to
operational excellence will drive sustainable returns. This
strategic vision, combined with the team’s commitment and
dedication, is key to unlocking future success.

Finally, | would like to extend my sincere appreciation to our
shareholders for their continued trust and support during this
important period of transformation. Your belief in our vision is
invaluable and serves as a source of motivation for the entire
Giordano team. | would also like to extend my heartfelt thanks
to our dedicated employees and valued partners for their
professionalism, continued support and tireless efforts. Together,
we will build a future of sustainable growth and shared prosperity.

TSANG On Yip, Patrick
Chairman and Non-executive Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Since joining Giordano nearly a year ago, | have been deeply
impressed by the resilience of this remarkable company, and
the potential that it holds. As | have mentioned previously, | am
greatly honoured and privileged to be the CEO of this household
brand that is loved not just in Hong Kong, but also in different
markets around the world.

When | onboarded last April, it was clear that our business was
facing significant challenges. There had been a gradual decline in
our business since 2013 due to a lack of investment in the brand
and products, as well as the deprioritisation of the Greater China
market. However, thanks to the strength of our brand, the loyalty
of our customers, and the dedication of our team, we seized
the opportunity to begin our transformation — refocusing on the
core of our business: designing, developing, sourcing and selling
exceptional products.

This mission culminated in our ‘Beyond Boundaries’ 5-year
strategy, created to steer our strategic direction and reposition
and transform Giordano into a growth company.

This transformation journey began soon after | joined. From
having limited success in terms of sales growth, where we
suffered a 3.4% decrease in the first half of 2024, we began to
see positive growth through the implementation of our Quick Win
initiatives launched in May. This led to a 5.9% growth in revenue
in the second half of 2024. During this period, we meticulously
reorganised our structure and brought in the leadership
needed across functions, including design, product, retail and
e-commerce. This allowed us to focus once again on our go-to-
market strategy and, most importantly, to take a more consumer-
centric approach.

Our vision for Giordano is encapsulated in our ambitious strategy,
‘Beyond Boundaries’, a roadmap built on the pillars of consumer
centricity that focus on four strategic choices:

1.  Simplifying our brand portfolio and attracting new
consumers;

2. Taking a digital-first approach to connect with our

consumers, while also accelerating our e-commerce
business across different markets;

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #
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3. Winning in Greater China and identifying Mainland China
as our must-win battlefield. This enormous market, along
with our home market of Hong Kong, presents our greatest
growth opportunity, which is crucial for the success of our
brand; and

4. Implementing ‘One Giordano’, which creates one team
with shared talent and resources to enable Giordano to
work together in an integrated manner, driving greater
efficiencies.

This comprehensive approach is designed to transform Giordano
into a dynamic growth company, allow us to reclaim our position
as one of the best Asian apparel brands and drive sustainable
long-term success.

Since the introduction of ‘Beyond Boundaries’, and with the full
support of our management team, Giordano has found a renewed
commitment to excellence. Once again, our emphasis on quality,
customer service, and brand integrity is guiding our strategic
decisions. Our dedication to these principles also ensures that we
stay true to our core values as we adapt and transform to meet
the evolving needs of our customers.

Excellence is not a destination, but a continuous journey.
It is about consistently delivering value to our customers,
shareholders, and stakeholders. Giordano is a brand that is all
about people, who are the driving forces behind our success.
We have a very diverse workforce with a culture of passion, a
can-do attitude, and a winning mentality that is unlike anything
| have experienced before. In other words, our people are our
most important asset and they are our “secret sauce” that will
enable us to be successful and achieve our ‘Beyond Boundaries’
objectives.

| would also like to extend my gratitude to the Board of Directors
for their incredible support towards this new strategic direction
we have set forth. Their confidence in the management team
and our vision has been instrumental in driving the Company’s
transformation, providing the necessary foundation upon which
we will execute our strategic initiatives effectively and with
conviction.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Looking ahead, ‘Beyond Boundaries’ provides a clear path
forward, with a focus on innovation, market expansion, and
operational excellence. | am confident that Giordano is now well-
positioned to navigate the challenges and opportunities that lie
ahead.

In closing, | would like to express my deepest gratitude to the
Giordano team for their commitment and hard work, and to
our shareholders for their unwavering support and confidence
in Giordano. Your trust in our vision and strategy is invaluable.
| would also like to thank our loyal business partners for their
support. Together, we are building a future of sustained growth
and success where we can take Giordano to become one of the
leading apparel brands in Asia.

Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
POSITION

Unless otherwise stated, the following commentaries refer to the
year-on-year (“YOY”) comparison for the years ended December
31, 2024, and 2023.

OVERVIEW

° The Group achieved a notable 1.2% increase in revenue for
the full year, driven by a robust sales rebound of 5.9% in the
second half. On a constant exchange rate basis, revenue
was up by 3.2% for the full year, fueled by improved
performances in Southeast Asia and Australia (“SEA”) and
the Gulf Cooperation Council (“GCC”) regions, as well
as the online business in Mainland China. This growth
underscores the effectiveness of our Quick Win strategic
initiatives implemented in May and our ability to adapt to
market dynamics.

° The Group’s gross profit margin declined by 1.4 percentage
points to 57.0%, partly due to a shift in channel mix, with
a higher contribution from the online business, which
typically has a lower gross profit margin compared to offline
channels, and from the additional strategic stock clearance
of aged inventories built up from previous years. Despite
this, our future pricing strategy between different channels
will balance the revenue growth and gross margin, which
aligns with our omni-channel strategy.

° Operating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased
to 48.7% (20283: 47.2%), mainly driven by non-recurring
expenses in the first half due to the corporate exercise
held in the early second quarter and the resulting
severance package to the Group’s former CEO. That
said, the operating expense ratio in the second half
remained stable as compared to the previous year, despite
investments undertaken in association with the Company’s
‘Beyond Boundaries’ 5-year business transformation
strategy, reflecting our disciplined approach to expense
management.

° The net profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company was HK$216 million (2023: HK$345 million). This
decline was primarily due to the non-recurring expenses
incurred in 2024, which took place mainly in the first half
and which were already reflected in the interim results,
a substantial reduction in shared profit from the South
Korean joint venture and the underperformance of Greater
China, coupled with the increased operating expenses
associated with the Company’s ‘Beyond Boundaries’
5-year transformation program. Despite these challenges,
our strategic investments are positioning us to become a
growth company as we enter the first year of our ‘Beyond
Boundaries’ 5-year strategy in 2025.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Group’s inventory balance closed at HK$508 million
(2023: HK$474 million), with inventory turnover on cost
(ITOC) at 110 days (2023: 108 days). This demonstrates
our effective inventory management practices, ensuring a
healthy inventory situation year on year.

Cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, were HK$810
million (2023: HK$905 million). The decrease was primarily
due to the profit decline on the back of higher non-recurring
expenses YOY. Nevertheless, our financial position remains
robust, providing a solid foundation for future growth.

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend
of 6.0 HK cents per share. If approved, the final dividend
payable will amount to approximately HK$97 million,
reflecting our commitment to returning value to shareholders
while balancing investment in growth opportunities.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

R AXEEREXESE Table 1: Group results of operations
TN HBA
Bl B BE
(UEEETAENL)  (In HKS million) 2024 % to revenue 2023 % to revenue Change
KEEBA Group revenue' 3,919 100.0% 3,878 100.0% 1.2%
EF Gross profit 2,234 57.0% 2,263 58.4% (1.3%)
Hi A\ R E MUz - Other income and other gains,

#E net 52 1.3% 68 1.8% (23.5%)
KEER Operating expense (1,909) (48.7%) (1,828) (47.2%) 4.4%
=gl Operating profit 377 9.6% 503 13.0% (25.0%)
ElE—FA%DRNEH  Share of profit of a joint venture 20 0.5% 45 1.2% (55.6%)
MEER Finance expense (46) (1.2%) (40) (1.0%) 15.0%
FnigHt Income taxes (99) (2.5%) (119 (3.1%) (16.8%)
JEEHI R R Profit after income tax attributable

BRETEHEIRA to non-controlling interests (36) (0.9%) (44) (1.2%) (18.2%)
REREERETERE  Profit after income tax attributable

ikl to shareholders 216 5.5% 345 8.9% (37.4%)
RNEE i E 5 Group same-store sales? 2,858 2,793 2.3%
SR M HER Global brand sales 4,580 4,607 (0.6%)
2RMEEH? Global brand gross profit? 2,818 2,871 (1.8%)
EXRBLREITET  Cash and bank balances,

ek net of bank loans at year-end 810 905 (10.5%)
FXREFE Inventories at year-end 508 474 7.2%
BEHKARERS:  Inventory turnover on cost, days 110 108 2
ERFIMEE Stores at year-end 1,732 1,822 (90)
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Revenue and gross profit

The Group achieved full-year revenue growth of 1.2%,
underscored by a strong 5.9% sales rebound in the second half.
Despite a 3.4% decline in revenue during the first half, the second
half saw a significant recovery, fulfilling our ambition to achieve
growth in the latter part of the year and ultimately resulting in
a 1.2% revenue growth for the fiscal year, and despite the flat
year-on-year (“YOY”) revenue performance outlook for FY2024
given in the first half. On a constant exchange rate basis, full-year
revenue increased by 3.2%, driven by improved performances in
the Southeast Asia and Australia (“*SEA”) and Gulf Cooperation
Council (“GCC”) regions, as well as robust growth in the Mainland
China online business. Same-store sales also increased by 2.3%
YQY driven by a positive growth of 6.4% in same-store sales in
the second half, as compared to a 1.4% decline in the first half.
This growth underscores the effectiveness of our strategic Quick
Win initiatives, which were highlighted in our interim results and
implemented in May. These initiatives focus back on the core of
our business; that is, store operations improvement, e-commerce
acceleration, product allocation, storytelling and inventory
management.

Specifically, Greater China’s YOY sales were down by 0.8%
on the back of an 8.3% decline in the first half, reflecting the
challenging market environment. In contrast, the SEA region
achieved a 2.5% YOY positive growth, and the GCC region
experienced an increase of 3.3% YOY. Notably, all key markets
grew faster in the second half by 5.9%, as compared to the 3.4%
decrease in the first half. The revenue improvement in the second
half was the result of several Quick Win initiatives, including
targeted marketing campaigns, enhanced product offerings, retail
operations improvements, and acceleration of the e-commerce
business.

Group retail revenue was up by 1.4% (3.6% on a constant
exchange rate basis), with both figures resulting in a positive
growth of 5.6% in the second half. Offline sales managed to
catch up with last year’s performance, driven by improved
product assortment in stores and a well-executed launch plan
for new products. This strategic focus on enhancing the in-store
experience and optimizing the product mix helped mitigate the
earlier declines and drive increased foot traffic back to our stores.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Online sales reported a significant growth of 11.3%, up 22.4%
in the second half as compared to 0.9% decline in the first half,
driven by the e-commerce Quick Win initiatives in Mainland
China across various platforms for key promotions such as the
Double Eleven sale. Targeted digital marketing efforts, improved
user experience on our e-commerce platforms, and strategic
collaborations with major online marketplaces supported this
growth. Despite the strong performance in Mainland China,
the size of our online business outside this region remained
relatively small, contributing to only 19.9% of the total online
revenue. However, the completion of the API integration with
most third-party platforms in the second half is expected to
further accelerate online business growth in other markets. This
integration will enhance our ability to leverage data analytics,
improve inventory management, and offer our customers a more
seamless shopping experience across different regions.

Wholesale channels experienced a slight drop of 0.7%, primarily
dragged by lower wholesale volumes in Mainland China due to a
reduced number of franchised stores. This decline was partially
offset by strategic efforts to streamline operations and focus
on key accounts. In contrast, wholesale to overseas markets
achieved a 6.4% growth, driven by strong demand in regions
such as the Philippines and South Korea. This positive trend
in overseas markets is expected to continue into 2025, barring
any unexpected macroeconomic issues. Our commitment to
building strong relationships with key franchisees and licensees,
expanding our product range, and enhancing our supply
chain efficiency has positioned us well to capitalize on growth
opportunities in these markets.
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x®2: WKWADH Table 2: Revenue analysis
B 1) 2E
(UBEETAEN)  (In HKS million) 2024 Contribution 2023  Contribution Change
Kehz Greater China 1,714 43.7% 1,727 44.6% (0.8%)
R RN Southeast Asia and Australia 1,508 38.5% 1,471 38.0% 2.5%
BEMAAEZRA!E  Gulf Cooperation
ZE@ Council 697 17.8% 675 17.4% 3.3%
BmigEo2AEE  Group revenue by
KA market 3,919 100.0% 3,873 100.0% 1.2%
AN Offline 2,976 76.0% 2,980 77.0% (0.1%)
m ¥R Online 523 13.3% 470 12.1% 11.3%
TE Retail 3,499 89.3% 3,450 89.1% 1.4%
EIMNEBRE 2 HE  Wholesale to overseas
franchisees 301 7.7% 283 7.3% 6.4%
E il ElNps i ] Wholesale to franchisees in
ZHLE Mainland China 119 3.0% 140 3.6% (15.0%)
INERTE 2 #h 3 Wholesale to franchisees 420 10.7% 423 10.9% (0.7%)
BEEES2AEE  Group revenue by
WA channel 3,919 100.0% 3,873 100.0% 1.2%

AEER2024 M EEHNENETE14EEH
DEEST.0% o % NEMI S RERREHRSE
) FEXEBRIETEER T EREENER -
MELR TREMAL R EEBFHENE—RKER
K o AN RETEIETHRBUERERES
BT ETEEBENE - EEmMHELPkE
BB ENEERBHAZEENTFEIREREEN
WAIERFMEFE - IS HMIHOBEREEB

el
1= o

At - B EFEFEE1.3%NERIREF
BIE - W EFFHRFNIA%RKIERNE -
HHEDHER TYFHERRFRYIER
59% BT EFNENKIE - < THEFER
EIN0.6% - ERET LMAEENTE - B85
BEINR FHHE KRB MM FEFIREE
LEAEPBEAM o R 5L EM AR K
BfFZEeE - XERAMNTHISREME
ERNmEER - EFNRERGHEYRE - BER
PEERLCEE AFINSHBEEmROHE
& EEMENRBERBTMNERRZE
5 o
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Group’s gross profit margin decreased by 1.4 percentage points
to 57.0% for FY2024. This decline was partially attributed to a
shift in channel mix, with the online business contributing more
significant growth as planned, which generally has a lower gross
profit margin compared to offline channels. Additionally, the
planned strategic clearance of aged inventories from previous
years also affected the overall gross margin. Despite these
challenges, our future pricing strategy will focus on balancing
revenue growth and gross margin across different channels, in
alignment with our overall strategic objectives.

As a result, our full-year gross profit recorded a slight decrease
of 1.3% YQY, improving from the 3.1% decline reported in the
first half. This improvement was driven by a strong 5.9% YOY
sales growth in the second half, which offset the decline in gross
profit margin, and resulted in a 0.6% increase in the second-half
gross profit. This underscores the impact of the aforementioned
factors, including the increased focus on online sales and
strategic inventory clearance strategies, especially in Mainland
China. In the SEA and GCC regions, gross margins remained
relatively stable, benefiting from favourable market conditions and
better brand positioning. These regions’ performance highlights
the potential for margin improvement as we continue to optimize
our operations and focus on higher-margin product offerings.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Table 3: Gross profit analysis

20235 EXp5¥E 2024
iR ERBA EE Currency e
2023 Product Selling HE Hft  translation 2024
(UBEFTAEN) (I HKS millon) gross profit costs prices Volume Miscellaneous difference ~ gross profit
RARREN Southeast Asia and Australia 883 (43) 38 28 2 (25) 883
BEMNEERAE  Gulf Cooperation
%289 Counci 429 6 (1) 16 (1) ?) 447
PR Mainland China 320 - (34) 21 (1) 6) 300
RE Taiwan 277 (10) 14 (8) - 9) 264
BERRM Hong Kong and Macau 285 1 (60) 36 - - 262
msla Market mix - 6 (10) 4 - - -
BERAH Retail and distribution 2,194 (40) (53) 97 - 42) 2,156
EMEBE/HBRAE Wholesale to overseas
L franchisees/subsidiaries 69 78
r5E Group 2,263 2,234

HW AR - FHE

H WA N E s B IR R R - R
A FBIA - e WA~ BRFRERE E =
7o AR EEZREA TR SWA
W T T 5 R

REeBRARKEERN

2024 F X EBAM W AR D LI E48.7%
(20234 : 47.2%) - WHEEFERR EFFHA
RAEVRB RS MEEMNELCEURAST - Uk E
ANABRFEGREER B — [ E i R R
FAMEEIMEEBRATS - BE @Y E ek
TH+FNELEERLXTEBEFRETDREE
F o REEHRMEEZNFAIEESE - ARG
ZEFNHELE R X E20197E A 7% 5 7% 8 78
MBI ER @ &EERIEM -

E Lt - AEBE L E RN TEK25.0%E3.771&
BIL KB EEI.6% o R B EE
Fril MFELEMIBER - AR AR ERE SO
B HAKLRFETKI5.8%  BEME
AEEEMABENRRDENDBERALERS
MR & EWE o
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Other income and other gains, net

Other income and other gains included royalties, licensing fees,
interest, rental income, government assistance, and exchange
differences. The decrease in other income was mainly due to the
reduction in interest income and exchange differences.

Operating expenses and operating profit

The operating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased
to 48.7% for 2024 (2023: 47.2%). This increase was mainly
driven by non-recurring expenses incurred in the first half of
the year due to a corporate resolution exercise, as well as the
additional operating expenses associated with the Company’s
5-year business strategy transformation program — ‘Beyond
Boundaries’. Despite these challenges, the operating expense
ratio in the second half remained stable compared to the
previous year, reflecting our disciplined approach to expense
management. The absence of last year’s rental concessions and
government reliefs related to COVID-19 also contributed to the
increase in operating expenses.

As a result, the Group’s operating profit was down by 25.0%
to HK$377 million, with an operating margin of 9.6%. However,
if the unusual items referred to in the previous paragraph were
excluded, the underlying operating profit would only have
dropped by 15.8% due to the challenges in Greater China.
Overall, the Group remains committed to optimizing our cost
structure and improving our operating efficiency as we move
forward.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #



EERB WAL R DM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEEEHEYE  HKBERBEZER
=]

BIEE B S LR FI6ENRT - AEBRK
FEMFRAEEEREYE - S REBIELR
EREFEEL008E T -

MmEEH
mEEREINE4,6008 %5 T(20234F : 4,000
BAEL) TEHREEABMNHEENEE S -

IR R BB AL BR AT & B &0 R

AR B R B B TS R 1% 0m A ([ B R P
A1) BE2.161E8E T (20234 : 34588 TT) o
BB BB F R A EIWHEE55% (2023 F
8.9%) °

RAENLEANRADARTTMAE - BBCEEE
EMISNRAFERS - APINEERLAF
IRE R TSR - MERBESHN AR ERE
BRERD  SHBMEEN TR - &z E 3
JEIEZ B2 ARIMNER - @E WL - REKRFE
D RBENNAERAEREEMHENGFE
BERRE -

FERMBNENNFEEEERBREQT]
Rgm®) - HETTRARMNERTENERT
FEBRBBLASNBANFAS - FRBLR
EEMEREEE RPN REREHEER  HHE
RFIE 0 T AR AN 518 o

BE T E LB RPN REERTR
PIRSRES VG MG - W [ RR I AR
B - EREPIARENRAXER  YFEINE
HIR R - REFIRKREFBE N IR B E R 4F
HERE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

Net impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant, and equipment

The Group made a net impairment provision of HK$4 million for
the right-of-use assets and property, plant, and equipment for the
year based on Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36.

Finance expense

The finance expense increased to HK$46 million (2023: HK$40
million), mainly due to higher imputed interest on lease liabilities.

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the
Company (“PATS”) was HK$216 million (2023: HK$345 million).
This decline led to a net margin contraction to 5.5% (2023:
8.9%).

The economic conditions in Greater China remained challenging,
leading to a continued weaker performance in this key market.
Our South Korean joint venture also faced economic headwinds
together with YOY reduction in fair-value gain of Korean Bonds,
which reduced its profitability and, consequently, our share of
profit from this venture. That said, the profit contribution from
SEA and GCC markets remained stable.

The unusual items affected our profitability included expenses
related to the corporate resolution exercise, the severance
payments to our former CEO, and the implementation of our 5-
year business strategy transformation program. While crucial
for our long-term growth, these strategic initiatives temporarily
increased our cost structure.

Despite these challenges, we remain committed to continuing
executing our strategic initiatives as we embark on our ‘Beyond
Boundaries’ 5-year strategy that ensures we have a disciplined
approach to expense management and focus on long-term
growth which will in turn position us well for future improvements
in profitability.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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R4 RREMLGFES Table 4: Changes in PATS

(X BFEETAENMN) (In HK$ million)

2023 F R R FEAG % F 2023 PATS 345
BEMNNEHRREELZES Gulf Cooperation Council 11
=D Taiwan (3)
B g8 BRI Southeast Asia and Australia (22)
2L South Korea (24)
B8 KR Hong Kong and Macau (25)
B A3, Mainland China (41)
$BININEER B A R 2 #E B Wholesale to overseas franchisees/subsidiaries 15
BRAEER MEER - FIGEHEK Headquarter expenses, finance expense, income

FEFE G R R taxes and non-controlling interests (35)
%t 57 FE 1k 35 I 42 B Changes in PATS (124)
E@EEﬁ#ﬁZZOMﬁHﬁ?E{E%ﬂ 2024 PATS, at constant exchange rates 221

E¥MmEEE Currency translation difference (5)
2024 F R R B A5 g A 2024 PATS 216

™% DA MARKET ANALYSIS

J/X—Fnﬁlz/(%i‘@f‘f%t’jﬁﬁ WA ZLBITA  The following comments are in local currencies, or, if in HK$

B BREFEXRGE - UMBEEBREN®  terms, are at constant exchange rates to remove distortions from

WMRFTEE 2 - the translation of financial statements.

R E Greater China

R5: KPEZRABHANEF Table 5: Greater China profit before income taxes
10N HIA
Bl Anth

(U BEETAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at % to % to BE

B FIERBE constant exchange rates) 2024 revenue 2023 revenue Change
WA Revenue 1,482 100.0% 1,484 100.0% (0.1%)
E 7 Gross profit 841 56.7% 882 59.4% (4.6%)
H AR A R E Ath Other income and other gains,

Wz - FHE net 13 0.9% 14 1.0% (7.1%)
BB Operating expense (812) (54.8%) (785) (52.9%) 3.4%
R A Operating profit 42 2.8% 111 7.5% (62.2%)
WmEEH Finance expense (10) (0.7%) (6) (0.4%) 66.7%
BR TS5 B & A Profit before income taxes 32 2.1% 105 7.1% (69.5%)
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Hong Kong and Macau

The performance in the Hong Kong and Macau markets mirrored
the trends observed in the first half of the year. Sales reported
a low-single-digit decline year-over-year, primarily driven by the
continued trend of consumers shifting their spending northbound
to Mainland China and the absence of government consumption
vouchers, which had previously contributed to a one-time surge
in spending.

The profitability in these markets was notably impacted by several
factors. The post-COVID-19 period saw rental costs normalizing
to pre-COVID levels, which has increased our operating
expenses. Additionally, the need to clear aged merchandise from
previous years led to a reduced gross margin, further affecting
our profitability.

Despite these challenges, we observed some positive
developments towards the latter part of the year. The
implementation of our Quick Win initiatives in May continued to
show promise. These initiatives focused on store operations,
and turnaround through better merchandising and buying. These
strategies ensure the improved availability of bestsellers and
enhanced storytelling at points-of-sale, helping to drive traffic,
customer engagement and sales.

Looking ahead, we are optimistic about the potential for sales
and gross margin improvement. The launch of new merchandise,
supported by our storytelling efforts, and focus on improved retail
operations are expected to resonate well with consumers and
drive better performance in the future. It should be noted that in
December all stores in Hong Kong and Macau were profitable.

Mainland China

Our performance in Mainland China showed signs of recovery,
driven primarily by a strong rebound in online business during
the second half of the year of 9.7%. In comparison, the first
half reported a revenue drop of 6.6%. The full-year revenue
successfully swung the overall Mainland China business to a mild
growth of 1.5%. This positive turnaround was aligned with the
Quick Win initiatives implemented, which focused on accelerating
our online business across various channels.

As a result of these efforts, the contribution of online sales to our
overall business increased significantly, reaching 63% compared
to 55% in 2023. This shift underscores the growing importance of
our online presence in Mainland China. However, the increased
focus on online channels, coupled with planned discounting
strategies to flush out aged inventory and the build-up of slow-
moving merchandise, led to a lower gross profit margin overall.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Conversely, our offline business continues to face challenges.
The significant decline in offline sales earlier in the year, driven by
high-aged inventory and diminished brand perception highlighted
the need for substantial efforts to rebuild growth momentum.
The de-prioritization and the lack of brand investment in previous
periods have necessitated a more focused and strategic
approach to revitalizing our offline presence. As outlined in our
‘Beyond Boundaries’ 5-year strategy, we will concentrate on
developing the business in the Southern region first, leveraging
existing brand awareness and ensuring operating efficiencies.
Once successful, we plan to adopt the model in other regions
across Mainland China as we invest in the brand and products.
Despite these efforts, the overall profitability in Mainland China
has been impacted by the change in channel mix business
leading to a lower gross profit and higher operating expenses
associated with the online business. Consequently, coupled with
the continued loss of our offline business we reported a loss for
the year in this market.

Looking forward, Mainland China remains a “must-win” battlefield
according to our five-year strategic plan. We are committed to
resetting, recalibrating, and revitalizing our business back to
profitability in both channels in this crucial market to drive the
Group’s long-term growth.

Taiwan

The Taiwanese market demonstrated resilience despite
ongoing economic uncertainties. In the first half of the year, we
experienced a mid-single-digit decline in sales, reflecting the
challenges posed by the uncertain economic climate. However,
the second half of the year saw a notable recovery, with sales
reporting a mid-single-digit growth, as compared to a 4.4%
decline in the first half, as a result of the implementation of our
Quick Win initiatives in May.

This rebound in the latter half of the year enabled us to catch up
to the previous year’s revenue figure, achieving a stable sales
performance YQOY. The resilience and strong performance of
our sub-brands, such as BSX and Giordano Ladies, played a
crucial role in moderating the overall profit decline and driving the
recovery in sales.

Looking forward, we remain cautiously optimistic about the
Taiwanese market. We will continue to monitor the economic
situation closely and adapt our strategies as needed to maintain
our market position and support long-term growth in Taiwan.
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Table 6: Greater China revenue and store count

EXMmEA
Stores at year-end
KA MEE HER agy
Revenue Franchised Direct operated Total
(UEEETAEN (In HK$ million, translated at HE

HETEELE constant exchange rates) 2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
HER Mainland China 674 664 1.5% 294 343 107 143 401 486
=y Taiwan 442 440 0.5% - - 167 168 167 168
BEREM Hong Kong and Macau 366 380  (3.7%) - - 4 41 4 41
gy Total 1,482 1484  (0.1%) 294 343 315 352 609 695

BIERME  APENKRRZIBEFELER
ZHBEAMEB AN BEHER M mERED
RFIEZE  BREARERMIER - RFAH
[EBHRR I AFAE B RPEN RERE
EiplE - JAVRAEETSAREEZM
WHENORNEE ERELEBREETS - AR
FLEREREEMRNES

RERE - LA EEA S E IR - AN
BMmIEIRE NEERRANECFEEE -
EESHFARARREEPTEEORE - X
SEMBHSHNAFEEREFREMNER -

SRFg Rz} BN
RT  REFEERRIN 2 BR PTG B A A

In summary, the performance in Greater China has been
impacted by the former deprioritization of the business in
Mainland China and previous underinvestment in products and
the brand, leading to unsatisfactory results in the region. Again,
our ‘Beyond Boundaries’ 5-year plan has identified Greater China
as a key geographic focus to grow. Recognizing the strategic
importance of this market, we are dedicated to resetting,
recalibrating and revitalizing this market and deploying more
resources to grow the business in this region.

Moving forward, we will implement targeted initiatives to enhance
brand investment, improve store performance, and optimize
inventory management. These efforts are expected to address
the challenges faced in the past and set a solid foundation for
sustainable growth in this must-win market.

Southeast Asia and Australia

Table 7: Southeast Asia and Australia profit before
income taxes

A BHA
BAL Bt
(U BEFETAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at % to % to B

HEFEXRBRE constant exchange rates) 2024 revenue 2023 revenue Change
WA Revenue 1,555 100.0% 1,471 100.0% 5.7%
EH) Gross profit 908 58.4% 883 60.0% 2.8%
H A YA R E At Other income and other gains,

Wz - FER net 6 0.4% 19 1.3% (68.4%)
KEER Operating expense (665) (42.8%) (631) (42.9%) 5.4%
1A Operating profit 249 16.0% 271 18.4% (8.1%)
mEEH Finance expense (22) (1.4%) (1) (1.4%) 4.8%
bR TS TR 4 A Profit before income taxes 227 14.6% 250 17.0% (9.2%)
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Our business in the region is stable in terms of revenue and
profitability. Indonesia continued to be the largest contributor in
the region, demonstrating robust sales growth for both Giordano
and non-Giordano brands supported by effective local marketing
initiatives. Throughout the year, we have undertaken brand
reshuffling efforts to streamline the non-Giordano business, and
we anticipate higher contributions from the Giordano brand going
forward. This strategic adjustment is expected to enhance our
market position of Giordano and drive further growth in this key
market.

Overall, the region has demonstrated revenue growth
opportunities, with efforts to implement Quick Win initiatives,
including optimizing brand performance, improving brand
performance and addressing market-specific challenges. We
remain optimistic about the future prospects in Southeast
Asia and Australia and are devoted to leveraging our strategic
initiatives to drive continued growth and profitability in these
markets.

EX8  HEEOREMNZWARM TS Table 8: Southeast Asia and Australia revenue and
store count
A FXRMTHAE
Revenue Stores at year-end
(U BE#ETAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at BE
HEFEFRRE constant exchange rates) 2024 2023 Change 2024 2023

Efe Indonesia 805 739 8.9% 210 238
RE Thailand 278 272 2.2% 155 156
GIIEd Singapore 210 195 7.7% 31 30
BRAD Malaysia 159 164 (3.0%) 86 88
e Vietnam 77 75 2.7% 30 44
M Australia 22 20 10.0% 5 6
RIHE Cambodia 4 6 (33.3%) 2 3
By Total 1,555 1,471 5.7% 519 565

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Gulf Cooperation Council

B
R BEMNRPEREEZELE2HKRFT Table 9: The Gulf Cooperation Council profit before
income taxes and store count

EA faRA
B AL
(U GEETAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at % to % to BE

HEFEFRRE constant exchange rates) 2024 revenue 2023 revenue Change
WA Revenue 699 100.0% 675 100.0% 3.6%
EH Gross profit 449 64.2% 429 63.6% 4.7%
E AW A R E At Other income and other gains,

Wozs - FER net 5 0.7% 6 0.9% (16.7%)
KEBR Operating expense (313) (44.8%) (305) (45.2%) 2.6%
ST Operating profit 141 20.1% 130 19.3% 8.5%
BEEMH Finance expense (16) (2.3%) (13) (1.9%) 23.1%
bR FT SR AL A Profit before income taxes 125 17.9% 117 17.4% 6.8%
NS Franchised stores 44 40 4
B Direct-operated stores 139 138 1
FARFMEE Stores at year-end 183 178 5

EEEEMNARRAEEEemE Mg The GCC region achieved positive revenue growth and has

ARBER - tEROBANREGERER - A
RIREB LB - EERMHESEMNAR
MISEHENTE T - WA KRB EENHIRFH

= o

=

BEER > BMBESEMEI ME SR E
TS RIEEUSKY - REEEEMHIERS
BRELER - SEMNNAERAIFRE S
BRRAEENEIEGENRR - BIFFEER
YT R 55 Ll SRS 4 45 A — AR T R FIEN T
ST ©
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demonstrated a business uptrend, despite intense geopolitical
tensions in the area. Both revenue and profitability have improved
YOY, driven by enhanced product availability and effective
marketing campaigns.

Our commitment to driving product innovation and tailored
marketing strategies has proven successful, contributing to the
overall growth in this vital market. The GCC continues to be a key
profit driver for the Group, and we remain focused on leveraging
these strategies to sustain and further enhance our market
position.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FRE(—-HEBEYEEERERE2HEA
48.5% EZMNEE A T)
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South Korea (a 48.5% joint venture under an
independent management team)

Table 10: South Korea’s share of net profit and store
count

EA EBA

BatE AL
% to % to H#E
(UG EEEAEN) (In Korean Won million) 2024 revenue 2023 revenue Change
WA Revenue 147,825 100.0% 169,703 100.0% (12.9%)
EH Gross profit 77,826 52.6% 88,873 52.4% (12.4%)
F o Al Net profit 7,356 5.0% 15,709 9.3% (53.2%)
FEAG F )8 7 Share of net profit 3,571 7,619 (53.1%)
FREAMHE Stores at year-end 123 120 3

BAIDIEREERAE R BHEFIRFE AR T
TEDEEAMERE - DHBRBETREEE
PR SS N M EHEFEB(L - URBRESRD
RRrEdaERd

RHEINE - HERFENBSEEMRRERFIER
BHIHGHRE - R > ARRMEERFEEN
T35 & SH 18 177 T 7 52 KA aa i A1 A 3K H) 2K
AL RES - HAIHRARMRIFERER L
o

BESN - 3R AP SE A R 8RR AN AR () 2R
BB HEM™S - UREBEHRME - BHES
BRREFIERERBREER
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Our shared profit from the South Korean joint venture
experienced a significant year-over-year drop. This decline was
primarily due to two factors: worsening sales performance driven
by the weakening economy due to the recent political instability,
as well as a decrease in fair valuation gains from Korean Bonds.

In the short term, the volatile business environment will continue
to hinder our performance in the South Korean market. However,
we remain cautiously optimistic about our long-term prospects
due to our strong branding and effective localization strategy in
terms of product offerings and marketing initiatives.

Also, we will leverage our resources and knowledge of South

Korea, such as merchandising, to other markets for synergy
which is expected to be beneficial to our business at Group level.
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Overseas (outside Greater China) franchisees and
licensees

=11 B MEF 2P m & Table 11: Overseas franchised store count

2024 2023
R Southeast Asia 190 190
Bl South Korea* 123 120
E2EH South Asia 102 69
FEM Africa 27 24
HAhmis Other markets 23 21
B Total 465 424

* FEBEEFI8.5% MmN HES ERNA] - R
L Em B

AR EIMNBER R R R EBESEET B
ZEE RRMAMBEREEELEmEN]
TRERNE  RABELHHORBELETF

Eo

BT AR AT (I MR E) 0 By
SHERTAR - W EERRENE -
51978 B3AE 5 B335 ( PIANT 25 ) SR A
BT EEREER

5 IEE B2 R AR h H AP SR AE 45 0 S 31
HEIMERE - IR PIN A ER TR Bk
BOMSRETMT - RABEER IR B
IV pNEE R MR SRRt e ks - TR
REMEGIN TS A EIE KRR -
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The Group owns a 48.5% equity interest in the South Korean joint venture,
also the Group'’s franchisee.

Our overseas franchised and licensed network experienced a
notable turnaround. With adequate support provided to our
franchisees and licensees, our wholesale to these markets
significantly rebounded in the second half, helping to achieve
double-digit growth in full-year revenue.

We expect the wholesale to mature markets, such as the
Philippines, to continue increasing steadily. In addition, in terms
of store count, we anticipate growth driven by expansion in
various emerging markets such as South Asia.

This positive trend reflects our strategic efforts to bolster our
overseas presence and support our partners in navigating
challenging market conditions. We remain committed to providing
robust support to our franchisees and licensees, ensuring
sustainable growth and success in our overseas markets.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and financial resources

As of December 31, 2024, the cash and bank balance, net of
bank loans, stood at HK$810 million (2023: HK$905 million). The
reduction in cash was primarily due to decreased operating cash
inflow partly due to a higher non-recurring cash outflow items
stated previously. As discussed in the 1H report, management
continues to closely examine the dividend payout strategy to align
with more of the typical market norms. Despite the significant
year-over-year cash flow reduction, the Company’s financial
position remains robust.

The bank borrowings amounted to HK$26 million (2023: HK$30
million). The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the total bank
borrowings over total equity, was 1.2% (2023: 1.3%). The
Group’s current ratio was 1.5 (2023: 1.6), based on current
assets of HK$1,692 million (2023: HK$1,735 million) and current
liabilities of HK$1,134 million (2023: HK$1,096 million).

Property, plant, and equipment

Capital expenditure for the year was HK$66 million (2023: HK$87
million), primarily allocated for store upgrades and relocations.

Goodwill and put option liabilities

The goodwill and put option liability arose from the acquisition
of our GCC operations in 2012 and 2015. The Group conducted
the required impairment tests and confirmed no impairment on
goodwill.

Interest in the South Korea joint venture

The carrying value of our 48.5% interest in the South Korea joint
venture, accounted for using the equity method, experienced
a decrease of 16.2% to HK$414 million. This reduction was
primarily attributed to the depreciation of the Korean Won and the
receipt of dividends.

Inventories

Group inventories closed at HK$508 million (2023: HK$474
million). Inventory turnover on cost remained steady at 110 days.
The planned strategic price promotion effectively cleared the
build-up of aged inventory from previous years, which will help
improve the composition of the inventory mix going forward for
our consumers.
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To ensure there is no excessive “off-balance sheet” inventory
that could pose a problem in the future, the Group tracks the
inventories at suppliers and franchisees. The finished goods at
suppliers were higher than last year, primarily due to stock-up in
preparation for the early Chinese New Year and early Ramadan in
the first quarter of 2025 compared to the second quarter of 2024.
In summary, our system inventories remain healthy.

Management is actively reviewing the entire sourcing and supply
chain process with the aim of enhancing stock efficiency. This
comprehensive review is expected to streamline operations,
reduce excess inventory, and ensure a more agile response to
market demands. By optimizing these processes, the Group aims
to drive future business growth and improve overall inventory
management.

Table 12: System inventories

MW12A31H
At December 31
(UAEEBTAREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
rEERBZRFE Inventories owned by the Group 508 474
HHABLNERMEEAENFIFAZFE  Inventories held by 48.5% South Korea
joint venture 178 182
REAMINBEEZEZFE Inventories held by franchisees in
Mainland China 34 38
HEF HKE MR Finished goods at suppliers 28 15
IrEEHRBELEE Inventories not owned by the Group 240 235
A EHE Total system inventories 748 709
FE Wt K PE 13 BR =X Trade receivables and payables

FEU R BN BR ZOR 8 B 8D Bl B 44X (2023
F 1 52K ) 63K (20234 : 45K)  FEERRX
EINEERRESRI2AKE EEHEE BT
@( °

R E

R2018%F11 A8H @ A BIER A% BB ([ X
BEEK]) - REBEKEERBEBIRMNRERHE
PREEEFBIRE - BREREBER - A28 —
BERHERBHBHRANKTEBERE - 2Rk
BeRAKEEFHERE ARKEFTEUR
EEESEREMAMTRE -
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The turnover days for trade receivables and payables were 44
days (2023: 52 days) and 63 days (2023: 45 days), respectively.
The increase in trade payables was primarily attributable to the
earlier receipt of Chinese New Year merchandise in December.

Dividends

The Company adopted a dividend policy on November 8, 2018
(the “Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy aims to return surplus
cash to its shareholders through dividend payouts. In line with
the Dividend Policy, the Company has been paying a substantial
portion of its earnings as an ordinary dividend, which may vary
depending on cash on hand, future investment requirements, and
working capital considerations.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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As discussed in the interim report, management continues
to closely examine the dividend payout decision to align with
more typical market norms, with consideration of long-term
sustainability and balanced capital allocation for future growth.
Therefore, the Board of Directors recommended a final dividend
of 6.0 HK cents per share (2023: 13.5 HK cents per share). With
the interim dividend of 8.0 HK cents per share (2023: 17.0 HK
cents per share) paid on Friday, September 20, 2024, the full-
year dividend will amount to 14.0 HK cents per share (2023: 30.5
HK cents per share) with a payout ratio of 104.5%. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be payable on
Friday, June 20, 2025 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, June 10,
2025.

OUTLOOK

The past year has been a year of transition for the Group,
marked by a renewed focus on the fundamentals of our business
under the new leadership of our CEQ. With his vision, we have
embarked on our ambitious Giordano ‘Beyond Boundaries’
five-year plan. This strategic roadmap is built on four strategic
choices:

1. Reuvitalize our Brand Portfolio
2. Digital First

3.  Greater China

4. One Giordano

The strategic choices will allow us to reset, revitalize, recalibrate,
and reconnect with our customers allowing us to achieve our
goal to transform Giordano into a growth company, and reclaim
our position as the best Asian apparel brand. We aim to win in
Greater China and accelerate our expansion in the GCC and
SEA regions. We strive to achieve revenue at a high single to
low double-digit compound annual growth rate (CAGR) between
2025 and 2030 and pursue to achieve the profit margin trending
towards historic levels.
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Strategic Achievements and Key Initiatives

Our commitment to achieving growth in the second half of 2024
and maintaining flat full-year revenue compared to 2023 has been
met with success. We are proud to report a 1.2% year-over-
year (YOY) increase in full-year revenue driven by a turnaround in
positive growth in the third quarter of 4.4% and the fourth quarter
of 7.3%. This achievement underscores the effectiveness of
Quick Win initiatives launched in May and our ability to adapt to
evolving market conditions.

Several key initiatives have been instrumental in driving this
performance:

1. Quick Win Initiatives: These initiatives implemented in
May have been pivotal in our recovery. We focused on
accelerating our online business, enhancing our product
assortment, improving our retail operations and leveraging
storytelling initiatives. These efforts resulted in a robust
sales rebound in the latter half of the year. Our targeted
marketing campaigns and strategic partnerships have
enabled us to reach a broader audience and increase
engagement.

2. One-Brand Alignment: We successfully unified our Men,
Women, and Kids designs and products in our stores,
ensuring a consistent and cohesive brand experience.
This strategic move has strengthened our brand identity
and improved the overall shopping experience for our
customers. By harmonizing our product lines, we have
created a more streamlined and appealing shopping
environment, which has been well-received by our
customers.

3. Enhanced Retail Excellence: We have placed a strong
emphasis on improving our retail operations, particularly in
product and merchandising. Recognizing that product is
paramount, we have focused on enhancing the sell-through
ratio of our merchandise by making data-driven decisions.
This approach has enabled us to optimize our product mix
and ensure the availability of best-sellers in our stores. Our
efforts to refine our inventory management and enhance our
in-store displays have also contributed to this success.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Marketing and Customer Engagement

In our marketing efforts, we have adopted a customer-centric
approach, creating compelling narratives around our products to
meet customer needs. For instance, our crossover campaigns
launched in January for Chinese New Year received a positive
response from consumers with a sell-thru of overall 70%. We will
continue to pursue relevant and meaningful collaborations with
other partners to attract consumer attention and engagement.
Our goal is to create a strong emotional connection with our
customers, enhancing their overall experience with our brand.
By leveraging digital marketing strategies and social media
platforms, we aim to reach a wider audience, drive traffic to our
store and build lasting relationships with our customers.

Geographic Focus and Growth Strategies

Geographically, Greater China, especially Mainland China,
remains the must-win battlefield in our five-year plan. Despite
the challenges faced earlier in the year, our performance in
Mainland China showed signs of recovery in the second half,
driven primarily by a strong rebound in online business during the
second half of the year. We believe our brand and business will
be revitalized by improving competency and capabilities in areas
such as product, marketing, retail operation, people and process.
Mainland China, along with our home market of Hong Kong, is
earmarked as the hub of our growth strategy. Our deep roots
and understanding of this market, will enable us to leverage local
insights and grow in this important and dynamic market.

In addition to Greater China, SEA and GCC are vital to our
business, particularly in terms of profitability. The SEA region saw
positive growth of 2.5% YOY, and the GCC region experienced
an increase of 3.3% YQOY. These regions have demonstrated the
ability to grow especially in the second half with targeted efforts
to optimize brand performance and address market-specific
challenges. We will continue to leverage our local knowledge
while enhancing our competency to sustain and improve our
business in these markets, especially in the online business which
has an enormous growth potential. Our digital-first approach
will ensure we focus on developing the e-commerce channel for
accelerating growth as our penetration across all markets in the
online channel is far below industry norms. Our expansion plans
include accelerating the online and offline footprints, enhancing
our product offerings, and strengthening our relationships with
key partners and distributors.
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Staff and Organizational Development

Our staff are our most important asset and are strong
brand advocates who have positively embraced the
changes and quickly adapted to new challenges. With
the first year of our 5-year journey commencing in 2025,
we have already reorganized our organizational structure
and operating model by bringing in top talent in Design,
Product & Merchandising, and Digital and e-commerce. The
‘Beyond Boundaries’ 5-year strategy is not merely a plan
for expansion, but a concerted effort to place the customer
at the centre of all our endeavors. As we move forward, the
Group remains committed to investing in our staff, recognizing
that our culture is paramount to our success. Developing the
capabilities and competencies of our team is essential to drive
our transformation and sustain our growth trajectory.

To further strengthen our focus on pivotal markets, we have
appointed a senior leader to focus solely on the must-win
battlefield of Mainland China. We have already implemented
our reset business plan, which will transform our business into
a channel-based model from a regional one. We are confident
that we have established a path to guide Mainland China toward
profitability. In addition, we will continue to foster a culture of
innovation, collaboration, and excellence, ensuring that our staff
are well-equipped to support our strategic goals. To support our
staff, we have introduced various incentive and development
programs aimed at enhancing their skills and knowledge. These
initiatives include leadership development programs, technical
training, and workshops focused on customer service excellence.
By investing in our people, we are building a strong foundation for
future growth and ensuring that our team is prepared to meet the
evolving needs of our customers.

Management would also like to extend our heartfelt gratitude to
our staff for their unwavering dedication and hard work. Their
commitment has been instrumental in driving the success of our
organization. It is their resilience and passion that empowers us
to pursue our ‘Beyond Boundaries’ strategy with confidence and
optimism. We thank them for their relentless pursuit of excellence
and for continuously going above and beyond to serve our
customers. Their efforts are the backbone of our company, and
we are immensely proud to have such a talented and committed
team. Together, we will continue to achieve great things and
shape a bright future for our organization.
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Financial Performance and Future Outlook

This new operational approach is expected to be a catalyst
for improved financial performance. The leadership team will
strive to achieve revenue at a high single to low double-digit
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) between 2025 and 2030
and endeavour to achieve the profit margin trending towards
historic levels, which in turn will create even more shareholder
value. For 2025 our ambition is to strive to achieve a revenue
growth between 3-5% with profit growing faster than the revenue
growth.

Our strategic investments in technology, process improvements,
and customer engagement are positioning us for long-term
growth. By refining our pricing strategies, improving inventory
control, and focusing on high-margin product introductions, we
aim to stabilize and enhance our gross margins in the coming
years. Despite the challenges faced in 2024, our financial position
remains robust, providing a solid foundation for future growth.

We are also exploring opportunities to expand our digital
presence, enhance our e-commerce capabilities, and leverage
data analytics to better understand customer preferences and
behaviours. These efforts will enable us to make more informed
decisions, optimize our marketing strategies, and deliver a more
personalized shopping experience.

Commitment to Innovation and Customer-Centricity

In conclusion, ‘Beyond Boundaries’ is more than a strategy; it is a
promise of innovation, a blueprint for success, and a vision for a
prosperous and dynamic future for Giordano where it once again
becomes a growth company. The Giordano ‘Beyond Boundaries’
five-year strategy is summarized in the latter section of this
Report. Management continues to extend our gratitude to our
shareholders and stakeholders for their unwavering support and
trust in the Group’s resilience and prospects for success.

As we look to the future, we are committed to driving innovation,
enhancing our customer-centric approach, and leveraging
our strategic initiatives to achieve sustainable growth. We are
confident that the steps we have taken and the plans we have in
place will enable us to navigate the evolving market landscape,
capitalize on new opportunities, and deliver long-term value to
our shareholders.
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We will continue to focus on customer satisfaction, ensuring that
every interaction with our brand is positive and memorable. By
listening to our customers and responding to their needs, we will
build stronger relationships and foster loyalty. Our commitment
to quality, innovation, and excellence will guide us as we strive
to exceed customer expectations and achieve our growth
objectives.

In summary, the future of Giordano is bright. With a clear strategic
vision, a strategic 5-year plan and a roadmap called ‘Beyond
Boundaries’, coupled with a passionate, dedicated and talented
team, we are well-positioned to start out on our 5-year journey
and achieve our goal to become a growth company and deliver
exceptional value to our shareholders. We are excited about the
opportunities that lie ahead and remain committed to executing
our ‘Beyond Boundaries’ strategy with excellence, precision and
passion.

Gratitude and Commitment to Shareholders

In closing, we would like to express our deepest gratitude to
our shareholders for their unwavering support and confidence
in Giordano. Your trust and belief in our vision and strategy
have been instrumental in our journey. We remain steadfastly
committed to striving for higher shareholder value, guided by our
strategic roadmap and our dedication to operational excellence.
Together, we look forward to a future of sustained growth,
innovation, and success, delivering exceptional value and returns
to our esteemed shareholders.

OTHER INFORMATION
Human Resources

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had approximately 6,627
employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
and generous, goal-oriented incentives targeted to different levels
of staff. We provide senior managers with performance-based/
discretionary bonus schemes and share options to reward and
retain a high-calibre leadership team. We also invest heavily in
training in sales and customer service, management, planning,
and leadership development to maintain a skilled and motivated
workforce. The Group facilitates the younger executives to take
up management roles. On December 31, 2024, the average age
of the Group’s management team was 49.
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Mr. Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE (Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director), aged 56, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on April 3, 2024 and was appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the chairman of
the Management Committee of the Company on April 5, 2024.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries and a joint venture
of the Group. He has over 30 years of international general
management experience and board memberships across multiple
consumer industries.

Mr. CURRIE was a Consultant of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited (“CTFE”), the flagship private investment holding
company of Dato’ Dr Cheng Yu Tung’s family, between January
1, 2024 and April 5 2024. He was previously the Chief Executive
Officer and Group Commercial Officer of AirAsia Digital Sdn
Bhd during the period from November 2021 to November 2023.
Previously, Mr. CURRIE spent 16 years at adidas AG since
appointed as General Manager of adidas Hong Kong Limited in
2005. Mr. CURRIE subsequently held various key management
roles during his tenure, most recently as Managing Director, Asia
Pacific & Greater China of adidas Sports (China) Co., Ltd. Prior to
joining adidas, Mr. CURRIE worked as marketing professionals in
various industries including music and publishing, mobile telco,
airlines, credit cards and hotels.

Mr. CURRIE, a Malaysian national, received an honours Bachelor
degree in Hospitality Business Management from Leeds Beckett
University in the United Kingdom. He also holds a post-graduate
diploma in marketing from the United Kingdom's Chartered
Institute of Marketing.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 48, joined the
Group in January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on June 20, 2014. He took on the
roles of the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Sales Officer of the
Group on January 1, 2025. He was a Chief Operating Officer of
the Company from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2024. He is
also a member of the Management Committee of the Company,
and a director of various subsidiaries and a joint venture of the
Group. Dr. CHAN is responsible for the accounting and financial
management and the sales operations of the Group to meet
budget and other financial goals, as well as establishing goals,
allocating resources and assessing policies to drive the Group’s
performance. Dr. CHAN has over 23 years of experience in the
apparel retailing and marketing business.
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Dr. CHAN is a fellow member of Certified Practicing Accountant
Australia, a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
in London and a member of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in Ireland. He holds a Doctorate degree in Business
Administration and Bachelor of Science in Textile from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”) and a Master of Arts in
Global Business Management and a Master of Laws in Arbitration
and Dispute Resolution from the City University of Hong Kong
(“CityU”), a Master of Accountancy and a Master of Science
(MSc) in Data Analytics and Business Economics from the Hong
Kong Baptist University (“HKBU”).

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND (Executive Director), aged 46, has been
with the Group since September 2013 and was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on March 9, 2017. Mr.
LOYND is currently the General Counsel and Company Secretary
of the Company, and took on the roles of the Chief Human
Resources Officer and Chief Business Development Officer on
January 1, 2025. He oversees legal, regulatory, compliance,
corporate governance, human resources and talent development
affairs, and also responsible for the development of new overseas
markets as well as brand and product development of the Group.
Mr. LOYND is also chairman of the Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Management Committee of the Company
as well as director and company secretary of various subsidiaries
and a director of a joint venture of the Group.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a
Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the
United Kingdom. He is a professional member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Human Resources Management, where he also sits
on the Employment-Related Hong Kong Legislation and Issues
Committee, and a member of the Chartered Professionals in
Human Resources of British Columbia and Yukon.

He holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from Aberystwyth
University in the United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in
Arbitration and Alternative Dispute Resolution (with distinction)
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both from CityU. He
possesses over 23 years of experience in handling regulatory
and compliance matters for listed companies, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures and other commercial law affairs, as
well as labour and maritime law issues.
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Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob (Executive Director), aged 42, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
December 1, 2022. He was re-designated as Executive Director
and was appointed as a member of each of the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Management
Committee of the Company on April 5, 2024. He is currently a
senior vice president of CTFE with responsibilities for making
strategic and private equity investments globally. Mr LEE joined
CTFE in March 2013 and has over 15 years of professional
experience in corporate finance, investment, international capital
markets and asset management.

He previously worked at the investment banking department of
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and
Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong. Mr. LEE holds a Master of
Science Degree in Accounting and Finance from The London
School of Economics and Political Science in London, United
Kingdom and a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from the University of Michigan in Ann Arbor, United States of
America. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder.
Mr. LEE is currently a non-executive director of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 923) and New
Times Corporation Limited (formerly known as New Times Energy
Corporation Limited) (Stock Code: 166), both the shares of which
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick, BBS (Chairman and Non-Executive
Director), aged 53, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on December 1, 2022 and was appointed as the
Group’s Chairman, the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
on April 5, 2024. He is a director and the co-chief executive
officer of CTFE and a director of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited,
a substantial shareholder (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)) of the Company. Mr. TSANG has over 25 years
of international capital markets experience, and was previously
managing director, head of Asia Fixed Income Capital Markets at
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch, where he worked from
2003 to 2012.

Mr. TSANG currently holds directorships in five companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; namely, vice-chairman
and executive director of i-Cable Communications Limited (Stock
Code: 1097), executive director of UMP Healthcare Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 722) and Melbourne Enterprises Limited
(Stock Code: 158), and non-executive director of SUM Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 880) and CTF Services Limited (formerly
known as NWS Holdings Limited, Stock Code: 659). Mr. TSANG
was a non-executive director of Greenheart Group Limited (Stock
Code: 94) from June 2015 to May 2022 and a non-executive
director of Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 923) from November 2012 to August 2022.

Mr. TSANG is a member of the fourteenth Beijing Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the People’s Republic of China. Mr. TSANG is
the founder and a director of CTFE Social Solutions Limited, a
governor of Chow Tai Fook Charity Foundation Limited, a vice-
chairman of Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, a member of
the Election Committee and Youth Development Commission of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, and an advisor of
Our Hong Kong Foundation.

Mr. TSANG obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics
from Columbia College of Columbia University in New York, USA.
Mr. TSANG is the cousin-in-law of Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia
and Mr. CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher, both the Non-executive
Directors of the Company.
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Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia (Non-executive Director),
aged 44, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on April 3, 2024. She is currently the chief executive
officer of Rosewood Hotel Group. Ms. CHENG is also a vice-
chairman and executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1929) and an executive director
of New World Development Company Limited (Stock Code:
17), both companies listed on the Stock Exchange. She is
also an independent non-executive director of The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. Ms. CHENG
was an independent director of Primavera Capital Acquisition
Corporation (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange)
from January 2021 to December 2022.

Ms. CHENG is a council member of The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a member of its Committee of Institutional
Advancement and Community Relations. She is a member of
The Standing Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and
Conditions of Service of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. She is also the Vice-Governor of Guangdong Youth
Development Foundation. Furthermore, Ms. CHENG is a
member of the Thirteenth Guangdong Provincial Committee
of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
the People’s Republic of China. Ms. CHENG had served as
a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board and chairman
of its Marketing and Business Development Committee until
completion of the term in October 2024. She also served as a
member of Human Resources Planning Commission of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region until completion of the term
in December 2024.

Ms. CHENG holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Applied
Mathematics with a concentration in Economics from Harvard
University. She is the cousin-in-law of Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick,
the Group’s Chairman and Non-executive Director, and the sister
of Mr. CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher, a Non-executive Director
of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #



EEREREBAEBFN

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

MERKE(HFHTEE)  RE3BE > P
2024 FAASHEZITAARAERITES -
WIRABEAXEREERAB([ARBEIZ])
(fifBsal 2B AR AR —MRBATE
M2 AR - BRIDREE : 659)NMITES - 1 H
2019F1 AEMAAKREEIE T2 HEEE
BAREBEENERERERRBEMERE - 5%
RERARXBLCEEERBFEITHREY - £Eit
TN ERE -

BEAT > MEETEAIREHPESTEEIRS
FrAECEREMREBREREEAETRE(E
ARTDNEERMZ)REEELR -

BEERFEARKNMBEARBAHE GRS
TZENMIEZEERE - BEEARBARKX
BRBENB LB - WARNEE T ERIFHN
TEFLRELRENKRBEMARRFERITES
BWEZLLHMSE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

Mr. CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher (Non-executive Director),
aged 35, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on April 3, 2024. He is currently an executive director of
CTF Services Limited (“CTFS”) (formerly known as NWS Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
659). He has been with CTFS since January 2019 and is mainly
responsible for overseeing the business development and
strategic investments of CTFS. Mr. CHENG is a director and the
co-chief executive officer of CTFE, in charge of all investments in
North Asia.

Previously, Mr. CHENG had worked in the venture capital and
hedge fund industry, with in-depth experience in corporate
finance, as well as portfolio management of global equities with
focus on Asian developed markets.

Mr. CHENG is a member of the thirteenth Zhejiang Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the People’s Republic of China. Mr. CHENG holds
a Bachelor of Arts in Economics Degree from Harvard University.
He is the cousin-in-law of Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick, the
Group’s Chairman and Non-executive Director, and the brother
of Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia, a Non-executive Director of the
Company.
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Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on November 11,
2015. He is also chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of both the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Professor HUANG received his PhD from the University of
Groningen (The Netherlands), Master of Arts from Lancaster
University (England), and Honours Diploma from Lingnan
University (Hong Kong). He is the former Head of Department
of Management and the Chair Professor of Department of
Management, Marketing, and Information Systems of HKBU.
Currently, he also serves as the Associate Dean of the School of
Business (Research & Impact), the Programme Director of Doctor
of Business Administration and the Director of Centre for Human
Resources Strategy and Development of HKBU.

Since 2010, he has served as an Adjunct Professor in the Centre
for Work, Organization and Wellbeing, Griffith University. He has
also been appointed as a Visiting Chair Professor in Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics since 2012. He is Deputy
Editor of the Management and Organization Review, and a
member of editorial board for Academy of Management Journal
and Human Relations.

Professor HUANG's research interests include leadership, power,
proactive and abnormal work behaviors, employees’ well-being;
cross-cultural psychology and management issues in China.
He has published more than 60 papers in international journals
including Academy of Management Journal, Journal of Applied
Psychology, Journal of International Business Studies, Journal
of Management, Leadership Quarterly, Journal of Organizational
Behavior, Human Relations and so forth.
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Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD (/ndependent Non-executive
Director), aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
on March 7, 2019. She was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on June 25, 2024.

Dr. LLOYD is the Associate Provost (Institutional Data and
Research) at The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology from May 2023. She previously served as the
Associate Vice President (Institutional Research and Strategic
Planning) at HKBU from May 2020 to May 2023, spearheading
evidence-based decision-making using analytics and business
intelligence to support key activities. She was a Director of
International Affairs of PolyU, Dr. LLOYD oversaw the strategic
development and coordination of international partnerships,
international recruitment, mobility opportunities, and institutional
relations. As Director of Institutional Research and Planning of
PolyU, she steered strategic planning, performance monitoring,
university rankings, business intelligence, and analytics.

Prior to joining academia, she worked in management
consultancy in Hong Kong. Her previously consulting
engagements cover strategy, business process review and
improvement, performance management frameworks and
change management for both private and public sector
organizations in Hong Kong and Asia. Currently, Dr. LLOYD
serves on a number of advisory boards and steering committees
pertaining to international higher education.
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Mr. Victor HUANG (Independent Non-executive Director), aged
53, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on April 3, 2024. He was appointed as a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company on April 5, 2024 and
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company on
May 17, 2024. He was further appointed as the chairman of
the Audit Committee of the Company on June 25, 2024. He
has over 30 years of experience in professional accounting,
capital market and merger and acquisition. Mr. HUANG joined
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 1993 and he was a partner in the firm
since 2005. He left PricewaterhouseCoopers and joined KPMG
as a partner from 2014 to 2017.

Mr. HUANG is currently an independent non-executive director of
the following companies which are listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely () COSCO SHIPPING Energy Transportation Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 1138), (i) ManpowerGroup Greater China Limited
(Stock Code: 2180), (i) Scholar Education Group (Stock Code:
1769), (iv) Topsports International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
6110), (v) Shandong Hi-Speed New Energy Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1250) and (vi) New Times Corporation Limited (formerly
known as New Times Energy Corporation Limited) (Stock Code:
166). Mr. HUANG was an independent non-executive director
of (i) QingDao Haier-Biomedical Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 688139.
SH), a company listed on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange from August 2018 to July 2024; (ii)
Laobaixing Pharmacy Chain Joint Stock Company (Stock Code:
603883.SH), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from February 2018 to February 2024; (iii) China Bright Culture
Group (Stock Code: 1859) from February 2020 to November
2020; and (iv) Evergrande Property Services Group Limited
(Stock Code: 6666) from November 2020 to November 2021.

Mr. HUANG is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Hong Kong Independent Non-
Executive Director Association. He is also a Certified Independent
Non-executive Director by the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr.
HUANG received a bachelor's degree of arts from the University
of California, Los Angeles in September 1992.
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Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin (Independent Non-executive
Director), aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company on June 25, 2024.
He is a Senior Advisor at Harmony Advisors, a family office and
investment firm in Hong Kong. Prior to that he was a Senior
Advisor at Rothschild & Co. He joined N M Rothschild & Sons
in 1987 in the corporate finance division where he spent over
30 years working in both Hong Kong and London. He joined
Rothschild’s Management Committee and Board of Directors
of Hong Kong in 1996 and became the Head of the Hong Kong
operations in 2012. That same year he was appointed Executive
Vice Chairman, and then Chairman of Hong Kong in 2018 up until
his retirement in 2022.

During his career he provided advice to corporates in the areas
of M&A as well as debt and capital markets financing. He was
also on the Board of Rothschild Wealth Management where
he gave strategic advice to family offices and High-Net-Worth
clients. Currently he is an independent non-executive director of
Allied Group Limited (Stock Code: 373), APAC Resources Limited
(Stock Code: 1104) and Travel Expert (Asia) Enterprises Limited
(Stock Code: 1235), all of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He has also served on the University
Council’s Finance Committee of CityU since 2021.

Mr. CHAU holds a bachelor of laws degree from Buckingham
University, UK and is a responsible officer licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong to carry on
types 1, 4 and 6 regulated activities.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Giordano’s vision is “To be the best Asian apparel brand”, and
our mission is “To make people ‘Feel Good’ and ‘Look Great’”.
Our 5-year strategic plan aims to transform Giordano into a
growth company and was launched and communicated in 2024.

At Giordano we believe in the power of our culture and values
and how that comes to life through our people — core to
who we are as a company. The combination of our inspiring
vision and mission and our people living our strong culture
and values enables us to breathe life into our aspirations. The
Giordano culture of loyalty, commitment, care, teamwork,
entrepreneurialism and getting things done coupled with the
values of Quality, Knowledge, Innovation, Simplicity and Service
(Q.KISS) is the strong foundation from which we achieve our
mission, vision and strategic goals.

The focus on QUALITY guarantees that our products and
services available globally in all our markets are of consistently
high quality, safeguarding the brand’s international image.
It means focusing on ensuring efficient communication and
rigorous implementation with right the first-time mindset.
KNOWLEDGE ensures that our teams will continually seek to
understand the latest trends in market and consumer demands
that can impact our business. The sharing of these trends
and best practices across the business provides insights and
information as a basis for well-informed, fact-based decision-
making as we implement and adapt the strategy. INNOVATION
injects the strong drive to seek new and different ways to do
things every day and to continue to breathe new life into what
we do. Exploring new retail models to integrate online and offline
channels always focusing on enhancing the consumer buying
experience. In the digital world where we and our consumers live,
we can achieve E2E business operation excellence and data-
driven management, SIMPLICITY is about keeping processes
as efficient and productive as possible enabling us to focus
on delivering our core targets. Driven by the brand portfolio
with clear image and market positioning, an aligned pricing
strategy to the brand’s position, a rigorous and clear inventory
management approach enhances the overall operational
efficiency of the company. SERVICE is vital in all our markets
and the total business. Teams in our stores welcome our
customers with heartfelt enthusiasm whilst communicating our
brand and product stories. Offering these personalized shopping
experiences effectively enhances the brand’s reputation and
loyalty whilst driving financial results.
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Our customers lie at the heart of everything we do to deliver our
five-year growth strategy. How our culture and values come to
life every day supports this commitment as well as our focus on
continuously keeping track of the changing market conditions,
navigating obstacles, striving for sustainable development, and
creating more value for all our shareholders.

More information about Giordano’s purpose, vision, values and
corporate culture is set out in this report, the “Business Review”
section of this annual report, as well as the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report annexed to this annual report.

Corporate Governance

The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance within a sensible and practical framework.
The Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential towards upholding
the interests of all stakeholders and maximizing shareholder
value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance.
It is responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board
has adopted the principles of good corporate governance (the
“Principles”) and the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) as the Corporate Governance Code of the
Company. The Company remains resolute in its application of
the Principles to the corporate governance of the Group. The
Company regularly reviews its corporate governance policies
to ensure that they remain updated and in compliance with the
requirements with the Listing Rules. In particular, the Company
reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy on
November 7, 2024,

During the year, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code save for the deviations from Code
Provisions B.2.2 and C.2.1. Code Provision C.2.1 has been
complied upon the change of Chairman and Chief Executive with
effect from April 5, 2024. Details of which are explained in the
relevant paragraphs below.
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BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standards
of the Company. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, notifiable transactions, appointments or re-
appointments of Directors, dividends and accounting policies.
The Directors, individually and collectively, are committed to
act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders. The Board also delegates certain powers and
functions to various board committees as detailed in the section
titled “Board Committees” of this report and the ESG report
annexed to the annual report. Save for the power reserved by
the Board or delegated to Board committees, the strategies and
plans as decided by the Board are implemented by Management.
Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the
day-to-day operation of the Group.

The Board has established a mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. The current
composition of the Board has a strong independence element
and provides sufficient balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives in leading the Company to achieve its goal. The
independent non-executive Directors also provide independent
judgment in the Board’s overall decision-making process. The
Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
board independence mechanism for the year ended December
31, 2024 and considered it to be effective.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #



@% %EﬁTﬂmﬁ%é BE - I5A

HIE B MNEFARRZEEERK
REERRIREES N 22

BAMEREENSNEEABRZE
RFEFEERER

B RERARREETERNEER
ETEZBREER

HE RIMEREANERBERESZZ
BT RARFM(IE)

AASEETEEE AT ZBRANK
$ﬁ%WZ&%:

R RERAKECBRERF B
EEREARBE 2 ERERERM -
VTEEEMBZELREZ LA
7k

BEASEAERRKEEEEREDN
BEARR(BERE g MERRR)
MEBMEE  TREAEENERKRE
IRIRHE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

EXRERBREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out below or it may delegate the
responsibility to a committee or committees:

° Developing, reviewing and updating the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations on changes and updates;

o Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report;

o Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s process of
disclosure, including assessing and verifying the accuracy
and materiality of inside information and determining the
form and content of any required disclosure; and

° Determining the nature and extent of significant risks
(including the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) risks) that the Group are willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.
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Composition

At as December 31, 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors,
three Non-executive Directors and four Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience
and provide effective guidance and an outside perspective on
major decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their
duties, the Directors have free and direct access to both the
Company'’s internal and external auditors and procedures are in
place to allow the Directors to obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise,
skills and experience that each Director brings individually, the
Group believes that the Board is appropriately structured to
provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests
of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board will regularly
review its composition to maintain a proper balance and
diversity of expertise, skills and experience to ensure continued
effective leadership and oversight of the Company’s businesses.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 34 to 43
of this annual report.

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. Details on the gender
ratio of the Group together with relevant data can be found in the
section titled “Gender Diversity of Workforce” of this report and
the ESG Report on pages ESG.1 to ESG.60 of this annual report.
The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy on
an annual basis and the policy was last reviewed on November 7,
2024.

In accordance with the Principles, the Board has established
three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition, a
Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are
also in place to support the Board and the Board Committees.
During the year of 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are set out below.
The composition of the Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee are disclosed in the relevant sections of
this report.
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HE2024F12A31HILEARREHE - EF  As at December 31, 2024 and up to the date of this report, the

@Ak composition of the Board is set out as follows:

ERZREE REZEE ¥MzES

Audit Nomination Remuneration
BEEERE Members of the Board Committee Committee Committee
HITEE Executive Directors
Colin Melville Kennedy Mr. Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE — — —
CURRIES L& (Chief Executive)
(7TH#5)

REEET Dr. CHAN Ka Wai — _ _
BEN A Mr. Mark Alan LOYND — _ _
TEEFELE Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob — M M
FHTES Non-executive Directors
RBERE(EE) Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (Chairman) — C M
BEFLT Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia - — —
BEmis Mr. CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher — — -
BILKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
HEHE Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) M M C
Alison Elizabeth LLOYDfE+ Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD M M M
BEELE Mr. Victor HUANG C M _
B Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin — — M
BaF - Notes:
C EFHEEZS ST/ C Chairman of the relevant Board Committees

M  BHEFZEEMMKE

RARBFEER  EXEMhBEFEE NRE

ZHERMEBMT

1. R2024F4A3H - 2REFE L WERE 1.

M Member of the relevant Board Committees

i3S

During the year under review, the changes to the composition of

the Board and Board Committees were as follows:

E-B - AtIABIrEHTHAES
IR RELZESKEEZEERE
ZERBURFMEE SN E - R2024F
AR50 -« FINH AR IETTEAB RS o

2. H2024%4A3H - Colin Melvile Kennedy 2.

CURREL X EZT AEHRITEE LR
2024FAASHEZERBITHAE UALE

BREETRE -
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On April 3, 2024, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter was removed
from his position as a Director, as a result of which he also
automatically ceased to be the Chairman of the Board,
the chairman of each of the Nomination Committee and
the Management Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee. On April 5, 2024 he was also
terminated the position of Chief Executive.

Mr. Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE was appointed as
Executive Director on April 3, 2024 and was appointed
as Chief Executive and chairman of the Management
Committee on April 5, 2024.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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7. 202496 A25H - Alison Elizabeth
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9. M2024F6A258 @ AELEEESZTE
BEMNIERTEERTMEZEEEKE -
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Z T i A E F € 1 Colin Melville Kennedy
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3. On April 5, 2024, Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob was re-designated
from Non-executive Director to Executive Director and
was appointed as a member of each of the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Management Committee.

4. On April 5, 2024, Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick, a Non-
executive Director, was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board, chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee.

5. On April 3, 2024, both Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia and Mr.
CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher were appointed as Non-
executive Directors.

6. On May 17, 2024, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT retired as a
Director, after which he ceased to be an Independent Non-
executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

7. On June 25, 2024, Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD was
appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee.

8.  Mr. Victor HUANG was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on April 3, 2024. He was appointed as (i)
a member of the Audit Committee on April 5, 2024 and (ii) a
member of the Nomination Committee on May 17, 2024. On
June 25, 2024, he was further appointed as the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

9. On June 25, 2024, Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of the Remuneration Committee.

Pursuant to rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, Mr. Colin Melville
Kennedy CURRIE, Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia, Mr. CHENG Chi
Leong, Christopher and Mr. Victor HUANG, who were appointed
to the Board in April 2024; and Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin,
who was appointed to the Board in June 2024, had obtained
legal advice from an external law firm on March 25, 2024 and
June 18, 2024 respectively. Each of them has confirmed his/her
understanding of the obligations as a director of the Company.
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Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (“Mr. TSANG”), the Chairman and
Non-executive Director, is the cousin-in-law of Ms. CHENG
Chi-Man, Sonia (“Ms. CHENG”) and Mr. CHENG Chi Leong,
Christopher (“Mr. CHENG”), both Non-executive Directors. Ms.
CHENG is the sister of Mr. CHENG. Both Mr. TSANG and Mr.
CHENG are directors and co-chief executive officers of Chow
Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTFE”), the flagship private
investment holding company of Dato’ Dr Cheng Yu Tung’s family
and also serve on the board of CTF Services Limited (Stock
Code: 659.HK). Ms. CHENG serves on the boards of Chow Tai
Fook Jewellery Group Limited (Stock Code: 1929.HK) and New
World Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 17.HK). Mr.
TSANG serves as a director of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited.
Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob, an Executive Director, serves as a senior
vice president of CTFE. CTFE, CTF Services Limited, Chow
Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, New World Development
Company Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited are all
held by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, a substantial shareholder
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships with
each other required to be disclosed under the CG Code.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their
roles and responsibilities. The relevant Directors will be asked to
abstain from voting on matters as appropriate if and when any
conflicts of interests arise.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee considers a range of perspectives (including, but not
limited to diversity in accordance with the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy) when assessing potential candidates for the
Board.
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According to the Company’s New Bye-Laws adopted on May
19, 2023 (the “Bye-Laws”), any new Director (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director) appointed by the Board
(either to fill casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board) is subject to retirement and re-election by
Shareholders at the next annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) following their appointment. At each AGM, one-third
(or the number nearest to, but not less than one-third) of the
Directors (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director) will
retire from office by rotation, and every Director (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director), including those appointed
for a specific term, is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

The Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Code Provision B.2.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term
of three years and will continue in office thereafter subject to
termination by not less than one month’s prior notice in writing
by either the Non-executive Director or the Company. In addition,
all Non-executive Directors are required to retire from office by
rotation and are subject to re-election by Shareholders at the
AGM at least once every three years pursuant to the Bye-Laws
and Code Provision B.2.2.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key
factors to the successful implementation of business plans of
the Group. The Board believes that it is beneficial to the Group
that there is continuity in the role of the Chairman and Managing
Director, therefore, the Board is of the view that both the
Chairman and the Managing Director should be exempt from this
arrangement at the present time.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the composition of the Board at all
times complied with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

For the compliance of rules 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing
Rules, reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated May 17, 2024, with effect following the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on May 17, 2024,
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (“Dr. BUTTIFANT?”) retired as Director
and ceased to be an Independent Non-executive Director,
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Following Dr. BUTTIFANT’s retirement, Mr. Victor HUANG
(“Mr. HUANG”), an Independent Non-executive Director, was
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee with effect
from May 17, 2024.

Following the above changes to the composition of the Board
and Board committees, the Board comprised four Executive
Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee
was also vacated. The Remuneration Committee comprised an
Independent Non-executive Director as chairman and two Non-
executive Directors as members. As a result of the foregoing,
the Company was not in compliance with the requirements
of (i) rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules that the Company must
appoint Independent Non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board; (ii) rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
that the Audit Committee must be chaired by an Independent
Non-executive Director; and (iii) rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
that the Remuneration Committee must comprise a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

As announced by the Company on June 25, 2024, with effect
from the same date, Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee; Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD,
an Independent Non-executive Director, was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee; and Mr. HUANG was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

53



54

TEERRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REREEBIIERTEZTUREELZES
RERBEESHE  KARARFAELETRAE
3.10A1E ~ 3211 R F3.25(K ©

BAEP B IFNTES(AFEBEHE) B
2015F 11 A11HE(ABBAF) ) HTESS
KE  MEMHAERETE TR - HERK
93E % BE A @RI A 89 E 1% 6 R S PIAR
IEFEHRETE - E B IERITESAIEL
M BEEghRAZESERIFENESR
REFHAMEESERNERMTZIR T HE
MRFE TeEREMARREZX -

BERHR CRFEEH - BB ERERTE
BEMEXNE & FELMBEETES
g o WEARANRBFRL KT EEITEIB
SNHE - RARBERAZERNFEREE AT
ZRNT B A RARIEAR R B ASN TAEAIAE
BMBARTHELHNEMEREENRRE - £18
ENZF  BHERRETEENBHLAAT
RHTEILNES -

REBEQRIABIZESA() MBAQ) KM E » FHIEK
ARREERRBFERE LRESE  ®EA
BERYRENS LBEESBIE -

EBYIFATEEE AR RRERE LT
RANEI1B( 2 BUMEERE - ENREZE
CETCFRERN EFERR - BRELTR
A BB FATTESYRBIAL -

ExzEel

EXeEFARUARENEH  T2EAFRE
RAREZ % EFENERSHRTAY
SEEE  WELBEFSHERLTHH
fE o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

Upon the above appointment of Independent Non-executive
Director and the changes to the composition and roles of
members of Board committees, the Company is in compliance
with rules 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

Although one of our Independent Non-executive Directors;
namely, Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu), has served
as our Board members since November 11, 2015 (i.e. for more
than nine years) and that may be relevant to the determination
of independence, it is well-recognized that an individual’s
independence cannot be determined solely on the basis of their
length of service. In assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors, the Board and the Nomination
Committee take into account the character and judgement
demonstrated by the Directors’ commitment and contribution to
the Board during their years of service and other relevant factors.

We believe that, despite his length of service, Professor HUANG
has continued to provide invaluable expertise, experience,
continuity and stability to the Board. His term of service to
the Company has not affected his exercise of independent
judgement, and the Company has benefited from his contribution
and the valuable insights derived from his in-depth knowledge of
the Company and from his work and experience outside of the
Company. Professor HUANG has expressed objective views and
given independent guidance to the Company over the past years.

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-Laws,
Professor HUANG shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from all Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance
with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the annual review
conducted by the Nomination Committee, the Board is of
the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Board meetings

The Board holds four regular meetings a year while additional
meetings are held as and when required. Regular Board meetings
are scheduled in advance to facilitate the fullest possible
attendance.
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The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of the
Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any
business that they wish to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to the Directors at
least 14 days before meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Furthermore, all
Directors have access to the Company Secretary, who is also
the Group’s General Counsel, for advice and services to ensure
that board procedures and applicable laws, rules and regulations
are adhered to. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are
circulated to all Directors and other attendees not less than
three days (or where meetings are called at short notice, as
soon as practicable) before the Board or committee meetings
to ensure timely access to relevant information. Draft minutes of
the Board and committee meetings are circulated to all Directors
or committee members for approvals and finalized minutes are
kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection by all
Directors.

Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board
meeting may participate electronically by conference call or
via alternate arrangements in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
Moreover, pursuant to the Bye-Laws, Board approval may
also be obtained by way of circulation of a resolution in writing
on urgent matters when convening a Board meeting is not
practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory materials will
be provided to the Directors at the same time when a resolution
in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, eight Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly operational updates of the
Group, and to discuss the Group’s strategies, policies and
budgets going forward, as well as other business (including
change of Board members). In addition, seven sets of resolutions
in writing were passed.
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Attendances of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and the general meetings during the year ended December 31,
2024 are as follows:

56

ENZEE  R%ZBe  §HZBe
Ezeed L &3 g8 RREEAET RREHAE
Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Annual Special
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
YrEs Executive Directors
SEERL Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter’ 33 MERNA NEENA 12 NEEN/A 111
(FEETHEH) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Colin Melville Kennedy Mr. Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE? 5/5 TEANA MERNA NERENA 111 TERAN/A
CURRIEL 2 (1744 (Chief Executive)
BEEET Dr. CHAN Ka Wal 8/8 NERNA NERNA TEENA i 1
BBk Mr. Mark Alan LOYND 88 NEEN/A MEEN/A MEENIA 111 111
FEEL Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob® 8/8 TEANA 212 212 111 0
FHTES Non-executive Directors
R (2E) Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick! (Chairman) 8/8 MEEN/A 112 112 111 0
grEaLs Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonie® 45 MEEN/A NEEN/A MEENIA 0 NEEN/A
PEniss Mr. CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher? 505 TERNA MABNA TEENA 0/ TERNA
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
BT Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANTE 35 1/1 0 113 11 0
AR Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 8/8 212 33 44 111 0
Alison Elizabeth LLOYDE+7 ~ Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD! 78 202 33 MEENIA 111 0
ERER Mr. Victor HUANG® 5/5 1/1 212 TEAN/A 111 NEEN/A
EEES Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin® 33 MERANA MERNA MEAN/A MEANA TEANA
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Notes:

1. was removed from his position as Director and ceased to be Chairman
of the Board, chairman of each of the Nomination Committee and
the Management Committee as well as member of the Remuneration
Committee, with effect from April 3, 2024. He was also terminated the
position of Chief Executive on April 5, 2024.

2. was appointed as Executive Director on April 3, 2024 and was appointed
as Chief Executive and chairman of the Management Committee on April 5,
2024.

3. was re-designated as Executive Director and was appointed as member of

each of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Management Committee on April 5, 2024.

4. was appointed as Chairman of the Board, chairman of the Nomination
Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee on April 5, 2024.

5. was appointed as Non-executive Director on April 3, 2024.
6. retired as Director and ceased to be Independent Non-executive Director,

chairman of the Audit Committee and member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee on May 17, 2024.

7. was appointed as member of the Remuneration Committee on June 25,
2024.
8. was appointed as (i) Independent Non-executive Director on April 3, 2024;

(i) member of the Audit Committee on April 5, 2024; (i) member of the
Nomination Committee on May 17, 2024, and was further appointed as
chairman of the Audit Committee on June 25, 2024.

9. was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director and member of the
Remuneration Committee on June 25, 2024.

In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the
Independent Non-executive Directors may also meet without the
presence of the Executive Directors from time-to-time.

Training for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company provides a comprehensive induction
package to each newly appointed Director to ensure that they
are sufficiently aware of their responsibilities and obligations as
directors of a company listed in Hong Kong.
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The Company provides regular updates and presentations on
changes and developments relating to the Group’s business
and the Company Secretary reports from time-to-time on the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regimes to the
Directors and provides them with reading materials relating to
the latest development of regulatory requirements relevant to
director’s duties and responsibilities. Save for (i) Dr. LAU Kwok
Kuen, Peter who was removed from the Board on April 3, 2024
and (ii) Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT who retired as Independent
Non-executive Director on May 17, 2024, all Directors have
provided the Company with a record of the relevant training
undertaken during the year as summarized below:

HERBEER
MEEERE ESREZESR
B & &R Mg gE

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/

conferences
Reading relevant to the
regulatory business or
EESHE Name of Directors updates  directors’ duties
HITES Executive Directors
2R H L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter’ X X
(FEFITHAEE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Colin Melville Kennedy Mr. Colin Melville Kennedy v v/
CURRIES L & (7742 5) CURRIE (Chief Executive)
REEiEt Dr. CHAN Ka Wai v v
BEXFHE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND v v
FEHLE Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob v X
FHITES Non-executive Directors
BRELE(EE) Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (Chairman) v X
BEZELL Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia v v
BEmEE Mr. CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher v v
BIYEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FEIEN B 12 Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT? X X
=IBHX Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v X
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD#&+  Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD v X
HEELRE Mr. Victor HUANG v v
[EI B 5 Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin v v
BaF - Notes:

1. R2024F 4 H3HBEES -
2. R2024F 5717 HRIF »
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1. was removed on April 3, 2024.
2. retired on May 17, 2024.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance in line with the CG Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick is the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE is the Chief Executive, their
respective appointments were both effective from April 5, 2024.

Prior to that, the role of Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive were both taken by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter since
1994. Such practice deviated from Code Provision C.2.1, which
stipulates that the role of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and
deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, during Dr. LAU’s
tenure with the Company, the Board was of the view that vesting
the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive in Dr. LAU
provided the Group with strong leadership, allowing for effective
planning and execution of long term business strategies and
enhanced efficiency in decision-making.

With effect from the conclusion of the special general meeting of
the Company held on April 3, 2024, Dr. LAU was removed from
his position as a Director and automatically ceased (a) to be the
Chairman of the Board and (b) all roles in Board committees onto
which he had been appointed. With effect from April 5, 2024,
Dr. LAU’s appointment as Chief Executive was also terminated.
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Following the aforementioned changes and segregation, the
role of the Chairman and the Chief Executive were no longer
performed by the same individual, hence the Company is now
in compliance with the requirement under Code Provision C.2.1
of the CG Code. The Board believes that, notwithstanding such
changes, the Company has always maintained a strong corporate
governance structure appropriate for its circumstances to ensure
effective oversight of Management. The main elements of this
structure include:

° Having seven Non-executive Directors out of eleven of the
Board, and four of which are Independent Non-executive
Directors;

° All Audit Committee members are Independent Non-
executive Directors;

o Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have
free and direct access to both the Company’s internal and
external auditors and independent professional advice
where necessary; and

° Having “whistle-blowing” and “anti-corruption” mechanisms
in place. Details of the “whistle-blowing” and “anti-
corruption” mechanisms are further discussed under the
section “Risk Management and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to
rigorously supervise the Group’s management and effectively
control key issues relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The
Board continually reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance structure to assess whether any changes
are necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Independent Non-executive
Directors and is now chaired by Mr. Victor HUANG. Dr. Barry
John BUTTIFANT ceased to be chairman of the Audit Committee
upon his retirement from the Board on May 17, 2024 and
therefore the Company was not in compliance with rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules which requires the Audit Committee must be
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director. Upon the
appointment of Mr. Victor HUANG as the chairman of the Audit
Committee on June 25, 2024, the Company is in compliance with
rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Both Mr. Victor HUANG and Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT are
qualified accountants with extensive experience in financial
reporting and controls.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process and discussing with
the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit. It is also
responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial information,
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing the
interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending them
to the Board for approval. To this end, the Audit Committee has
unrestricted access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(the “HKEX”).

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review
financial reporting and risk management and internal control
matters. The chairman of the Risk Management Committee
(who is also an Executive Director and the Company Secretary),
the Associate Director of Group Internal Audit (“IA”), the Head
of the Group’s Finance function together with the IA Advisor,
SHINEWING Risk Services Limited (“SHINEWING”) collectively,
the (“IA Team”), and representatives of the external auditor of the
Company are expected to attend the meetings. At the discretion
of the Audit Committee, other members of management may also
be invited to attend its meetings.
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In 2024, the Audit Committee held two meetings. During the
meetings, the Audit Committee, alongside the external auditor,
reviewed the audit strategy summary, the final results for the
year ended December 31, 2023 and the interim results for the
six months ended June 30, 2024. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the activities of the IA team and its internal audit
report, and discussed with the Board the report’s findings
and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Furthermore, it also evaluated, together with Management, the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems to ensure
its effectiveness, paying particular attention to the adequacy
of resources, the qualifications and experience of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting staff, as well as their training
programs and budget.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place
during the year, all of which were fully exempt from reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor during the year under review.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee comprising
five Board members, the majority of which are Independent
Non-executive Directors, and is now chaired by Mr. TSANG On
Yip, Patrick (the Chairman of the Board). Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen,
Peter automatically ceased to be chairman of the Nomination
Committee upon his removal from his position as Director on April
3, 2024.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and
to identify individuals qualified to become Board members. It is
also responsible for assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put
forward for consideration and, where appropriate, adoption by
the Board. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and the HKEX.
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In 2024, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to
review the board diversity policy and the nomination policy, to
review the structure, size, composition, skills and diversity matrix
of the Board, to recommend the rotation list of Directors to the
Board, to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors. In addition, the Nomination Committee
also recommended the Board to approve the appointment
of Directors, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive and
membership of Board committees in place of relevant vacancies
arising from resignation and removal of directorship.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific
needs from time-to-time in determining the optimal composition
of the Board. In view of this, a board diversity policy was
adopted by the Board in 2013, the Nomination Committee
has set measurable objectives based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including, but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidate(s) will bring to the Board. The board diversity
policy focuses on the following areas:

() increasing diversity at the Board level, which is considered
an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage;

(i)  differences in the skills, regional and industry experiences,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors;

(i) determining the optimum composition of the Board,
which, where and when possible, should be balanced
appropriately; and

(iv) appointments of directors being made on the basis of merit,
in the context of the skills and experience that the Board as
a whole requires in order to be effective.

The Nomination Committee at least annually reviews the Board
Diversity Policy and the policy was last reviewed on November 7,
2024.
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The current Board composition reflects a balanced mix
of age, educational background, professional knowledge,
industry experience and length of service to the Board which
is appropriate for the needs of the business of the Group. The
diversity mix of the Board as at December 31, 2024 and up to the
date of this report is summarized below:

As at December 31, 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
Board consists of eleven members, four of whom are executive
directors, three are non-executive directors and four are
independent non-executive directors who have served on the
Board for a period ranging from 9 months to 24 years. The Board
is composed of professionals with retail, marketing, real estate,
investment, accounting, finance, general management, academic
and legal backgrounds. Of the eleven Directors, 1 member was
aged between 30-39, five members were aged between 40-49,
four members were aged between 50-59, and 1 member was
aged between 60-69.

As at December 31, 2024 and up to the date of this report,
the Company has two female directors (approximately 18.2%
female representation at the Board) which increased by one as
compared to last year. The Company is committed to increasing
the female representation on the Board gradually over time. When
considering new members for the Board, appointments will be
made by considerations of objective criteria and due regard will
be made to achieving and maintaining an appropriate balance in
diversity, including in terms of gender, on the Board. Whilst the
Board is conscious of achieving gender diversity on the Board
when considering potential candidates, all appointments will
be made on the basis of merit, taking into account the needs
of the Group at the relevant time and the availability of suitable
candidates.

Gender Diversity of Workforce

As at December 31, 2024, the Group had 6,627 employees,
approximately 70% of whom were female. As at December
31, 2024, the senior executives of the Group comprised
approximately 61.7% female members, including heads of
departments, general managers in various markets, People &
Culture Director, Brand Director and Associate Director of Internal
Control. The Board regularly assesses the Group’s diversity
profile of all levels of employees and considers the diversity
policy to attract, retain and motivate employees from the widest
possible pool of available talent. The Board considers that the
gender ratio of the workforce of the Group, including the senior
executives, is appropriate for the operations of the Group and will
strive to maintain this ratio.
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Nomination Policy

In view of the amendments to the CG Code which took effect
from January 1, 2019, on November 8, 2018, the Nomination
Committee adopted a director nomination policy with updates
on November 3, 2022, which sets out the selection criteria
and nomination procedures and process when considering
candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as Directors.

In the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee will follow
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria as
follows:

° Reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board composition in line with the
Company'’s strategic objectives;

° Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members on merit and in accordance with the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee shall consider suitability
of a candidate pursuant to the Listing Rules, the nomination
policy and board diversity policy, and the independence of
an individual for the position of independent non-executive
director; and

° Selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Board members,
taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy
and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy
from time-to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at
the relevant time. This policy was last reviewed on November 7,
2024,

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five Board members,
the majority of which are Independent Non-executive Directors,
and is chaired by Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu), an
Independent Non-executive Director.
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The Company adopted Code Provision E.1.2(c)(i) out of the
two models suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for (i) making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure relating to
remuneration and compensation for all Directors and senior
management, (ii) determining, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management and (iii) making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for reviewing and/
or approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. When the remuneration package of an
individual Director is under review, the Director in question is
required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of interest.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
revised on January 1, 2023 in accordance with the amendments
to Listing Rules relating to share schemes and the updated terms
of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
the HKEX.

In 2024, the Remuneration Committee held four meetings to
review and approve the remuneration of the Chairman and
Chief Executive and to review and approve the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior executives.
In addition, the Remuneration Committee also recommended the
Board to approve the remuneration package of Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors and also
approved terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts as
senior management. No member of the Remuneration Committee
was involved in deciding their own remuneration. During the
year, there were no material matters relating to the share option
scheme of the Company which required review or approval by the
Remuneration Committee.
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Remuneration Policy

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting,
retaining and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the
Company works to ensure that remuneration is competitive and
aligned with the Company’s objectives and performance. The
Company takes into consideration a number of relevant factors
in determining its remuneration policy, including the salaries paid
by comparable companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope,
employment conditions in the Group, market practices and the
financial and non-financial performance of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as the
fees paid by comparable companies, time commitment, the
responsibilities and likely workload of the relevant Directors and
other employment conditions in the Company to ensure that the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors are appropriately remunerated for their time and
responsibilities to the Company.

The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees,
(including the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive
Directors), is composed of fixed compensation, cash
performance bonuses, variable cash incentives, long-term
incentives and retirement schemes, as discussed below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary,
allowances and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and
allowances are set and reviewed annually for each position,
taking into consideration the Company’s remuneration policy, the
Company’s and the individual’s performance as well as market
conditions and practices. Benefits are regularly reviewed and
determined, given the global reach of the Group’s business,
largely on the basis of local standards and practices.

Employees may also be eligible to receive an annual cash bonus
based on their performance at the Group, business unit and
individual levels. The bonuses awarded to the Chairman and
Chief Executive, the Executive Directors and senior executives
are reviewed and approved by the Remuneration Committee
(provided that any member of the Remuneration Committee
shall not participate in review and approval of his own bonus).
In addition, the Company operates sales and business-related
incentive schemes to motivate certain staff such as front-line
sales associates to achieve specific sales or other business
targets of the Company.
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The share option scheme of the Company (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) expired on June 9, 2021. However, the options
granted before the expiry date under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the terms of issue. The details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme,
together with information on options exercised and outstanding in
respect of the Directors and employees as at December 31, 2024
under the scheme, are set out in the “Share Option Information”
section of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company participates
in a MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments are
set out in Note 10 to the financial statements on pages 158 to
161 of this annual report.

OTHER COMMITTEES

The Company has established other committees to support the
Board and the Board Committees in their governance roles and
responsibilities.

Risk Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the
review of its effectiveness to the Risk Management Committee.
Further details on the composition of the Risk Management
Committee and the work carried out by the Risk Management
Committee are set out under the section of “Risk Management
and Internal Control” below. The principal duties of the Risk
Management Committee include oversight and advising on risk
exposure of the Group, assessment of the risk profile and risk
management capabilities of the Group, development and review
of the efficacy of the Group’s internal financial controls, internal
controls and risk management systems, ensuring contingency/
crisis plans and procedures are in place, amongst other things.
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Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Management
Committee. The Management Committee is fully accountable to
the Board and comprises the Chief Executive and the Executive
Directors together with one senior executives’ representative. The
terms of reference of the Management Committee are available
on the website of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining
appropriate and effective control of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, particularly in respect of financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and, as such, monitors the effectiveness on an ongoing
basis.

Appropriate policies and procedures have been put in
place to safeguard the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; control over capital expenditure; maintain proper
and accurate accounting records and enhance the reliability of
financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency and effectiveness
of operations and compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement, loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the Group’s operational
systems.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control framework
includes the following major components:

An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

Systems and procedures of financial control, risk
management and internal control to identify and measure
risks and conduct bi-annual risk assessment to monitor the
progress of risk mitigation;

Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting
systems for performance measurement, including regular
variance analysis against budgets and plans, and setting
key business performance targets with appropriate
measures to rectify deficiencies;

Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review
and approval of significant contracts, major capital and
recurrent expenditures;

A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow anonymously and
confidentially report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct (including that of the Directors and senior
executives), to the Internal Audit Department which will refer
the report to the chairman of the Audit Committee for further
action;

An “anti-corruption” mechanism in place to promote
and support compliance with anti-corruption laws and
regulations and provide guidelines to the employees
about their responsibilities to prevent fraud, to help the
Group defend against corrupt practices and to report any
suspected case of fraud and corruption or any attempts
thereof, to the management or through an appropriate
reporting channel. The Group has a zero-tolerance
approach to all forms of fraud and corruption among all
employees and those acting in an agency or fiduciary
capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing
with third parties; and

Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
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As at December 31, 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
Risk Management Committee comprises four members, including
the Head of Group’s Compliance function, the Head of the
Group’s Internal Audit function, the Head of the Group’s Finance
function and a senior executives’ representative. During the year,
the Company has engaged SHINEWING, an external professional
firm, as our Internal Audit Advisor to assist the internal audit
function of the Company. The Risk Management Committee
reviews all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, in accordance with the Code Provisions on
risk management and internal control systems of the CG Code,
and reports to the Board twice a year. The Risk Management
Committee is fully accountable to the Board for providing
assurance on managing and monitoring the systems of risk
management and internal controls.

During the year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated
and was satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function as well as their training programmes
and budget for the accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
functions, as well as those relating to the Company’s ESG
performance and reporting, and reported to the Board that in all
material respects the systems of risk management and internal
control over risks associated with the Group’s operations was
sufficient, appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing
basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the
IA team plays a major role in monitoring the risk management and
internal controls of the Group.
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The IA team has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the
Group’s key activities, risk management, control and governance
processes and the keys tasks of |A team include:

° Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the
units and subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

° Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;

o Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and
other Group policy violations; and

° Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.

Adopting a risk-based approach, the IA Team implements the
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee and Management,
which is based on a risk assessment methodology. It furnishes
independent and objective evaluations and recommendations in
the form of an internal audit report to Management. The IA team
reports directly to the Audit Committee twice a year on major
findings, corrective actions and responses from Management.
The Audit Committee has free and direct access the IA team
without reference from the Chairman or Management.

During the year, the IA Team issued the internal audit reports to
the Audit Committee and Management, which covered significant
business processes and activities of the Group. It worked with
Management to establish action plans to address any identified
control weaknesses. During the review, there was no material
internal control weaknesses identified, but the IA Team continues
to be vigilant in monitoring the internal control processes of
the Group. Post-audit reviews were performed to ensure those
agreed actions have been implemented as intended.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, and has been
updated from time-to-time. Having made specific enquiries with
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions in respect of their securities
transactions (if any) throughout their tenure during the year ended
December 31, 2024.

In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Specified Employees, which governs
the securities transactions of those employees who may possess
or have access to inside information. The said code covers areas
such as prohibitions and conduct in the dealing of the Company’s
securities, avoidance of conflict of interests and confidentiality of
the Company’s information, etc. All the specified employees are
reminded of the compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Specified Employees every six months.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for each financial period to ensure that
they give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group, its financial performance and cash flows for that period.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently, and that where judgment has been applied
and estimates made, they are prudent and reasonabile.

The statement by the external auditor of the Group,
Pricewaterhouse Coopers, regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
92 to 98 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary
since September 2013. He is also an Executive Director, the
General Counsel and an employee of the Group. Mr. LOYND is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and
Chief Executive on governance matters and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in 2024.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there were no changes to the constitutional
documents of the Company. An up to date set of the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-Laws are available on
the website of the HKEX and the website of the Company.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning Shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the
major emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations.
The Group’s senior management keeps a constant and open
dialogue with the investment community through company visits,
conference calls, information sessions and participation in major
investor conferences to communicate clearly the Company’s
business strategies, developments and prospects. About ten
meetings with institutional investors and research analysts were
held in 2024.

The Company has a wide and diverse Shareholder base of
institutional and retail investors. To ensure all Shareholders have
equal and timely access to important company information,
the Company proactively utilizes the internet and other forms
of electronic communication to deliver information in a timely
and transparent manner. To strike a balance between keeping
Shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance on the one
hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results on
the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial
results. Instead, the Company publishes operations updates
for the first three and nine month periods on the websites of
the Company and HKEX. Annual and interim reports, Stock
Exchange filings, press releases and other materials are also
accessible on the Company’s website.

The Board has established a Shareholders Communication Policy
and reviews this policy annually to ensure its effectiveness to
enhance Shareholders’ relationship with the Company and to
comply with the relevant rules and the CG Code. Such policy
aims at providing the Shareholders and potential investors
with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company.
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As set out in the Shareholders Communication Policy, the
Company has established a number of channels for maintaining
an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Corporate Communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are provided to Shareholders in both
English and Chinese by sending or otherwise making
available to the Shareholders using electronic means.
Corporate Communications are also available on the
websites of the Company and the HKEX. Shareholders can
also request to receive the corporate communications in
printed form;

financial highlights, press releases and results presentations
are also posted on the Company’s website;

periodic announcements, corporate information and any
changes to the Bye-Laws are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
HKEX and the Company;

participation by the Board members and the Head of
Group’s Finance function in investors’ conferences to meet
Shareholders/investors, media and financial analyst;

AGMs and/or general meetings provide a forum for the
Shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management; and

enquiries may be raised with the Company by telephone
at (852) 2746 4668, by facsimile at (852) 2370 8864, by
e-mail at investorrelations@giordano.com or by post to the
Company'’s principal place of business for the time being.
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All Directors and key senior management members use their
best efforts to attend the Shareholder meetings and, during
their attendance, they are actively engaged in dialogue, with the
Shareholders who wish to exchange views with them. During the
year, the Board has examined and reviewed the Shareholders
Communication Policy. Having considered the implementation
and effectiveness of multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place, the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders
Communication Policy has been properly implemented during the
year and is effective.

The Board welcomes Shareholders’ views on matters affecting
the Group, and encourages their attendance at Shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they may have with
the Board or Management directly. The Company’s AGM is an
especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholder attendance at its AGM, the Company gives at least
21 clear days’ prior notice. To ensure clear communication,
each substantially separate issue is proposed under a separate
resolution.

Investors and Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may
do so by contacting our Investor Relations Department whose
contact details are listed on page 208 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
has adopted a policy with regard to the declaration of dividends
on November 8, 2018. Such policy aims to allow Shareholders
to participate in the Company’s profits and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Company intends to return surplus cash to the Shareholders
through the payment of dividends, which is subject to the
Company’s capacity to pay from accumulated and future
earnings, cash availability and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend.

The Company may also consider declaring special dividends from
time-to-time, in addition to the semi-annual dividends (if any).
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The Company’s income and its ability to pay dividends are
dependent upon, among other matters, the dividends received
from the Company’s subsidiaries, which, in turn, would depend
on such subsidiaries’ distributable profits, operating results,
financial condition, capital expenditure plans and other factors.
The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under
Bermuda law and the Bye-Laws.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay dividends,
subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company,
where applicable. Even if the Board decides to recommend and
pay dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon
the operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial condition, contractual restrictions and other
factors of and affecting the Group.

The Dividend Policy reflects the Company’s approach on the
financial and cash flow requirements of the Group prevailing at
the time of its adoption. The Board will review the policy from
time-to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the
relevant time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a special general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10)
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant
to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to
be called can be sent to the Company’s registered office and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong as set out in the
“Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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Procedures for Shareholders to make a proposal at a
general meeting

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth
(1/20) of the total voting rights of the Company having, on
the date of the requisition, a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requisition relates; or

(b) notless than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by all the
requisitionists concerned, together with a statement with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the
Company'’s registered office and its principal place of business
in Hong Kong, in the case of a requisition requiring a notice of
a resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting and, in
the case of any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting. The Company will take appropriate action and make
necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned will be
responsible for any expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of
the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th
Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Hong Kong, March 26, 2025
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s,
women’s and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned
and licensed brands. Although targeting different market
segments, the brands all strive to deliver excellent quality, value
and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by
brand for the year ended December 31, 2024 is set out in Note 5
to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” (section on pages 11 to 33 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group can be found throughout this annual report,
particularly in Note 3 to the financial statements. No important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
financial year under review. The outlook of the Group’s business
is discussed in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report. Certain financial
key performance indicators which complement and supplement
our financial disclosures are set out on pages 99 to 200 as well
as in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section. An
account of the Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders
and discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are included in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages ESG.1 to ESG.60 of this annual
report.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the
Group. The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, with the support and assistance of the
legal and company secretarial department.

The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
laws of Hong Kong) and the SFO as well as their subsidiary
legislation, codes and guidelines are the principal sources of
our compliance obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also
apply to our non-Hong Kong operations, and both in Hong Kong
and elsewhere, we rely on the assistance of external law firms
and professional advisers to manage our legal and compliance
risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in
laws and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also
regularly remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024
and the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 99 to 200 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 8.0 HK cents per share was paid to
shareholders of the Company on September 20, 2024.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 6.0 HK cents
per share for the year ended December 31, 2024. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
AGM, the final dividend will be payable on June 20, 2025 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on June 10, 2025.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2024, the retained profits of the Company
together with the contributed surplus available for distribution
amounted to HK$777 million (2023: HK$673 million).
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2024 are set out in Note 41 to the financial
statements.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are shown in Note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
Laws although there are no restrictions against having such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option scheme as disclosed
under “Share Option Information” section in this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 30%
Five largest suppliers combined 53%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers is less than 10% during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable donation has been made by the Group during the
year (2023: HK$21,000).

BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans for the year are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the period beginning with the end of the year ended
December 31, 2024 and ending on the date of this report, the
Directors are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE
(Chief Executive)

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND

Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (Chairman)
Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia
Mr. CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

Mr. Victor HUANG

Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin
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During the year under review, the changes to the composition of
the Board were as follows:

1. On April 3, 2024, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter was removed
from his position as a Director, as a result of which he also
automatically ceased to be the Chairman of the Board. On
April 5, 2024 he was also terminated the position of Chief
Executive.

2. Mr. Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE was appointed as
Executive Director on April 3, 2024 and was appointed as
Chief Executive on April 5, 2024.

3. On April 5, 2024, Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob was re-designated
from Non-executive Director to Executive Director.

4. On April 5, 2024, Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick, a Non-
executive Director, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board.

5. On April 3, 2024, both Ms. CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia and Mr.
CHENG Chi Leong, Christopher were appointed as Non-
executive Directors.

6. On May 17, 2024, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT retired as a
Director, after which he ceased to be an Independent Non-
executive Director.

7.  Mr. Victor HUANG was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on April 3, 2024.

8. On June 25, 2024, Mr. CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director.

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-Laws, Dr.
CHAN Ka Wai, Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob and Professor WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu) shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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In accordance with Bye-Law 83(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. CHAU
Kwok Wing Kelvin, being a Director appointed by the Board
as subsequent to the last AGM, shall hold office only until the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 34 to 43 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed under “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” section on pages 34 and 43 to this annual report, there
is no other change in the Directors’ biographical details which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(B)(1) of the
Listing Rules since the report date of 2024 Interim Report of the
Company.

In respect of the change in emoluments of Directors, please refer
to note 10 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM do not have any service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officers of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise
in relation thereto, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of said persons. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

RERABDRDREBERG ZFE
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
FrisEBEREA
Number of ordinary shares held
hEe &7
AREERA
PTHETER#R BHABRDsH
(B HE) (Hf3+3)
B AR (BHzE1%2) Approximate
(Btat1) Derivative percentage of
EEnE Personal interests &5t issued voting
Name of Directors interests (share options) Total shares
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3)
Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIE 880,000 - 880,000 0.05%
PR3 756,000 6,700,000 7,456,000 0.46%
CHAN Ka Wai
BEX - 7,064,000 7,064,000 0.44%

Mark Alan LOYND

(1) REBRDIEABEFEREntiEANFENE

ZS o

(2)  PTAETA#EZRZIHERGTIZAE N FIRNZ BB
FEMRFEERZERE  BEEMNHIIRAFR
FL01HZRF207F -

(3)  #ZR2024F 12531 HA X A] 2 77 AR Z 1R (7
1,616,174,518}% 515 -
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Notes:

(1) This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial
owners.

2) Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to
the share option scheme of the Company and details of which are set out

on pages 201 to 207 of this annual report.

(3) Based on 1,616,174,518 issued voting shares of the Company as at
December 31, 2024.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the material related party transactions are disclosed in
Note 37 to the financial statements of this annual report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under “Share Option Information” section on
pages 201 to 207 to this annual report, at no time during the year
under review was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
businesses.
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%ﬂiﬂ,k THKH KREBER#EG INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSON
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

AN EERESTHAEE - 72024 So far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the
A

F12831H » T AT (BRA,
TERABINRARR Z KD

ﬁ/\uaﬁﬁ/\\uﬁ% HHE R 1
= EﬂﬁWZ%ﬁﬁ‘i‘))\(mﬁ

RAERARGREBRO ZHFR

LTi%&E—E Company, as at December 31, 2024, the following persons
sk AHEARR (D #  (other than Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
36{%%,%&7(? interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the

Company
EEBT
ARZERG
BB
(Hi7#3)
g BEREE Approximate
Number of percentage of
BRRERE E2) ordinary &3t issued voting
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held Total shares
(Note 3)
(a) FERR
Substantial shareholders
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited ~ SE4IEE 2 # & 388,180,000 388,180,000 24.02%
(Hiz#Note 1) Interest of controlled
corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited ~ S1E4IEE 2 # & 388,180,000 388,180,000 24.02%
(Hiz#Note 1) Interest of controlled
corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited R Az #R 388,180,000 388,180,000 24.02%
(Bi#Note 1) Interest of controlled
corporation
B (ER) AR AR ([ EAREER]) R Az #R 388,180,000 388,180,000 24.02%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFH")  Interest of controlled
(BitNote 1) corporation
FARBREABRAR(TEANEBREA)  XEHZEE#n 388,180,000 388,180,000 24.02%
Chow Tai Fook Nommee Limited (“CTFN”) Interest of controlled
(BtitNote 1) corporation
EZBRERARA(ES]) BERAA 388,180,000 388,180,000 24.02%
Sino Wealth International Limited Beneficial owner
(“Sino Wealth”)
(b) HftAzx
Other person
David Michael WEBB ERBAA 33,627,600)
Beneficial owner
REGEE 2w 47,226,400) 80,854,000 5.00%
Interest of controlled (Hithote 2)
corporation
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1. R2024%F12H31H - #F+4£388,180,000 %
RNARG  ABEAXEREALEHE - MHAX
EICEEA B B B K51 BR#E7% © Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited K Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings 1l) Limited % Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited 7 5| % 5 #148.98% X 46.65% &
# * fiChow Tai Fook Capital Limited Bl & A
EIEIR 5 E #781.03% #a » Bt Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings 1) Limited - Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited ~ JE X8R R FAX B EA #8
RREZHIFAR LA PR -

2. 47,226,400 & fig 17 B Preferable Situation Assets
Limited#5 6 + A M David Michael WEBBZ E# A °

3. HR2024F 12 H31 HA L
1,616,174,518K51 & -

Bﬁtxﬁmﬁ EESN - R2024%12A31H &
NAWBERARRNR 2RO REBRO TP #ES
AR ARRRIRIEFE S M EIEPIE3361K1F

EZERMzERSIAR -

A ETARERERLD

EXREBALIRS
AEBRAFEANTINEABBALRS

(IRE MR THEREERS)  EFEHR
BTG IR R MI5E37 -

BREER

BREAS ZHEBERARRBRERANEENRN
2B FBEENAFRE201BEEF207H o
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Notes:

1. As at December 31, 2024, 388,180,000 shares of the Company were held
by Sino Wealth which is wholly-owned by CTFN, which in turn is controlled
by CTFH. Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited held approximately 48.98% and 46.65% interest
in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which in turn held an
approximate 81.03% interest in CTFH and accordingly each of Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited,
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, CTFH and CTFN is deemed to have an
interest in the shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth.

2. The 47,226,400 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited,
which is wholly-owned by David Michael WEBB.

3. Based on 1,616,174,518 issued voting shares of the Company as at
December 31, 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, the
Company had not been notified of any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which do not constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are set out in Note 37 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of
the movement in share options of the Company during the year
are set out on pages 201 to 207 of this annual report.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HZE2024F12A31HIEFER - AN a A
RFETEEREIA H£610,000i EHAK - RARE H
B ARAIEEMERBERGD - EFRAE
BRROERBAAGHEREEKIS ZE
D RERBRARAIERERE - WAKAQ A
RERAEEE BEAARRBELORD ZF BN
T

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2024, a total of 610,000
ordinary shares were repurchased by the Company on the Stock
Exchange. As at the date of this report, all the repurchased
shares were cancelled by the Company. The Directors believe
that the repurchases were made to reflect the Company’s
confidence in its long-term business prospects and would
ultimately benefit the Company and create value for the
shareholders of the Company. Details of the repurchases of
shares of the Company were as follows:

BoAaE

(BT)

BRESER BREEER (HIBRBAZ AT)

BERGEE (#7t) (&) Aggregate

Number of Highest price Lowest price purchase price

BE A5 shares paid per share paid per share (HK$)
Month of repurchase repurchased (HK$) (HK$) (before expenses)
202441 A 610,000 2.03 1.96 1,221,920

January 2024

HZE2024F12A31HIEFEEAREHE -
RN BN BB E R EFERGD -

NBRERE
RARERH - BREARBAIUGEEZAHE
BRBEMEZBRT  ARREE EHRA
ZER HRBERARTRREE

TEEAR
RABBNERRRKFEZEEE R UERE
SERERE ASUDREREEZ - BEAA
BIEERERNER  BRAFRFAMESE
FTOETEEABREE -
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During the year ended December 31, 2024 and up to the date of
this report, no treasury shares were held by the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance so as to ensure better transparency
and protection of shareholders’ interests. Information on the
Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 44 to 79 of this annual
report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The employees of the Group are selected, remunerated
and promoted on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence. Please refer to Note 2 to the financial statements
for details of the retirement benefits provided to employees of the
Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market standards. Particulars of the emoluments of
Directors on a named basis for the year are set out in Note 10 to
the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to
re- appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent auditor
of the Company and to authorize the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed for approval at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Mark Alan LOYND
Executive Director and Company Secretary

Hong Kong, March 26, 2025
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To the Members of
Giordano International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 99 to 200, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to
impairment assessment of goodwill.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BRETER BANETNAEREEARETSE
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB R EF

Impairment assessment of goodwill

m%ﬁAﬁﬂﬁﬁ§W&MW¥% ZaIEE

T(/;ﬁ/f/f itog) R EEZ g i E KA Yl
i) °

Refer to note 24 “Goodwill”, Accounting

Policies note 2(j) and Critical Accounting

Estimates and Judgements in note 4(ii) to the

consolidated financial statements

Goodwill of HK$541 million on the
consolidated balance sheet arose from the
acquisitions of the Giordano Gulf Cooperation
Council businesses (the “Gulf Cooperation
Council Business”), which has been allocated
to a group of cash generating units (“CGUs”)
for the purpose of goodwill impairment
testing.

BRI AR AEEAEEBR SRR
LR A R
ARSI A 7 B A 25 55 8 AR T

The assessments of the recoverable amount
of the group of CGUs for the Gulf Cooperation
Council Business were based on the cash
flow projections prepared by management,
using fair value less costs of disposal
calculations.

ﬁTFﬁF‘?/IEZ%ﬁ%%E%%%TE*;EZI”%/F&%E
BN ABERAIER B S XBHARRER

PRYEH) & 2 #Ilf -

We focused on these balances because
the valuation models involve significant
judgements made by management about the
future results of the Gulf Cooperation Council
Business.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FIEEETLE - [ RPERELEEERRA Y fMEE

ﬁ?ﬂib%ﬁ_ LA%TSEEEE’HEJ/AL%:EE’MKFH °©

We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing
the appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the
process by which the models were drawn up and compared the
underlying inputs to the latest Board approved budget. We also
compared historical actual results to those budgeted to assess
the effectiveness of management’s estimation process.

BAZEE@ITEPEANBREBREGA @ FHI2 .
We have focused on the key assumptions and mputs used in the
calculations, particularly:

c RAMBERBRBAETRE ngETﬁEFA% NEMITERMBEREE
H AL B § E’Jé%ﬁﬁzzrkﬁuxﬁﬁfﬁﬂ_fr%ﬁ
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed these
against the cost of capital of the relevant companies and
industry and country specific comparable entities;

- EHEEREMERRASELEIMBLARS  QAE
LRERE ORI AT SRR R gL
- B S ES E B B ER ~

%H | RMEMBER AL EIERIAET T R

the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal
growth rates for the CGUs, as these were considered to
be the key drivers of the valuation of the Gulf Cooperation
Council Business. We compared management’s
assumptions of these against external retail industry outlook
reports and country specific economic growth forecasts
from different sources.

BPTHEEEYHEREPARATERINEGIEREHY
REEFEETHANKESENFRE -

We evaluated management’s sensitivity of a reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions adopted in the valuation models
to the recoverable amounts of the group of CGUs.

HIRBEEAMBRELERFTEBEARENEOREESRRE -
We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures relating to the
impairment assessment in the context of applicable financial
reporting standards.
ERREZERE KRR ERENBENTGFERANHENRE
BEREEBEZ R -

We found that management’s judgements and assumptions used

in the impairment assessment were supportable, based on the
available evidence obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Chui Man.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE2024F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(BrEREFIS) - (In HK$ million, Hiat

UK EEE THEN) except earnings per share) Note 2024 2023
WA Revenue 5 3,919 3,873
SHE B Cost of sales 7 (1,685) (1,610)
EAF Gross profit 2,234 2,263
HUWg AR EMUES - 7% Other income and other gains, net 6 52 68
DIHE A Distribution expense 7 (1,670) (1,630)
THER Administrative expense 7 (239) (198)
K A Operating profit 7 377 503
HEEM Finance expense 8 (46) (40)
Bt —M&aE R rEH Share of profit of a joint venture 20 20 45
& BT 1S AT i A Profit before income taxes 5 351 508
FriSHi Income taxes 11 (99) (119)
REERBRAEBHEER Profit after income taxes for the year 252 389
FEAh - Attributable to:

ZINNE ) 3 Shareholders of the Company 216 345

FEFE B Non-controlling interests 36 44

252 389

AABIREEMLZ Earnings per share attributable to

BRAaF shareholders of the Company 12

ERCGEM) Basic (HK cents) 13.4 21.6

g (BN) Diluted (HK cents) 13.3 29 4
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EEERaE R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZE2024F 12 A31H L FE
For the year ended December 31, 2024
HiiF
(U B&FTAENN) (In HK$ million) Note 2024 2023
KEEREHERT Profit after income taxes for the year 252 389
Hitmas Other comprehensive income:
TeEHNERBRECEE ¢ Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
REMGE IR DA ERIE,  Fair value change on financial asset at fair value
EREEAREED through other comprehensive income 19 2 2)
LI YNSIE 2 Exchange adjustments on translation of
JElE 2 R B H % overseas subsidiaries which are attributed to
the non-controlling interests (5) -
SR EFHERIBRECEE ¢ ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
BINHBAT - —MA%AFK  Exchange adjustments on translation of overseas
DRA] 2 BEE N R subsidiaries, a joint venture and branches (66) (10)
REFBEREWE Total comprehensive income for the year 183 377
PE1 - Attributable to:
ARERR Shareholders of the Company 152 333
FEE M AE R Non-controlling interests 39 44
183 377

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

HiaE

(XB&EETAREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2024 2023
BE ASSETS
REBEE Current assets
He NRTTEF Cash and bank balances 14 836 935
JFE L B X B L Ath JiE U 3R Trade and other receivables 16 342 319
FE Inventories 17 508 474
HeBNFKIE Rental prepayments 18 2 3
IR =l AT 1S A 3K Income tax recoverable 4 4
REEELE Total current assets 1,692 1,735
RBEE Non-current assets
REMGAWEFIRAALERIE  Financial asset at fair value through other

ZERMEE comprehensive income 19 3 1
REZEREAAERE Financial asset at fair value through

JEMEE profit or loss 15 28 28
e REMEI R Deposits and other receivables 16 88 74
—HEeERRER Interest in a joint venture 20 414 494
BEME Investment properties 21 14 16
W B NERE Property, plant and equipment 22 160 166
FRELSE Right-of-use assets 23 805 762
FEES Goodwill 24 541 541
EERIEEE Deferred tax assets 32 21 39
FRBEELTE Total non-current assets 2,074 2,121
EEHAE Total assets 3,766 3,856
EENER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
nREAE Current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 29 26 30
JE A~ AR R K2 ELAth JE £~ 3K Trade and other payables 30 611 552
HEAaE Lease liabilities 23 328 329
BEZHREAE Put option liabilities 31 81 81
JES TSR Income tax payables 88 104
nRBEEEE Total current liabilities 1,134 1,096
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EHEEREER(E)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

HiaE

(A BEETHEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2024 2023
ERBEME Non-current liabilities
EIETRIEaE Deferred tax liabilities 32 95 111
HiIEmEams Other non-current liabilities 33 417 337
FREBEELE Total non-current liabilities 512 448
SERE Total liabilities 1,646 1,544
B AR i1 Capital and reserves
PN Share capital 25 81 81
Er Reserves 28 1,820 1,890
R B Proposed dividends 13 97 218
AT R E LR Equity attributable to shareholders of

the Company 1,998 2,189
FEVE SR Non-controlling interests 26 122 123
RRAH Total equity 2,120 2,312
EnkBEAE Total equity and liabilities 3,766 3,856
BREBEE Net current assets 558 639
EERBERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,632 2,760
REE EEY
CHAN Ka Wai Mark Alan LOYND
E EE
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERE R

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HZE2024F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2024
Hiat

(U B & TREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2024 2023
mEEK Operating activities:
K TSR A 7 Profit before income taxes 351 508
FE Adjustments for:
i S XN i Share of profit of a joint venture 20 (20) (45)
RIBEHEREANBERE Y Fair value loss on financial asset at

TREEZ ANBEEE fair value through profit or loss 6 = 6
e B FHIBEE Amortization of rental prepayments 18 1 1
FEHBA Interest income 6 (15) (23)
M - HES RERE A Depreciation of property, plant and

REMENE equipment and investment properties 7, 21,22 62 53
CREESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7, 23 420 412
HEWE  BRRREZ Net loss on disposal of property,

FEE plant and equipment 6 4 1
Y - s RSB Impairment of property, plant

B EE and equipment 7, 22 1 -
EREEE REEE Impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 23 3 -
BREFERER Net provision for obsolete stock and

FEMIEFE stock written off 7 2 3
FEW AR TR R Change in loss allowance for trade receivables 7,16 3 (4)
BEER Finance expense 8 46 40
LEES - NMERFFER Operating cash inflow before changes in

BER 2 KEWER working capital, interest and income taxes 858 952
FEz0GEmEL (Increase) decrease in inventories (31) 135
FEWBR X N E At FE U 2 (Increase) decrease in trade and

() w4 other receivables (49) 24
JERTBRAR N H b B 52 Increase (decrease) in trade and other

ZOR L) payables 90 (18)
KRETBMEE RS Cash generated from operations 868 1,093
EAREAIESS Interest paid (46) (40)
ENEBMNEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (6) @)
BB Overseas tax paid (106) (109)
REERCESRANEEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 710 942
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EHRERER(E)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

HE2024F12A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Hiat
(X BEEETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2024 2023
REXK : Investing activities:
BEWE W NERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment 22 (66) (87)
e R EMEW R Z 18 Increase in deposits and other receivables - 4)
RITTEFER 2R A (1)  Decrease (increase) in bank time deposits 14 163 (115)
AR Interest received 6 15 23
Bl—MEERRIRE Dividends received from a joint venture 20 37 28
REXBZHRERA Net cash inflow (outflow) from
OfiH) 88 investing activities 149 (155)
REER Financing activities:
Ze REMBERHRZ Decrease (increase) in deposits and
A (g ) other receivable 6 (1)
HMEBBEzASIEH» 23 Payment for principal elements of
lease liabilities 36 (408) (400)
BITIRAFT1E5IR Proceeds from issue of shares 5 A7
Petn @8R Share repurchase (1) -
HE—RHNBARZ Proceeds from disposal of partial interest
ot 2 TS 5IE in a subsidiary - 2
WEE—RMEB AR Z Payment for acquisition of additional
RRIMER Z TR interest in a subsidiary - ©)
BT FEfE & 1 AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (32) (75)
2R Dividends paid (347) (514)
IR ITE R Addition of bank loans 36 138 123
ERIRITENK Repayment of bank loans 36 (140) (105)
RMEXB 2RSSR TR Net cash outflow from financing activities (779) (926)
HekREEEZ Increase (decrease) in cash and
120 O 2>) cash equivalents 80 (139)
FORERBFSEEEB Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year 720 860
ReRREFEMEER Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
SEoTE on cash and cash equivalents (16) (1)
FRESRBEELEEEB Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year 784 720
BeRBELZHELEZSH  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Ba MBITER Cash and bank balances 14 836 935
B FER={EA N Less: Bank deposits with maturity over
ERHZRITIER three months, from date of deposit (52) (215)

784 720

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(WEE#TAEL)
(In HKS millon)

EHEREED R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE20245F 12 A31BIEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2024

FRARRELRS
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REMEEUE
RAMERER
SHEERSE
X BRE Financial asset Fist
RO&E e at fair value %
s 8- Capital REE Share EXRE EfbffE  through other ity Non- ]
Share  Contributed  redemption Share options Exchange Other  comprehensive Retained &it controlling Total
capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves  income reserve profits Total interests equity

202451 A1R
At January 1, 2024

81 383 3 1,028 16 (94) 124 (U] 655 2,189 123 2312

RERRAEREZEN
Profit after income taxes for the year
Afbalka
Other comprehensive income:
-REMEARERANEREL
SRARLAEHE
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income
- BHERA . —HREAARAAA
REZER R
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture
and branches

fe=1i]

. - - - - (66) - - - (66) () @)

f5ala
Total comprehensive income

N - - - - (66) - 2 216 152 3 183

HRERS

Transactions with shareholders:

Gl

Transfer among reserves

B

Share option scheme
-RirieEREmETIRA

Share issue upon exercise of share options

FERIERRS

Dividends to non-controlling interests

023ERERE W 130)

2023 final dividend (Note 13(b))

04 hEBREMi136)

2024 interim dividend (Note 13(a))

BEZIR (Hizt2o)

Shares repurchased (Note 25(c))

N . . . - - - - - - (32 (32)

i . - - - - - - 218) (218) - (218)

. - - - - - - - (129) (129) - (129)

- - - 5 @ - 1 - (347) (343) (32 (375)

R2024512A31R
At December 31, 2024

81 383 3 1,038 14 (160) 125 ) 524 1,998 122 2,120
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EHEZEBR(E)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

BE20245F12A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2024

AATRREG RS
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REMEERE
BRABREL
SHAERR
g% Bk Financial asset Jie
EOGA 1 atfair value 5
e HARH Capital & E Share 384 Lt through other el Non- ERnE
(HEEETAER) Share  Contributed  redemption Share options Exchange Other ~ comprehensive Retained & controling Total
(In HKS millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves income reserve profits Total interests equity

#2023%1 518
At January 1, 2023 79 383 3 93 2 ®) 118 5 819 2317 205 2522

RERRAEREZEN
Profit after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - 345 345 44 389
Afbala
Other comprehensive income:
-REMEARERANEREL
SREENLENE
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - 2 - v} - 2
-BOMBAA —BAERARALR
BEZEREE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture and
branches - - - - - (10) - - - (10) - (10)

fe=1i]

aaNE
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (10) - 2 345 33 44 317

REMEFARERA L ERE SRHEAENILE
Disposal of financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - - - - - - 1 (1) - - -
BRRRS
Transactions with shareholders:

REEEE
Transfer among reserves - - - - ) - - - 6 - - -
Bzl
Share option scheme
-BiRERERE TR

Share issue upon exercise of share options 2 - - 45 - - - - - 47 - 47
FEHIERRS
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (75) (75)
YE-EREAR EMER
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary - - - - - - 6 - - 6 (83) @7
HE-EMERAZ I ER
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 2 2
2ERERE Wt 130)
2022 final dividend (Note 13/b)) - - - - - - - - (240) (240) - (240)
0BERERE (Wit 138)
2023 interim dividend (Note 13(3) - - - - - - - - (or4) (274) - (o74)

2 - - 4 6) - 6 1 (609) (461) (126) (587)

#20235128318
At December 31, 2023 81 383 3 1,028 16 (94) 124 ) 655 2,189 123 2,312
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) distribute and sell
fashion apparel under the brand names of Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, Beau Monde as well
as other owned and licensed brands through an extensive
network with approximately 1,700 shops spanning over 30
countries and regions.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3,
1995 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, Pembroke HM11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business in Hong Kong is 5th Floor, Tin
On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary listing
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented
in million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) on March 26, 2025.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

2. EXREFEE
WBRABHYBREREANEXRGFTHK

REN T > BRREBRAIN -

It F B R

EFHRRRBFERNERER

(a)

fm B EL

REGBHRRIIRBE B G5HED
RE([BEGFMAE® ) BEMZ
BEMBHRELER(TEERBRE
R AREL - LS - A TRE
BB AES EHARR(T EHR
A1) B 2 RMGB AR TE /Y48 A 3%
BEFR - AAHUBRRILRESL
RAEwE - EETEREENE
B(EBRITETR)RARERE -

HEBREBY B WE ER R
BEABHFERETERGER -
BEETSEAEAAEE &5
BERBELHE - ETHESEH
Broiow RAEMER - KA
BRAEBERTZEZRBRANGERH
ATAREE o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. EXEFEHER(E)

(b)

(c)

BIEFT 2 EANEE
AEBREAUTESSEIAERE
2 A& FT 2 2RI - W 20245 1
B1Bs 2 6BiE 2 ANEB Y KR E
EA

- BAAEREN BEEIER

F1RZ MEBIERE
{ERTA TP R 2
FRBEE

- BAAYUBHRE EREARTH
ERIZF165E HEARE
ZIERT R

- AABREBEST MWK
(R1EFT) H—ERAY
SREENME
5 5 15 3L AN

BHEERH

gor

- BAAGRER HEERE
FTHRRER L
BIR5$RE
ZERIF 7R
PACTIRIN

R | S AT R R T & 8 5
74 58 [ ) £ U B 5 4
R EAZE -

EEMEERERNKBITZ
% B

= A

AREE I HEIT A EAZFCBME
R AR B R] 2 ZE Bl © R EZ
FRAFEH IS H AR E
AR BRERTE -
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202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impact of new and amended standard

The Group has applied the following amended
standards issued by HKICPA, which were effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after
January 1, 2024

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or
Non-current and
Non-current liabilities
with covenants

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Lease liability in sales and
leaseback

Presentation of Financial
Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause

HK Interpretation 5
(Revised)

Amendments to
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The adoption of the above amendments to standards
did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s
accounting policies or financial results or position.

Amended standards issued, but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the amended
standards that have been issued but not yet effective.
The adoption of these is not expected to have a
material impact on the financial results or position of
the Group.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M AL (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2024F12H318

December 31, 2024
2. BERGHHE(E)
(d) MIEBLRA

(i)

B pt

fi B AR AAREIES 2 BiE
(BREBEER) E4X%
EHSRERET TP O H
EERR K FE B ERANEEE
BHERZBNTEZFOR
5 BIESIZ I - I AR
ERtIEEEEASEZHS
HE& AR o B QR EES
BRIEZ AR EAFAR -

REBEO

AEBRABEEHERA G
AR - BENB AR TEES
HE - RAEEREE SR
BOMAIMAEAEENEE -
RASRBBEITHRAEDRNH D
RME - TEENHEEBRSEA
HERMELNTMEEM
BENARE - EEBEHT
B B A SR B B B A K A
EMBELRIBAE  BEMU
RERBEAMOAAER

=
E°

AEBIZER WEEE - ER
FEWEE B 77 ROl SRR i 1 e
m o R B T R IR Bl 1 i e
RERHEAEED - YT
RAEA—BBRRKZIL IR
TRNFEE  AIRAAER
RIS R A AR ah PR 5 R
TRIERFEEMNER SR
BIfmarE o JEEEGIIE R FT
B E M ER D =W B HIEY
NAEE - BRIFBBMHR
TREAREBAAL T EE

A
RTE o

4 D

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share
in the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. EXEFEHER(E)
(d) MELQE (&)

(i)

a6t (&

EBEO(HF)

Y B AR RA R AN IR EE £ B 51 /5 B
i o

fMEBA GO BRETT - W
TTBERBIIE T 758 2 B
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202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combination (continued)

Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognized in profit or
loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interests in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired are recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interests recognized and previously held interests
measured are less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

2. EXEFEHER(E)
(d) BT (&)
(i) &6t(E)

FTEHKXEZH LB L

Atz #E
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ANERRERR S —EMEE
UNEERBESDEITHR
5 > FIXMEREENAAE
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognized in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H

December 31, 2024

2. BEAXEHHBE(E) 2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) BT (&)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) BIMBEHRR
M8 A R E R AR IR E
SRR - XA BERERENE
EHEBRA - [MBARINEEA
AR AR B W R R B A
/HEQ

R BB B R R B AT
NGIECESEOR= R G A U E
M IRKR IR EIREEREB
BHBBERRPERERRF
BE(BREEE)MNIREE - 8
WAL B A R VR E R
B
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(ii) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost, less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(e) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor have. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognized at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of
the post- acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the joint ventures.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
senior decision makers. The senior decision-makers,
who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
have been identified as the directors and senior
management that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s companies are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.
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2. BEAXSHE(E) 2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) EEBRE(E) (g) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(i) XBREeR (ii) Transactions and balances

NS SIRARX Sk TEE & Foreign currency transactions are translated into

AEMNGMEHRNEXKRE AR the functional currency using the exchange rates

e EE - PR FEE R prevailing at the transaction dates or valuation

B URRER G nERBE where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange

LAINE BB B EEM gains and losses resulting from the settlement

BERHIRMEL K REE of such transactions and from the translation

BREFFERPRER - at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

FEEMeREERAE (D Translation differences on non-monetary financial

WA AR EFEBEEEHTA assets and liabilities such as equities held at

BRREOER)NITE =57 fair value through profit or loss are recognized

wmANSBEWZEEEBR—2B in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or

N WHRERERPER - IEE loss. Translation differences on non-monetary

MtemEE (MY EER financial assets, such as equities classified as at

HiiraWamm A AnBREN fair value through other comprehensive income,

Bm)NTEEEBEETHMN are included in other comprehensive income.

e o

(iii) £E 2 T (iii) Group companies

MBEAREEZ AREEDEM
EMEZIEE AR (Z QA
HEGRSBREBEZEY)
HEGRMBARDIRIATT
FHMERZINEY

The results and financial position of all the Group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyper inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- EMEINREEEER - assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
CEENBBEHYNUNZE presented are translated at the closing rate
EREXRAEFEBZKM at balance sheet date;
fERME
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies (continued)

(iv)

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average rate
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case,
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rate on transaction dates); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entities
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange
differences arising are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the equity holders of
the company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other
fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Cost represents the purchase price of the asset and
other costs incurred to bring the asset into its existing
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost over their estimated useful lives or lease term, as
follows:

- Freehold land is not amortized.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the shorter of their estimated useful lives or lease
term.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease or their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of

completion.
- Plant and equipment 5 years
- Other property and equipment 3 -5 years
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for
long term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or
both. It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost
represents the purchase price of the investment
property and other costs incurred to bring the property
into its existing use. Depreciation of investment
property is calculated using straight-line method to
write off its cost over the unexpired period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()

Investment property (continued)

Investment properties are derecognized either when
they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising from derecognized of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognized.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
related to the entity sold.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

(1)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest level for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss),
and

- those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when

and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortized cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains (losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognized in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized
in other gains (losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains (losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the income statement.
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Debt instruments (continued)

- FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognized in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains (losses) in the period
in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognized
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognized in other gains (losses) in
the income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair
value.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U

Financial assets (continued)

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortized cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the
receivables.

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Cost of purchased goods is invoiced
prices plus procurement costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at
which inventories can be sold in the normal course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognized at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less loss allowance.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within bank loans in current liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Bank loans

Bank loans are initially recognized at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
stated at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the bank loans using the
effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options
issued by the Group over the equity of subsidiary
companies are accounted for as financial liabilities
when such options may only be settled other than
by exchange of a fixed amount of cash or at the fair
market value of the equity interest of the investees. The
amount that may become payable under the option on
exercise is initially recognized at amortized costs with
a corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put
options, determined as the excess of the fair value
of the option over any consideration received, as a
financing cost. Such options are subsequently re-
measured at fair value as a result of the change in
the expected settlement amount at each balance
sheet date, with any resulting changes recognized
in the equity. In the event that the option expires
unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized
as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Current and deferred tax

(i)

(ii)

Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries and regions where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

127



128

B %% 8 = M & (]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

2. EXEFEHER(E)

(t) ERRELEHRE(E)

(ii) EEHRE(E)
AIEZE (&)

EEFTISIE ERRABE
7R 2R R A5 M) B i Lt B 46 A
SR MR -

ShiE E &

BEERIERLM B AR -
A R EE S E
ME R = Rkl - BRE
RNEB A ARSI B EERD
HOE MEREEREER
T8 58 KR AT RE T~ & [0 BIlBR

SN o

BREFAFREERH B AR -
BERNRRARRMELEZ
AR B 1 = E AR R -
B Rl BETE H
& - BB RHERDm
HEMERIEZERMA -

2R

<7~

(iii) K85

EREERITENKE iR
REERZEHHHAEERE
HETEMEHEEMBEY R
F [F] — B M R S PR SR T E B
ST REREREBBERMN
FREEEE TSR -
AR R ERS I EERBE

BHREE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

ZHEmEL

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)
Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Employee benefits

(i)

End of Service Payment Provision
(“Pension obligations”)

The group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined contribution
and defined benefit pension plans and post-
employment medical plans.

For defined contribution plans, the group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

For defined benefit plan, the liability or asset
recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

End of Service Payment Provision
(“Pension obligations”) (continued)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings
in the statement of changes in equity and in the
statement of financial position.

Certain defined benefit schemes require
employees to contribute to reduce the cost of
the benefits to the Group. Contributions from
employees are linked to service and hence, the
contributions reduce service cost. The Group
attributes the contributions from employees to
periods of service on a straight-line basis.

Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

The pension obligations are presented as current
liabilities in the statement of financial position if
the entity does not have a right, at the end of
the reporting period, to defer settlement for at
least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non- market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At
each balance sheet date, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement and
a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (hominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, rebates, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are sold to the customer. Retail sales are usually
in cash or by credit card. The recorded revenue
is the gross amount of sales, before netting off
credit card fees payable for the transactions.
Such fees are included in distribution costs.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and
discounts.

(ii) Sales of goods — customer loyalty programme
(deferred revenue)

The Group operates a loyalty programme where
customers accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to discounts on future
purchases. A contract liability for the award
points is recognized at the time of sale. Revenue
is recognized when the points are redeemed or
when they expire 24 months after the initial sale.

A contract liabilities is recognized until the points
are redeemed or expired.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(x)

(iii) Sales of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method, taking into account the principal amount
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

(v) Royalty and licensing income

Royalty and licensing income are recognized
on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

(vii) Rental and sub-lease rental income

Rental and sub-lease rental income is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Leases (continued)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received,;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability
is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 6). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognized as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved.
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December 31, 2024

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: (a)(i) foreign exchange risk, (a)(ii) credit risk, (a)
(iii) liquidity risk, (a)(iv) cash flow interest rate risk, (b)
capital risk management and (c) fair value estimation.
The Group’s overall risk management program seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposure when
necessary.

(a) Financial risk factors
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognized
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency.

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of
the Group mainly arises from purchases from
a Renminbi-based supply chain and sales
proceeds in local currencies of the relevant
group entities. Foreign exchange risk arising from
recognized assets and liabilities is considered
to be insignificant. This is because the balances
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
are generally settled promptly leaving minimal
outstanding foreign currency position as at the
balance sheet date.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities, companies in the Group may use
forward foreign exchange contracts when major
fluctuation in the relevant foreign currency is
anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily
attributable to balances with bank, trade and
other receivables and rental deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets. The credit risk
on deposits with banks is limited as the Group
mainly places the deposits in banks with high
credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, bank
transfer, through credit cards or through
reputable and dispersed department stores. The
Group’s credit sales are only made to wholesale
and franchise customers, with an appropriate
credit history and on credit terms of 30 to
90 days. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the major types of
debtors of the Group as at December 31, 2024
and 2023.

(A BFEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
EESPE Counterpart:
BEARA Department stores 169 141
=] Franchisees 45 52
eI E FRERFK Credit card

receivables 15 19
Htb Others 20 22
U BR IR (Kat16) Trade receivables

(Note 16) 249 234
¥x Landlords 139 142

388 376

FE g BR 5% Trade receivables
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The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on share
credit risk characteristics.

For the trade receivables, the counterparties
primarily are large corporation and have
strong financial position and management
considers the credit risk is not high. The
Group maintains frequent communications
with these counterparties. Management has
closely monitored the credit qualities and the
collectability of these receivables and consider
that the expected credit risks of them are minimal
in view of the history of cooperation with them
and forward looking information.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables

The directors of the Group consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis during
the year. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares risk of
a default occurring on the assets as at year end
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated.

° Actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the company’s ability
to meet its obligations;

° Actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the company;

o Significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the company,
including changes in the payment status of
the third party.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment/repayable demand.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

3. MHEAREERQIAEEE) 3.

(a) MHEEREE(E)

(i) EERK(E) (i) Credit risk (continued)
HitEKER (&) Other receivables (continued)

ERZET T EANE H365
BAER AR REKE
& AEBMEELIRED

RER B F 2B IR E R R
FORM AT [E SR - PAREGREL
EOXU O 2 RAIF T S H R E
EiE - EREREENGRR -
REEERB MR IRE E A
EEBEXHAEEERR -
Rt BEFRBEEBEEXE - K
KEEEZREBANBEE
BR . WHERNENEZBREE
Bt e

2023 & K 2024 % 12 A 31
A ERERBEMERFIE
MEERBBNMERR - BA
RGUFHHEHEE HEN
RHRNEHNBRERET - K
SEENFHEMEWFIENTE
HEEEE  ~NFERZEE
MRIERNEBBREL TERX -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments/
repayable demanded within 365 days of when
they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Over the term of the
financial assets, the Group accounts for its credit
risk by appropriately providing for expected
credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of debtors,
and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic
data.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2024,
management consider other receivables
as low credit risk as counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses
for other receivables and the loss allowance
provision recognized during the year for these
balances is not material.
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December 31, 2024

3. MEBRAKREERAAEE(E) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)
(a) HHERABEE(E) (a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) REBEL R (iii) Liquidity risk
AEEFBESTBIRITRE The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
UNERBEEER e R=E Mt maintaining sufficient banking facilities and cash
ERenEgnBHekReEE and cash equivalents, which is generated from
¥ RIEHIRENE 2 AR o the operating cash flow and financing cash flow.
RNEB KARAER2024F 12 As at December 31, 2024 and December 31,
HA31B K2023F12A31HZ 2023, all of the Group’s and Company’s financial
FEHHBEEEIR —F A liabilities are due within one year, except to note
TR T XAYE followings:
154
B5% R achE
After one ReRE

1ER  yearbut  5ELL Total BEf

Within within Over contractual  Carrying
(I BEATAEN) (In HKS million) oneyear fiveyears fiveyears cash flows amount
R2024512831H As at December 31, 2024
HERE Lease liabilties 360 381 39 780 718
120235124318 As at December 31, 2023
HERE Lease liabilties 357 354 1 712 666

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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3. BXEREBERAABE(E) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
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(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$836 million
(2023: HK$935 million) and bank loan of HK$26
million (2023: HK$30 million); the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities. The bank balance and bank borrowings
at floating rate expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is insignificant to the
Group. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact resulted from the
changes in interest rates.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern as well as maximizing returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity, cash
and bank balances and bank loans as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group
may raise long term debts, adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders and issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital by maintaining a net cash
position throughout the year. Net cash positions is
calculated by cash and bank balances net of interest
bearing bank loans. As at December 31, 2024, the
Group maintained a net cash position of HK$810
million (2023: HK$905 million).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value

are disclosed by the level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
date of the statement of financial position. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2. No financial instrument is included
in Level 2 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI and FVPL
measured at fair value are included in Level 1 and Level
3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 19 and
15).

As at December 31, 2024, if there had been a 5%
increase/decrease in the fair value of financial asset
at FVOCI and financial asset at FVPL with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have
increased/decreased by HK$0.1 million (2023: HK$0.1
million) and net profit would have increased/decreased
by HK$1.4 million (2023: HK$1.4 million).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(i)

(i)

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of business
less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in economic conditions in places where the
Group operates and changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates
at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;

Right-of-use assets;

Interest in a joint venture; and
- Goodwill.

The sources utilized to identify indications of
impairment are often subjective in nature and the
Group is required to use judgement in applying such
information to its business. The Group’s interpretation
of this information has a direct impact on whether an
impairment assessment is performed as at the end of
any given reporting period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables) (continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, such
information is further subject to an exercise that
requires the Group to estimate the recoverable
amount, representing the greater of the asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use.
Depending on the Group’s assessment of the overall
materiality of the asset under review and complexity
of deriving a reasonable estimate of the recoverable
amount, the Group may perform such assessments
utilizing internal resources or the Group may engage
external advisors to counsel the Group. Regardless
of the resources utilized, the Group is required to
make many assumptions to make these assessments,
including the utilization of such asset, the cash flows
to be generated, appropriate market discount rates
and the projected market and regulatory conditions.
Changes in any of these assumptions could result in a
material change to future estimates of the recoverable
amount of any asset.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets. The
depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are
material changes from previous estimates.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

147



148

B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

ERERT AT RHE (&)

4.

(iv) EHBEHIBLHEEEN AR

(v)

=]
ETAKENEHAHX Y RHE
AEBMMELEHNBARER 2K
h R - AREHERR LR
HREMERBERAALE®R %
FRAAETIRIEARRER 2 M IR K
SLEZFCRBZMBEAREHRK
BRZREMET - EXREMGE
P A5 B BT /B8 2 R RO MR BB 1R R B PR
MHETRRR(MERER - FEFER
RERBR B - AL HE - £ 2
SREEE AR KRB EN SRS
RERFE - NWEBRMEE
MERLEAZERRLRAHER
EREENAEALER  FEL
B (L] 2 B i 1A 2 P BEERR)

FE& Wi B 3% AT U [E]

B e N ERE L WE A B HIK
HEEHERERBREE - £E
S0 RSB RKER - A
1& A¥ At 2L R) 2818 ) R SR Uk (= 9 A BE
M emiETE R EE - BRRRE
HITREAE RN - BIRRRETE
AHERHARBEENEN B
EEONNERRGE - EEEE
HiE BRXBEKTREEAGER
SR ERSE - RIZERAKR
KAERAEFEE R ATt - @&
BEREREARE  BEEEERK
RBERENEL - R8BI
MEBEKFEE  FUFEMBRK
APABRIRA SR ©

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(iv) Fair value of written put option liabilities

(v)

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the
equity of subsidiary companies. The Group recorded
such written put option liabilities at their fair values
which are determined in accordance with the terms
under those relevant agreements and with reference
to the estimated post-acquisition performance of
the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is required to
determine key assumptions (such as growth rate,
margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiaries. Changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect the amounts of future liabilities.
Put option liabilities shall be remeasured at their fair
value resulting from events or factors emerged after
the acquisition date, with any resulting changes
recognized in the equity.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Provision for expected credit losses is made when the
Group does not expect to collect all amounts due.
The provision is determined by grouping together
trade debtors with similar risk characteristics and
collectively or individually assessing them for likelihood
of recovery. The provision reflects lifetime expected
credit losses i.e. possible default events over the
expected life of the trade receivables, weighted by the
probability of that default occurring. Judgement has
been applied in determining the level of provision for
expected credit losses, taking into account the credit
risk characteristics of customers and the likelihood
of recovery assessed on a combination of collective
and individual basis as relevant. While the provision is
considered appropriate, changes in estimation basis or
in economic conditions could lead to a change in the
level of provision recorded and consequently on the
charge or credit to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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December 31, 2024

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Determination of lease term and discount rate

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options (or
periods after termination options) are only included
in the lease term if the Group has enforceable right
to extend the lease term and the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). Potential
future cash outflows have not been included in the
lease liability because it is not reasonably certain that
the leases will be extended (or not terminated).

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of
the lessee.

In determining the discount rate, the Group is required
to exercise considerable judgement in relation to
determine the discount rates by taking into account
the nature of the underlying assets and the terms and
conditions of the leases, at both the commencement
date and the effective date of the modification.

(viii) Defined benefit pension obligation

The present value of the pension obligations depends
on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations. Details of key
assumptions and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in note 30.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

5.
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SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on
its development strategies and operational control. There
are two major operating segments: Retail and Distribution
and Wholesales to Overseas Franchisees. Management
manages the Retail and Distribution operating segment
geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating
segment in Mainland China and the Gulf Cooperation
Council (the “GCC”) comprise both direct-operated
and franchised stores. Hong Kong and Macau, Taiwan,
Southeast Asia and Australia do not have material local
franchised stores. Group stores span most of Southeast
Asia and the GCC.

As for brands, the Group presently operates Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other
owned and licensed brands.

Adjusted EBITDA is profit before finance expense, income
taxes, impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment, depreciation and amortization,
share of profit of a joint venture and unallocated corporate
items. Segment results are before finance expense, share
of profit of a joint venture, income taxes and unallocated
corporate items. This is the measurement basis reported
to management and the senior decision-makers for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Analysis of sales and operating profit (loss) of the Group’s
operating segment by geographic regions is as follows.

(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million)

HER Sales

{RBEBITDA Adjusted EBITDA

FEREH Depreciation and amortization

—-fRREEE - Right-of-use assets

-M¥ WERZENRENE - Property, plant and equipment and
investment properties

e Impairment

-FREEE - Right-of-use assets

—E  HEREE - Property, plant and equipment

PEEE Segment results

B Corporate functions

BEEA Finance expense

el —Ha B AR

Share of profit of a joint venture

BRASH AR

Profit before income taxes

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

5. HEBEREEDE(E) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
2023
apih
BEMARA Izl
®EE  BRAKE iRty
EER LRN ZE® Wholesale
HE A B Southeast Gulf to
Manland ~ HKand 4  Asiaand Cooperation Overseas At
(UBEFTAEL) (In HK$ million) China Macau Taiwan  Australia Council Franchisees Total
HER Sales 664 380 440 1,471 675 243 3,878
T HHEEBITDA Adjusted EBITDA 32 144 94 462 245 24 1,001
FEREH Depreciation and amortization
-RAREE - Right-of-use assets (25) (75) (44) (165) (103) - (412)
-M%  ERRRENREDE - Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties (6) (3) 6) (26) (12) - (53)
PEEE Segment results 1 66 44 271 130 24 536
BLEm Corporate functions (39)
HEER Finance expense (40)
ElE—FHaEnaEM Share of profit of a joint venture 45
B EBEATE A Profit before income taxes 508

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= R BEBAER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. HEBEREEIH(A)
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202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating
segment by brand is as follows.

2024 2023

KRR TR

(&#8) (B8)

$4E%  Operating HHE®  Operating

(U EEETREN) (In HK$ million) Sales profit (loss) Sales  profit (loss)
ZERDE Retail and Distribution

Giordano NGiordano Junior Giordano and Giordano Junior 3,064 367 3,011 407

Giordano Ladlies Giordano Ladles 248 35 268 48

BSX BSX 8 (1) 8 (1)

Hit Others 339 22 343 58

3,659 423 3,630 512

KABIHRES - EREERBRM (B
TERMBEE ) BEGHIINEPCHER
A6.261878 70 (20234 : 6.2318/87T)
R B A A6.61{88 7T (20234 : 6.64
BAL)  MREMTSHIINEE ZHE
%8 /526.3218 74 7T (20234 : 25.861E 8
JT) °

DEZ R tHE R A8.761E 8 T (2023
F738BEBETT)ETAHEHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

The Company has its domicile in Hong Kong. Sales to
external customers recorded in Hong Kong and Macau
(including retail and wholesale sales) were HK$626 million
(2023: HK$623 million), Mainland China was HK$661 million
(2023: HK$664 million) and external customers from other
markets were HK$2,632 million (2023: HK$2,586 million).

Inter-segment sales of HK$876 million (2023: HK$738
million) have been eliminated upon consolidation.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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December 31, 2024

5.

HERREEDI(EA)

FEAM S HER 2008 % T
(20234 : 1008 B L) * &8 KB
A1,4008 76 7T (20234 : 1,300 8 i
JC) © B/EKRT00E B T (20234 ¢ 800
BA&T) » B KBEINAS5,5008 %8 T
(20234 : 6,300& % 7T) * /& &M
BFRRAEIELZE 2 A1,1008 %5 T(2023
F : 500887T) °

AEBZBERWESI D 20T o

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Income taxes charged related to Mainland China was HK$2
million (2023: HK$1 million), Hong Kong and Macau were
HK$14 million (2023: HK$13 million), Taiwan was HK$7
million (2023: HK$8 million), Southeast Asia and Australia
were HK$55 million (2023: HK$63 million) and the GCC was
HK$11 million (2023: HK$5 million).

Analysis of the Group's assets by geographic regions is as
follows.

PHEE
Segment assets
(B EETAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
DEEE Segment assets
BRF 2 KB Southeast Asia and Australia 974 1,089
BEMNARREGIEEZER Gulf Cooperation Council 1,094 1,037
BB KRB Hong Kong and Macau 549 570
H B A Mainland China 474 365
oy Taiwan 209 233
3,300 3,294
—fAEE A AR Interest in a joint venture 414 494
REMEEREEANERELZ Financial asset at fair value
TRIEE through other comprehensive
income 3 1
REREEARBEREZ Financial asset at fair value
CRIEE through profit or loss 28 28
RETRIBE E Deferred tax assets 21 39
EEHEE Total assets 3,766 3,856

RemTAEMEEHBEEN  RES
MBMZIERBEEREA225EETT
(20234 : 1,798 L) - R BE A A
1.041278 7T (20234 : 490088 7T) :
MR E T 5 516.968 48 7T (20234 ¢
18.261B L) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong
and Macau were HK$225 million (2023: HK$179 million);
Mainland China was HK$104 million (2023: HK$49 million);
and other markets were HK$1,696 million (2023: HK$1,826
million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

6. HMWAREMWES » FE 6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET
(A GEFETAHEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
FLEWA Interest income 15 23
Bl R IR REUR A Royalty and licensing income 23 22
Me kBl A Rental and sub-lease rental
income 9 8
A& B A Dividend income 3 3
BT #68 B Government grants 3 2
REFAESE Claims and compensation = 2
HEYE - #BEREREFEE Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (4) (1)
PE X B 1R F AR Net exchange loss (11) (5)
REREEARBEREZ SREEY Fair value loss on financial asset
ARERBE at fair value through
profit or loss - (6)
Hitb Others 14 20
52 68

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 155
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

7. RE&ERA
gaa e (GTA)

OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is after charging (crediting):

(U BEETRE) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
HEM AR Cost of sales
GFEHERN Cost of inventories sold 1,683 1,607
REFEREREFEMHETHE Net provision for obsolete stock and
stock written off 2 3
1,685 1,610
SHER Distribution expense
B TR Staff cost 608 601
mEZH Depreciation expenses
—RREEE - Right-of-use assets 404 396
e /ER 6T — Property, plant and equipment 56 48
THkEF I HERR Rentals in respect of land and
buildings
—-HEHeIH ~ Minimum lease payments 25 39
—SAHEEH - Contingent rent 194 192
METEE . Building management fee,
B8 & &= 8 government rent and rates and
RABEXEH utilities 103 99
BEER  HERSBEE Advertising, promotion and
incentives 92 89
2EYeEA Packaging and deliveries 63 53
RITREARKE Bank and credit card charges 29 27
el Impairment
—FHREEE - Right-of-use assets 3 -
e ER Y G ~ Property, plant and equipment 1 -
ENEREEREES Change in loss allowance for trade
receivables 3 (4)
Hih Others 89 90
1,670 1,630
THEHA Administrative expense
BTIRA Staff cost 157 134
FESH Depreciation expenses
—FREEE - Right-of-use assets 16 16
—ME - BELFENREDE — Property, plant and equipment and
investment properties 6 5
FEREEERA Legal and professional fee 24 8
ZERE & Auditor's remuneration 7 7
£ eEE Computer and telecommunication 6 6
=g Travelling 4 3
R REMBIE Business and other taxes 1 1
H Others 18 18
239 198
156 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

8. BMIEEH 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(A GEFETAHEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
HEBENE Interest on lease liabilities 45 39
RITEFKFE Interest on bank loans 1 1
46 40
9. BEIMKAX 9. STAFF COSTS
(A GFEE THEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
FekIB(BEESEHE) Salaries and wages (including
Directors’ emoluments) 707 676
BIRE — A EHKEE Pension cost —
defined contribution plans 58 59
765 735
REERN  NEBREERKRGEERZ During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the
M (20234F « &) URE R FOKFE o B Group to reduce the level of contributions (2023: Nil). As at
20245 202312 A31H » )2 G ALK December 31, 2024 and 2023, no unvested benefits were
FERZ KRB - available to be utilized in future years.
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 157
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

10. EENFENER

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) EEM 2 (a) Directors' emoluments
LY L VA Ex
Bt L RS HH
Performance- Employer’s
based®/  Hftli&*  contribution
e #% Discretionary ~ Other  to pension &5t
EEHZ Name of Directors Fees  Salaries bonuses ¢ benefits* schemes Total
BEFL BETR BEFT  BETR BEFT BEFR
HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2024
Bt Current;
Colin Melville Kennedy CURRIEX! Colin Melville Kennedy
CURRIEAT! - 3,458 2,437 1,630 443 7,968
RER CHAN Ka Wai® - 2458 1,720 118 18 4314
B2 Mark Alan LOYND® - 2,247 1,290 117 18 3,672
FhEe LEE Chi Hin, Jacob® 215 - - - - 215
e TSANG On Yip, Partrick® 222 - - - - 222
il CHENG Chi-Man, Sonia* 149 - - - - 149
g mn CHENG Chi Leong,
Christopher 149 - - 149
&l WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 = - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 375 - - - - 375
HERE" Victor HUANG* 295 - - - - 295
[EEI5 CHAU Kwok Wing Kelvin*¢ 186 - = = = 186
AIfE: Former:
EiRger LAU Kwok Kuen, Petert7 - 950 - 30,206 - 31,156
N Barry John BUTTIFANT*® 175 - - - - 175
1,993 9,276 5,447 32,071 479 49,266
2023
BBt LAU Kwok Kuen, PeterXt - 3,775 11,615 1,644 - 17,034
REet CHAN Ka Wai* - 241 3,000 106 18 5535
B2y Mark Alan LOYND" - 2130 1,700 105 18 3958
2N Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
&l WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 370 - - - - 370
Bz TSANG On Yip, Partrick’ 200 - - - - 200
rEE LEE Chi Hin, Jacob" 200 - - - - 200
1,680 8,316 16,315 1,855 36 28,102
0 e 0 Chairman
t TIRaHE, T Chief Executive
s HITES a Executive directors
" FEHITES A Non-executive directors
* B IHITES * Independent non-executive directors
# oy 2 ) 15 (R R L i - = # Other benefits include insurance premium, share options,
EERG - HADEBE R ([ EAh housing allowances, other allowances and benefits in kind
e 1) R E DM (1 =) and termination benefits (“Other Benefits”) allowances, other
allowances and benefits in kind (“Other Benefits”)
& KRB EIARR N DB R PTAE & Pherformance—based bonus is determined based on profit
sharing ratio
oo BBEETEAIRE A o B bt R FE SR o Discre%ionary bonus is determined based on profit sharing
TE 2 Al BARER R PRTE ratio or pre-determined achievement rate of profit targets
r EEBEIEFI3,0008 8T b Included termination benefit of HK$30 million
i 2024 FAA3REZEARITEER 1 Appointed as Executive Director on April 3, 2024 and
R2024F4 A5 AR ZE T A1THREEE appointed as Chief Executive on April 5, 2024
2 R2024F4 A5 B RIFHMITE S RAT 2 Re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive
RPITES Director on April 5, 2024
s N2024F A A5 ELZEREEE LR 8 Appointed as the Chairman of the Board on April 5, 2024
4 N2024F4 A3 ELZERIERTES 4 Appointed as Non-executive Director on April 3, 2024
5 R2024F 4 A3BEZ T AB L IERNTT 5 épggiznied as an Independent Non-executive Director on April
6 202456 425 A ZR T AE 7 IFH 8 Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on June
78 25,2024

8

1R2024%4 H 3 P #¢ B8 b 8 E %I A
BREIEEEL/E  Wik2024F4A5
B P T I AR TS
1202455 A17HIRE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

Was removed as Director and ceased to be Chairman of
the Board on April 3, 2024; and was terminated as Chief
Executive on April 5, 2024

Retired on May 17, 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. EENRNZMER (E)

(a) E=M= (&)

(b)

RAFER MESSF B2
RN

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to
Directors of the Company during the year is as follows:

(LB T BEET) (In HK$'000) 2024 2023
e Fees 1,993 1,580
Haie - Other emoluments:
EAXFHE REMKEE Basic salaries and other
benefits 41,347 10,171
RIRSETEIER Contribution to pension
schemes 479 36
EEHE BB Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 5,447 16,315
49,266 28,102
EUBREEHERE (b) Five highest paid individuals

RAFERN  AEBRAUZSHE
B B3 (20234  3f1)EE -
HEMe 25BN ESUHRE - AF
BN > T2 (20234 : 2(1) &=

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include 3
(2023: 3) Directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments

FRMEZENMESNT payable to the remaining 2 (2023: 2) individuals during
the year are as follows:
(LGB T T 8T ) (In HK$°000) 2024 2023
EXFHe Kk Basic salaries and
H Yz other benefits 5,057 5,104
RIRE B Contribution to pension
schemes 108 103
FETE BB MTEA Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 5,464 5,650

10,629 10,857

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

10. EENRNZMER (E)

(b) EUESHBE (F)
ST EmHBEEMES AR REL

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid

N individuals fell within the following bands:

A
B4 48 B Number of individuals
Emolument bands 2024 2023
B
HK$
5,000,001 - 6,000,000 2 2

(c) MEE - ZZEEEEHMNE
ABBRZEESNBEETIBRE
HHNER  EERNMEMZS
HnER
KRB EIKTFENAARARFE
= -HIHAZEESTEHNEAER
NEZEEEEHENEIRAT
BAZER EEFRREMRS -
|EREEB R AHEHIZE383(1)(d)
BERECGEE N 1EHEE
(2023%F : 4&) -

(d) ESEBER

202454 A3H - ZH#EE L (T2
B )ERBEBRARESESmE
FIELEFEETZEE - 202454
A58 » RAElMBEIKIETRELER
20237 A18H E BEW IR &
(IR WHZE]) REEAEBEFH
TEMEEFRARIESME® °
It AAEXNTE XM RB LR
IREBZRIBAILLEMEENE R R
ETEEA - BB 29,779,839
5T o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

160 s s nmme® 2 A

(c)

(d)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the Directors, their controlled bodies
corporate and connected entities for disclosure
pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of 622G (2023: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

On April 3, 2024, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Dr.
Lau), was removed from his position as a director
of the Company, as a result of which he also
automatically ceased to be the Chairman of the
Board. On April 5, 2024, the Company terminated
Dr. Lau’s Service Agreement dated 18 July 2023 (the
“Service Agreement”) and appointment as Group
Chief Executive Officer and director of the Group’s
subsidiaries all with immediate effect. Consequently,
the Company was required to pay and paid Dr. Lau
contractual and statutory payments totalling HKD
29,779,839 that accrued upon the early termination of
his Service Agreement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. EENRNEMER (HF)

(d) E=EBEN(E)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(d) Directors’ termination benefits (continued)

AR
Paid by or receivable from:
NG| MEDR B
the the subsidiary
(UEETFTAEN) (In HK$’000) company undertakings Total
HAEREZBMAME THREE For the loss of office as
a director - - -
FSEER YN ) P a=ed ) =UN-) For the loss of any other
SR E RN TR AR office in connection with the
s TEFE management of the affairs
of the company and/or its
subsidiaries 18,013 11,767 29,780
11. FRIEH 11. INCOME TAXES

EBFEREBRERNFEE 2 Gt ERH
s A3216.5% (20234 : 16.5% ) 2 Fi X
E o BEEMNUING N Z FEEFTER T IE

ERIRDE M EE R 2 R R E

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Income taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong are calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

(KB EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
AKEEMBHR Current income taxes
BB Hong Kong 4 2
BN Outside Hong Kong 61 70
HEHIE Withholding taxes 22 30
87 102
EEFTBH Deferred income taxes
REMERZHTH KR Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 12 17
99 119

T HTIBRAFEREEGEA
B 5008 7 7t (20234 : 1,300 8 i
TL) e REMFBERP 2 ELE—MFE
AR R TR Z AE B EE 2 TS

tHg -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #
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This charge excludes the share of joint venture’'s income
taxes of HK$5 million (2023: HK$13 million) for the year. The
share of profit of a joint venture in the consolidated income
statement is after income taxes accrued in the appropriate
income tax jurisdictions.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

11. RS (&) 11. INCOME TAXES (continued)
REBHEMeAE 2 REB B ATEF A Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before income taxes at
A TSRS 2 AERAT - the tax rate of Hong Kong to the income tax charges is as

follows.
(U BEETTREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
B P15 55 A 71 Profit before income taxes
(T BiErRE—HaE A REN) (before share of profit of
a joint venture) 331 463
RTS8 R 16.5%(2023%F : 16.5% )1 & Calculated at an income tax rate
of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) 55 76
HEMBERTRAHRE 2 Effect of different tax rates in
other regions (4) (1)
AR 2 2 H Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 16 12
EETI TR & EWUR Deferred tax assets written
down - 6
RERZBELERIBEEE Deferred tax assets not
recognized 25 13
AR 2 WA Income not subject to tax (14) (15)
FREIAREER 2B Utilization of previously
unrecognized tax losses (1) 2)
MaiIE Withholding tax 22 30
Frg®iz Income tax charges 99 119
12. BREF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BREARBERNTIRANFE R A
B SR 453 5 B 13 B 18 B 2161858 7T
(20234 : 3458 T )5t E -

EREARBFDRAFEFERND TR
3 2 0 #E 9 A% 801,614,555,002 %
(20234 : 1,598,745,713/% )5+ & o

EREBRMNDEFAE BITRMD
Z 09 B 8 1,614,555,002 %
(20234 : 1,598,745,713/%) hn F R &
BERRRIBERETEIRE ZFAERAR
TEERESETEmMBET RO Z
hn#E F 15 I% 206,807,881 i% (2023 £F -
13,646,324/ )51 & -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on the profit after income taxes attributable to
shareholders of the Company for the year of HK$216 million
(2023: HK$345 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted
average of 1,614,555,002 shares (2023: 1,598,745,713
shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average of 1,614,555,002 shares (2023:
1,598,745,7183 shares) in issue during the year by the
weighted average of 6,807,881 shares (2023: 13,646,324
shares) deemed to be issued if all outstanding share options
granted under the share option scheme of the Company
had been exercised.
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B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

13. B & 13. DIVIDENDS
(a) XREEREWT : (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
(XEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
EEIK2H R E AERS.0B Interim dividend declared
(20234 : Fx17.0/1l) and paid of 8.0 HK cents
per share (2023: 17.0 HK
cents per share) 129 274
REZRBERERZANERER Final dividend proposed
F%6.0781 after the balance sheet
(20234 : FAx13.57%1l) date of 6.0 HK cents per
share (2023: 13.5 HK
cents per share) 97 218
226 492
2025 3A26H - EEEEZ On March 26, 2025, the Board has recommended a
HARR B AFRR6.0811l - BENIERE final dividend of 6.0 HK cents per share and is subject
NATIRERERE FEEREL to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
Ao HWIERERREBELEE S HIE forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed
WREBE BRIKEZSEIE dividend has not been recognized as a liability at the
RER ZAATIEBTIRMHEE balance sheet date. The amount of proposed dividend
HE o was based on the shares of the Company in issue as of
the reporting date.
(b) BRE—FE IREKXEFEER (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year,
EHERKENRE : approved and paid during the year:
(U B &E#TREL) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
B KR 32023 F KR E B 2023 final dividend
13,5781l approved and paid of
(2022 - FHx15.0/811) 13.5 HK cents per share
(2022: 15.0 HK cents
per share) 218 240
2023 F RHAMR B WL A R Al R The payment for 2023 final dividend was based on the
2024F6 H3H 2 B EITIR D BEUK total number of issued shares of the Company on June
e 3, 2024.
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 163
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

14. BERBITERE 14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(ABEEETHEENT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
RekBEeF Cash and cash equivalents 784 720
TR AR =& A A LI 2 SRITHER Bank deposits with maturity
over three months from
date of deposits 52 215
836 935
REBN RS RBROTEFRIESE Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were
1.4418%8 70 (20234  1.32BFL) 2 A cash and bank balances totaling HK$144 million (2023:
REHE© MIRITHETF HK$132 million) denominated in Renminbi.
AEBETHERNERNESTF3.9% The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group
(2023%F : 4.8%) ' FRZEHFERZFH was 3.9% (2023: 4.8%) per annum; these deposits have an
FIHREAPR AV A —E A - average maturity of around 2 months as at year end.
15. REZREBEARLEBEEE2ZEMEE 15. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

BamK
Preference Hit &t
(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) Shares Other Total
R2023F1A1B 2R R E Fair value at January 1, 2023 28 6 34
NREESH Fair value change - (6) (6)
R2023F12A31H Fair value at December 31, 2023,
20241 1B & January 1, 2024 and
2024F12 A31BZ AR 1E December 31, 2024 28 - 28

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REZEREZEAABEEEBECZSHMEE
(#&)

MN2008F 6 A27TH » AEBEFLE
= 1 # & % Placita Holdings Limited
(I'Placita])21.0%# % © RIFZHE -
6,055,440 EBMBR R R A EEF A &
T30.0%E 1T 2R ABRE W EF DL
/56,055,440 I Placita 2 18 4t I& ([ 18 %
A& 1) o o REBAHETFELERZ
o B o

ZBEERERAHEHAEENBRRNUR
RERE - AREEREFRGEE R
HRERZBFFRABLEXMAEER
AIEHT A o

REBEREAREREZEREELZR
REZEHENEHFABERLCESEAMI
A o

EHREERONERRRANEREZ
TREEAAEERBEURATR R
ERYUZRENSEARTAIBEMS L
BMENER(TAIBRRA)  REFE
MBHREERNEISHENRABNERD
BRE=R-

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

15 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest
in Placita Holdings Limited (“Placita”). As part of the
agreement, 6,055,440 ordinary shares representing the
Group’s remaining 30.0% of the total issued share capital of
Placita were redesignated into 6,055,440 preference shares
of Placita (the “Preference Shares”). Furthermore, the Group
was granted a put option on the Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are
measured at FVPL. The fair value has been and will be re-
assessed by an independent professional valuation firm at
year end and the end of each subsequent period.

Changes in the fair values of financial asset at FVPL are
recorded in other income in the consolidated income
statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of
Preference Shares are determined based on discounted
cash flow, using inputs that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs), which is categorized
as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 18.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

16. BRI R H b B 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(A GEFETAHEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
JE W BR R Trade receivables 249 234
o BEEE Less: Loss allowance (40) (37)
JE U BR SR FHAE Trade receivables, net 209 197
Hin ek - BiEiT2 Kk Other receivables, including
AT RIE deposits and prepayments 133 122
JFE L B 3% N E A e Uk 3R Trade and other receivables 342 319
e R HME UK Deposits and other receivables 88 74
FEREREEREMBE  RELED Trade receivables mainly comprise amounts due from
RBERRIZZEERA - AEEEEF franchisees, licensees and retail proceeds due from
BN T4 TI0EREEH - EBUERER department stores. The Group normally allows a credit
NEMEWZR  REESEERARERE © period of 30-90 days. The carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables approximate to their fair values.
(a) BRER 2D #T (a) Ageing analysis
HEZAFENBRBERE KRR Ageing analysis from the invoice date net of loss
DT - allowance is as follows:
(U B &ETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
0&30H 0 - 30 days 142 153
31E60H 31 - 60 days 48 33
61290H 61 — 90 days 13 3
#90H Over 90 days 6 8
209 197
EREEZEREDBHNERZH - There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
WEBREBRERLEEPEZEE trade receivables as the Group has a large number of
E T internationally dispersed customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. FEUWR AR AR &% H ftb FE WK (4]
(b) BUWERRMWEERE

FEM SRR B R B - TO A BB R
PR - BRI S B E AR K
MR - EBERT - BEE
1 B TR R M BR K P AES -

RERNZERBEHBZEZ2S (BERE
KREBEERID)WAT

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Loss allowance of trade receivables

Loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the loss allowance is written off
against trade receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

(U B &EBTRELT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
M1 A1R At January 1 37 42
HmEZER Translation difference - (1)
Eia R ERE Reversal of provision for

loss allowance (1) (6)
NG e Provision for the year 4 2
M12H31H At December 31 40 37

18RI FEUBR R 2 B BB P R T IR
FHRRSBENEFE  KEBEFGLE
H R AT Y [0 5640 R AR BR 3R - A Lk A
REFTEREE AEEHAK
A #6008 B 7T (20234 : 7008
BT o

AEBZXRBABEEMBREERE9
SR ERRERBR - %5
ATLPT A EUER R A = TR HI R
KEfR - RFFEEHERBX B
WOR SRR B [R5 A R 1 € Mg
HIRBUETT A - TREIIEREZI
BEBRERSEE  ZLRDHE
N RBRFE R FEIE RIGRIARE

MRBEBERZNE R MATEIEE
Al e

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

The individually accessed loss allowance for
receivables relate to customers that are in financial
difficulties and management assesses that only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts were recognized. The Group holds a collateral
amounted approximately of HK$6 million (2023: HK$7
million) over the balances.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the
ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The expected loss rates are based on the
historical loss rates as adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

16. BWERR R E BB R (E) 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) EWERARMWEERE(E) (b) Loss allowance of trade receivables
(continued)
MEFHI2HEH
EEFELE
Weighted 2HRSEERR
average lifetime REAE Lifetime REFE
expected credit  Gross carrying  expected credit Net carrying
(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ mitlion) loss rate amount loss amount
#2024512A31A At December 31, 2024
Rk Not yet due 0% 185 - 185
AH1E30H 110 30 days past due 0% 13 - 13
A1 E60H 3110 60 days past due 0% 3 - 3
#1861 290H 61t 90 days past due 0% 4 - 4
#890A Over 90 days past due 89% 44 (40) 4
249 (40) 209
METSZ HEE
FEBBILE
Weighted 2HRBEEER
average lifetime RESE Lifetime IREFE
expected credit Gross carrying  expected credit Net carrying
(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) loss rate amount loss amount
#2023%12A31R At December 31, 2023
ABE Not yet due 0% 169 - 169
BE1Z308 110 30 days past due 0% 11 - 11
B#31260A 3110 60 days past due 0% 3 - 3
BH61290A 6110 90 days past due 0% 3 - 3
#90A Over 90 days past due 7% 48 (37) 1
234 (37) 197

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

17. & INVENTORIES
(UBEBTAEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
K mn Finished goods 508 474

FEECEERAAERITLEEHEER K
1 A16.8318 78 7T (20234 : 16.07 188
JC) °

18. HEFA N NKIE

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$1,683 million (2023:

HK$1,607 million).

. RENTAL PREPAYMENTS

(X BFEETAENMN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
M1 A1B ZBREFE Net book value at January 1 3 4
NE Additions 6 4
e Disposal (6) (4)
IR S B3 Amortization for the year (1) (1)
M12A31 B ZBREEE Net book value at December 31 2 3

19. REMGASWRBRAREREEZS

. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

mEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
M A1B 2B 2 A ARnE Opening fair value at January 1 1 3
DREZEHEA Change in fair value

REMGERZHEARERIEZ transferred to financial asset

TRLEEREE at FVOCI reserve 2 2)
M12A31B 2R AR E Closing fair value at

December 31 3 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

19.

20.

NEMGEEWRBZEAAREEE 2E€ 19. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
mEE (&) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
202412 A31H - REMERE WKL As at December 31, 2024, financial asset at FVOCI
AARERBZSREERNAERI represented 2.96% (2023: 2.96%) interests in Speedy
RAERAF([AFEIRIK])2.96% (2023 Global Holdings Limited (“Speedy”) are denominated
F:2.96%) 2 #m o ZEERNABITET in Hong Kong dollars. Speedy is engaged in garment
B BRI ERRRIEEE 248 manufacturing business and is one of the key suppliers of
SEMETEHENZ— - the Group.
202412 A31H - REMERE W EE As at December 31, 2024, the fair value of the financial
NAERBZEHEEZ AR ERIRE asset at FVOCI is determined using its quoted price on the
BMTHE s REEZT  BREFBYK Stock Exchange, which is categorized as Level 1 under the
WERENBIBHR AN EERDERSE fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
_%& °
—BEe¥ AR 20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
TXHEIWZzEZE AR ZBRAE BT B The joint venture listed below has share capital consisting
& JEEMAEERARZERIT ¢ solely of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint
venture is as follows:
ERTRE2BHERE

PR 3L % A 1 B FHEfER
BENREE Place of FERGBEDEE Issued and fully
Name of incorporation Percentage of paid share capital or FE£
joint venture and operation equity holding registered capital Principal activities

2024 2023
Giordano Corporation RERE 48.5 48.5 5,150,000,000% B KETERER
Limited* e 4 A on
Republic of Korea KRW5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel and
accessories

* —RfI#EEEC & &R Al A joint venture held indirectly
(U BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
»1A1H At January 1 494 490
JEAG % Share of profit 20 45

BER—Ea 2R E

Dividends received from

a joint venture (37) (28)
MEER Translation difference (63) (13)
W12 A31H At December 31 414 494

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

20. —BAE AR (H) 20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
EERQNTIZHBEERFEE Summarized financial information for joint venture
TX&EY—HaERa 2 MBEER - Set out below is the summarized financial information for a

joint venture.

EEEBERE® Summarized balance sheet
(U B & T REN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
RE Current
ReMReEBEER Cash and cash equivalents 55 71
HtnsEE Other current assets 569 591
MENEELETR Total current assets 624 662
Hivne & & Other current liabilities (88) (127)
BB GEARE Total current liabilities (88) (127)
IR ED Non-current
BE Assets 400 518
=0 Liabilities (83) (35)
BEFE Net assets 853 1,018
mAeEWBEREE Summarized statement of comprehensive income
(X BEEETHAENT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
Wz Revenue 843 1,014
ITE R HEE Depreciation and amortization (93) (96)
£H Expense (697) (798)
Br FT1S HR AT A Profit before income taxes 53 120
PS5 Income taxes (11) (26)

BR P ASA 1% 3 A1 Profit after income taxes 42 94
/\ﬁﬂ%u EE Other comprehensive loss (131) (26)
iR e (B8 ) s Total comprehensive

(loss) income (89) 68

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

20. " EEELAIER(E)

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

MRENFERAGR Reconciliation of summarized financial
information

—HAEEARIEREEE M B EER Reconciliation of the summarized financial information

FEK o presented to the carrying amount of the interest in a joint
venture.

(X B EETAENMN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023

1A1BEEFE Opening net assets at January 1 1,018 1,008

INF [E v A Profit for the year 42 94

A& 2. Dividends (76) (58)

TmE xR Translation difference (131) (26)

12A31HEEFE

Closing net assets at
December 31 853 1,018

FEiE—MaE Ak

Bk

Share of interest in a
joint venture 414 494

HE#PE

Lease commitments - -

NEBABFEAEZ BEE QR 2R
BESRAMSKAEGEREREE M
ZEBRRAFGNEEARAREERE
AHEHE o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in a joint
venture, and the joint venture have no contingent liabilities
and capital commitments themselves.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21. REYXE

AEBEREYEERRYEAE -

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group had properties which held for long-term rental
yields.

(U B EATAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
RAE Cost

M1A1H At January 1 59 61

mE =% Translation difference (2) @)
W12 A31H At December 31 57 59
2RBIE Accumulated depreciation

»1A1H At January 1 43 43
HmEER Translation difference (1) (1)
e Depreciation 1 1

W12 A831H At December 31 43 43
M12A31 8 2 RENFE Net book value at

December 31 14 16

ZREMENR2024F12A31B Z 2R
MBYEEXZHEQRTE - HEIR
BRI EAR T A - BB BT
ERX P RGEEMEBITREENT KM
HEmMEHMNEEERN L E - HFK
ARBERENTIAERL - HEFTHEA
MIRITMSHEEC2EEBYWEMEM
AT L M E T B SRR o 722024
F12A31H  ZWE(BEHEELH R
BFE D) 2B AR EAR26008 BT
(20234 : 2,8008%7T) - ‘LA HFFIEER
REBEREYE ZHSIWAB4608 5
TC(2023%F : 4308 TT) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

The fair value of the investment properties at December
31, 2024 was assessed by an independent professional
valuation firm. Valuation was based on income capitalization
method which is based on the capitalization of the net
income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalization rates, which are derived from
analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The
prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties
and other comparable properties. The total fair value of
the properties, including leasehold land and the building
portion, was HK$26 million (2023: HK$28 million) as at
December 31, 2024. In the consolidated income statement,
rental income relating to investment properties of HK$4.6
million (2023: HK$4.3 million) was included.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

21. REYWE(HE)
REAMEZAARER - UWIEZ&S
REERSIE/ERFMAE

R EYMRRERERATFRITE

HELH MHEHR

BF HEMRKTZNE0F
(ABFEE RE)

BREWERZREFESFTAT ¢

21.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Land Over the term of the lease
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease
or no more than 50 years

The net book value of the investment properties is analyzed
as follows:

(A BFEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2024 2023
EBBAINGE Outside Hong Kong, held on
10 E50F L lease of between 10 and

50 years 14 16

BREMEORABRBOEIRIER
AABEM S LRBNER (T BRE
A REBEMHRELEMNEISROHL
RENBRIBRE= -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The fair value of the investment properties was based
on inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
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B R E(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

22. W% HEIERRKRE 22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(UBEETEEN) (In HKS million)

RAE Cost

202441 A1A At January 1, 2024
BEER Translation difference
NE Additions

e Disposals

2024512 A31H At December 31, 2024

ZRFTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

R2024% 1818 At January 1, 2024

BEER Translation difference

HE Impairment

TEERE Depreciation charge for the year

e Disposals

2024512 A31H At December 31, 2024

R2024512A318 Net book value at
ZREFE December 31, 2024

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 175
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2024F12H318

December 31, 2024

22, ¥ - HBRRE(E)

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
BENE
KAFHE B KR
21 BAERE
kigF Leasehold
Freehold BENEE improvements, HE
land & e Plant&  furniture & office Motor Ait
(W BEFTEZ) (In HKS$ million) buildings Buildings  equipment gquipment vehicles Total
AR Cost
20231518 At January 1, 2023 54 12 51 980 7 1114
AEZE Translation difference - - - ) . )
B Additions - 7 - 79 1 87
e Disposals - - (1) (48) () (52)
12023124318 At December 31, 2023 54 19 50 1,008 15 1,141
ZRTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
1202351 A1 At January 1, 2023 16 5 50 896 14 981
BEER Tranglation difference - - - (7) - (7)
TEERE Depreciation charge for the year - - - 50 2 52
& Disposals - - (1) (47) () (51)
12023512 A31H At December 31, 2023 16 5 49 892 13 975
#202312831R Net book value at
ZEERE December 31, 2023 38 14 1 111 2 166

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= R BEBAER
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B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

23. FAEEERHEAS 23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES
BEARBREINTHEEMRBEN TR The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to
leases:
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets
(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
2% Cost
M1A1H At January 1 2,501 2,155
BmEE5 Translation difference (58) (5)
2N Additions 159 162
MEE Lease modifications 328 323
HE Disposals (204) (134)
®W12H31H At December 31 2,726 2,501
EBTERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
®1A1H At January 1 1,739 1,465
HmEER Translation difference (37) (4)
VEREN Impairment 3 -
REEIE Depreciation charge
for the year 420 412
& Disposals (204) (134)
12 A31H At December 31 1,921 1,739
MW12A31H Net book value at
ZREEE December 31 805 762
2024 2023
HEEE: Lease liabilities:
mEh Current 328 329
JEmED Non-current 390 337
718 666
MENRS REEREA6. 7635 (2023 The total cash outflow for leases was HK$676 million (2023:
F:6.74BET) © HK$674 million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

23. EAREERMEEAE(H)

rEEHESEYE  BERAE - H
Eti - EEMNETERE HESR —
MET B1FE504F -

HHE R EARE B R 1B 15 7 W H
ERE S TR GERKAET - BT HHE
ARENHEEEETMERERIN - H
S T M iGR - HEEE
TRAEEERER

o ERERSHIMAELHEEE
B A2 A B FER - HRERIPIT
BE A A100%MHBEEMFEERATEMA
ENRKERET  BHoLLBEAEERE
#97.0%-30% (20234 : 7.0%-27.5%) °
FRAENAETINEREZE - 81
AREFT R PITEEKA - RIEHE
HETWAEHEENR  BFE6%EN
TG BRI IR T ARER -

AEENZEYEHESSTH MK IE
BER ZFBRFANEERSER
AEBEEETENKEBEEN - FIFA
PN A SIS E TR e 3 JEEI N RN S
BITEE - MASHEBEHEAITE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group leases various properties, including offices,
leasehold land, warehouses and retail stores. Rental
contracts are made for periods of 1 to 50 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a store. For individual
stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis
of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from
7.0% to 30% (20283: 7.0% to 27.5%) of sales. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimizing the fixed costs base for newly established
stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales
are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number
of property leases across the Group. These are used to
maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #



B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24. HE

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

24, GOODWILL
(ABEEETHEENT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
MW1B1H At January 1 541 541
B Impairment - -
M12A31H At December 31 541 541
(SRR Impairment test for goodwill

BEMNNEHERGEZE SR EE
ENEEEEMNARRAIEEESE
B HIEETEAEENETIER
HEERARNREBAGE REEL
BRIz RE£BIIZERRAL
BERNERATE - IERAIEAAEE
HET M8 AR e B IR FE AT B M T 35 1
B(E=H— BHE3(c)) - ZEHEFE
B EIEZSFHM S BE LT ER %
RBeRe - BEEEREBAEEMA
BREEZESEBLAEEMBEREZ
JEHRETEE - RSEMNABRRA
EZ8g  EEMGHM - FBEMNEFS
FIHEWM R K3.4%(2023F  3.9%) °
SFEHBNBZESRE  REFTRE
R RGFI%(20234F : 3%)HE - By
FRZFH%BAIBEA12.4% (2023 4F -
11.9%) ERBEBEES I 2 TER

LA
ai

o o
%y

EERAR2024F £2023F12A31H &
BN ARREIEZESHR T ERE
A o

AEERTHBEBEFERENANBER
BRRETHZEMEDT - RERSELE
TTRIE L FHER R EREEA1.0EE 2
FARRINEES 10 E D H - SWHI
LA BEFRLE  AARHNEMR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

The Gulf Cooperation Council ("GCC") goodwill has been
allocated to GCC operating segment, which represents the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored internally. The
recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined
based on fair value less costs of disposal, using inputs for
the fair value estimation that may include unobservable
market data (Level 3 — see Note 3(c)). These calculations
use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determines the financial budgets
of GCC business based on past performance and its
expectations of market development. The weighted average
annual sales growth rate in the forecast period is estimated
to be 3.4% (2023: 3.9%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth
rate of 3% (2023: 3%) per annum. The post-tax discount
rate used is 12.4% (2023: 11.9%) which reflect specific risks
relating to the current market assessment of risks specific to
such assets.

The Directors are of the opinion that there was no
impairment of GGC goodwill as at December 31, 2024 and
2023.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used for the annual impairment test for the
GCC goodwill. There would be sufficient headroom if the
CGUs’ forecasted annual sales growth rate had been lower
by 1.0 percentage point or the post-tax discount rate had
been higher by 1.0 percentage point, with all changes taken
in isolation.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

25. & 25. SHARE CAPITAL
ROEHE [N
(BRI EE S - (In HK$ million, except Number of Share
KU EEETREN) number of shares) shares capital
ZEBREBSBLZERER Authorized ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each:
M2023F1A1H * 2023412 H31H - At January 1, 2023,
2024%F1 A1H K2024%12A318 December 31, 2023,
January 1, 2024,
December 31, 2024 2,000,000,000 100
ERTREEHER : Issued and fully paid:
72023%F1 A1H At January 1, 2023 1,579,816,518 79
BT M 1T 2R Issue of shares pursuant to
exercise of share options 34,000,000 2
FANEH KM Share cancelled during the year (400,000) -
M2023F12 A31H k202491 18 At December 31, 2023 and
January 1, 2024 1,613,416,518 81
RATERE M 31T 2 R D Issue of shares pursuant to
exercise of share options 3,368,000 -
FRER MTHE R Share repurchased and
cancelled during the year (610,000) -
12024%12 A31H At December 31, 2024 1,616,174,518 81

(a) TEITRMH

RIBEARNR ZBRETE - AQ7A)
EMEREREEA(ERFRNITE
HEgltE 2 #A)) % 173,368,000/
(20234 : 34,000,000 % ) ¥ & i@
B BRREESEN - FRAETT
FrERESEEHHANAFRSE
CO1EZE207BIZE A B ETE
W °

ARABBRTZABHEBRERRD
AERZRABRNESETHAESR

CES S

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

(a)

Issue of shares

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company,
the Company issued 3,368,000 (2023: 34,000,000)
new ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital
of the Company to option-holders who exercised
their rights attached to share options during the year.
Movements in the number of the outstanding share
options during the year is set out on pages 201 to 207
under the heading “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” of this
annual report.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company

ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the
Company in all respects.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #



B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. A (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

[T 2 | 2 B R AR ABR
BRAFEERNZ B FBHNAE
RE201HE207H °

BoORkEHEKRH

B E2024F12A31BIEFE - 1B
BARNGIBREANEESE LN —K
B ARRERERATERLRA &
610,000f% &R Bl EL @A AL (5 - 42
REAB1208F T 2S5 HERK
DHEBEEFHEEARAREBITRA
BEERZERD ZEERR - SED
ENEENZREBEFARATZ
i m A o HEREFHERHEE
ZHRBEREFREMNEREERNE
[ & -

HE2023F12A31HILEE - K
N AR A FABE R BT B 0] B 3 AR AR

T/\ °

—BEEERTMEBEENRG
MR2024F12A31H » —H&E R
Al¥ A A A 71,800,000 % 38 A% A%
7 (2023 FF : 1,800,000 & /@ AL I%
3) e
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202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share option information

Summary of the “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” and
details of the movement in share options of the
Company during the year are set out on pages 201 to
207 of this annual report.

Repurchase and cancellation of shares

During the year ended December 31, 2024, pursuant
to the general mandate granted by the shareholders of
the Company to the Board, the Company repurchased
a total of 610,000 of its ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$1.2
million, these repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of the cancelled
shares accordingly.The premium paid and payable on
repurchase was charged against the retained profits
of the Company. An amount equivalent to the nominal
value of the shares cancelled was transferred from
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the
Company did not repurchase its ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2024, 1,800,000 ordinary shares
(2023: 1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint
venture.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

26. ERFEBIEER 26.

HE2024F12 31 1F 7 I tEss 42 %A
122187 7T (20234 : 1.23{8/87T) »
EAPT. Giordano Indonesia([ Giordano
Indonesia ) 1h 1.421& 7 T (2023 4 :
1.3418 ) * M Textile and Garments
Co. Ltd.([ Giordano KSA |)151,5008 /&
JC(20234F 11,7008 %87T) - HMRFZ
JIEIERIERS TEK ©

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The total non-controlling interests as at December 31,
2024 are HK$122 million (2023: HK$123 million), of which
HK$142 million (2023: HK$134 million) is for PT. Giordano
Indonesia (“Giordano Indonesia”) and HK$15 million
(2023: HK$17 million) is for Textile and Garments Co. Ltd.
(“Giordano KSA”). The non-controlling interests in respect of
the rest of the companies are not material.

EEEBRE® Summarized balance sheet

Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(A FBEE THENT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023 2024 2023
b5 i Current
BE Assets 244 278 106 106
=4 Liabilities (105) (131) (61) (62)
MENFEEBTE Total current net assets 139 147 45 44
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 207 222 81 65
BE Liabilities (63) (75) (24) (4)
R FEERTE Total non-current net assets 144 147 57 61
REEMRTE Total net assets 283 294 102 105

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

26. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(continued)

meaWBEREE Summarized statement of comprehensive income
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(XBEEBTRENN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023 2024 2023
WA Revenue 767 739 208 293
BR ET1S AT 4 A Profit before income taxes 114 145 21 23
Frigit Income taxes (26) (34) (4) (4)
BRETSHBER Profit after income taxes 88 111 17 19
HEirs (BB K= Other comprehensive
(loss) income (18) 3 (1) -
Bz aWE Total comprehensive
income 70 114 16 19
IR HIEAE RS AA4R B URES  Total comprehensive
income allocated to
non-controlling interests 25 46 4 5
JEEFIEEE BT RE Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests 27 66 5 5
HeRERFH Summarized cash flows
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(XBEBTRENN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023 2024 2023
REETE 2 Net cash inflow from
WEmMAFE operating activities 48 160 80 89
KREXGZHRE Net cash inflow (outflow)
mAGR ) F 58 from investing activities 47 (87) (5) ®)
BEEB Net cash outflow from
WEm L H financing activities (82) (203) (81) (77)
WENREZEEY Increase (decrease) in cash
EORL) and cash equivalents 13 (130) (6) 4
MA1TBZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REEBEET at January 1 28 156 59 55
INEETE R B 2 LB Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (2) 2 = -
M12A31HZERER Cash and cash equivalents
REeEZEER at December 31 39 28 53 59

FREMBRFTEE AR ZEEHATH

TH

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

eliminations.

The information above is the amount before inter-company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

27 PREERERRESZHR

27 BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

THE COMPANY

AEEERER Balance sheet of the Company
(X B EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
BE ASSETS
REEE Current assets
Be RIRTTHETT Cash and bank balances 17 25
JrE LS BR 51 % EL A e Uk SR Trade and other receivables 8 3
UL FT1SH% Income tax receivable 1 -
NGBS Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,424 2,160
2,450 2,188
EREBEE Non-current assets
RIBa R AR ERE Financial asset at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 28 28
FTREEE Right-of-use assets 77 81
A NEIE /S Amounts due from subsidiaries 136 155
(S EPNEIE: Fa Interest in subsidiaries 816 816
H 4th e sk Other receivables 6 -
1,063 1,080
EEHAE Total assets 3,513 3,268
EBERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
RBEE Current liabilities
JRE AT B 5% K2 EL Ath B A 5% Trade and other payables 25 9
JE AT B8 2 R FUR Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,580 1,458
BERE Total liabilities 1,605 1,467
AR w# e Capital and reserves
EEIN Share capital 81 81
] Reserves 1,730 1,502
#EOR I 8. Proposed dividends 97 218
EREEE Total equity 1,908 1,801
ERREEREE Total equity and liabilities 3,513 3,268
FEREBEE Net current assets 851 721
EEABERRBERE Total assets less current
liabilities 1,908 1,801
PRERE EEY
CHAN Ka Wai Mark Alan LOYND
2 EF
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27 RRAIEERBERREZZHR(H)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

27 BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

PEEREER Equity movements of the Company
‘ R
& Bk (ZiFR)
EAgE BE  Retained
Bx §ARH Capital ROEE Share profits EniE
Share  Contributed redemption Share options  (Accumulated Total
(HEERTAEN) (In HKS millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve losses) equity
10241 A1 At January 1, 2024 81 540 3 1,028 16 133 1,601
REERH Proft or the year 5 - - - . 450 450
Brea Total comprehensive income - - - - - 450 450
BEERE Transfer among resenves - g - - ] 2 .
B Share option scheme
-RiEEREM T R - Share ssue Upon exercise of share options - - - 5 - . 5
BERBRE Wi 13) 2023 final dvidend (Note 13 - - - - - (218) (218)
NUERERE (Wi 136) 2024 nterm dividend fote 136 - - - - - (129) (129)
EORE RN AE20) share repurchase and cancelled (Vote 25c) - - - - - 1) (1)
- - - § (2) (346) (343)
2024 12R315 At December 31, 2024 81 540 3 1,033 14 27 1,908
2023F 2 LEBEF AT ¢ The comparative figures for 2023 are set out as follows:
\ o
&% BhE  (ZER)
BORRE ] Retained
B& 8B4 Capltal RinaE Share profis ExeE
Share  Contrbuted ~ redemption Share options ~ (Accumulated Total
(HEE4nEEl) (In HKS millon) capial surplus 1eseng premium 1eS8Ive losses) squity
H023E1 /1A At January 1, 2023 79 50 3 93 2 (17 1510
KEERA Profi for the year - - - - - 758 758
Breha Total comprehensive income - - - - - 758 758
BEmRE Transfer among reserves - - - - i 6 B}
BRE Share option scheme
-WiRERENL TR - St issue upon exercise of hare optons 2 - - I3 - - 7
N0ERERE W 130) 2022 fnal cividend fNote 131t - - - - - (240) (240)
0350 EBRE (WiE130) 2023 interim dividend (Note 134) - - - - - (74) 274
2 - - 5 i 150 1g7)
#2023%1231R At December 31, 2023 81 50 3 1028 16 183 1,801

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

28. f#1E

R20244F K 2023F12 A31H - KN&EEH 2
BEITOT

28. RESERVES

The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2024 and
2023 are analyzed as follows:

(UXBEEBTARENN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
AR Contributed surplus 383 383
N EIE Capital redemption reserve 3 3
B8 19 & (B Share premium 1,033 1,028
B Share options reserve 14 16
ME H Exchange reserve (160) (94)
Hib A Other reserves 125 124
REMEERBEEARERE L Financial asset at fair value
TRIEEME through other comprehensive
income reserve (5) (7)
B 78 A Retained profits 524 655
1,917 2,108
R AR BN B (KAt 13(a)) Proposed final dividends
(Note 13(a)) (97) (218)
EREE Total reserves 1,820 1,890

REB ZHARBBRDEREBEAME
HEZERGE  MEBEEATIREN1995
F5A29B T ket ElMETT o IRIE
BRF1GIFRNGNA(KIEER])  BIAR
BRI TR o

Hipfdw < ERHEBFBOT

(@ MREFBEANMAERREEEMFE
B PEIAM Z ME AR ZAE R
BESAAARNBHEFER(INE)
K LA DN S B AR BANEE -

(b) RIEFEER L EER A K EE
BEEL - KBREZAERRZ
EERBES MEMEER R LA
TR R RSB EBEE AR - A
A RER 2 BEIRE

(c) TRIEFIBEFER R QBIEM] - Fu B
ZHWBRRIZEAERBES - B
HOEMEIN » NAHEDEZA -

d EEHRLIHBE2ERVYEAE
8,1008 78 7T (20234 : 8,100& /&
7C) (BI3E31) »

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit
arising from a group reorganization pursuant to a scheme of
arrangement which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(a)

According to the relevant laws and financial regulations,
the statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China are used to make up prior years’ losses,
if any, and to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation
Law and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve
fund and other reserves of the joint venture in the Republic
of Korea may only be used to offset a future deficit or be
transferred to capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

According to the UAE Commercial Companies Law,
the statutory reserve fund of the subsidiary in the UAE
is not available for distribution except as provided in
the Federal Law.

Put option financial liability recognized of HK$81
million (2023: HK$81 million) (Note 31).

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

29. RITER 29. BANK LOANS
(ABEEETHEENT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
RITERBREATSE : Bank loans comprise the
following:
EH - BER Short-term, secured 3 5
FEHR - KR Short-term, unsecured 23 25
26 30
IRITERAER T BEERE - The bank loans are repayable
as follows:
BIHASk — & A On demand or
within one year 26 30
REEZRITETU T EREE - The Group’s bank loans are denominated in the following
currencies:
(ABEEETHAENT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
— A - New Taiwan dollar 23 25
—HMEE - Vietnamese Dong 3 5
26 30
M2024F12A318 - ARBEZRITEXN The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank loans
R EFRF R 53.0%(2023%F :3.3%) ° iR as at December 31, 2024 was 3.0% (2023: 3.3%). The
TEREZEMERTURR TS © bank loans bear interest at floating rate that are market
dependent.
RITE 3008 BT (20234 : 5008 7% The bank loan of HK$3 million (2023: HK$5 million) is
TO)AEE BB A FIH — R IR secured by property of a non-controlling shareholder of
P VETR o non-wholly owned subsidiary.
R2024% &2023F12A31H » B A A The unsecured bank loan as at December 31, 2024 and
RS EEFIRITERIIARA R RRMH 2023 obtained by the subsidiaries are secured by the
B R R ER BT o corporate guarantees provided by the Company.
RITERMEAEREARERE - The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate to their fair
values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & # & m B B R A 7 187



188

MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

30. BRI H b FE A K

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(ABEEETHEENT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023

FERTBR SR Trade payables 292 199

RReEME Pension obligation 36 41
HMENFRRENER Other payables and

accrued expense 283 312

611 552

AT RIEZRFZENERRZRED

The ageing analysis of trade payables from the invoice date

BT is as follows:

(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023

0£30H 0 - 30 days 262 185

31Z260H 31 - 60 days 19 4

61£290H 61 — 90 days 4 4

#90H Over 90 days 7 6
292 199

ENERMEMENRZEEEEZER
REREE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
R REBRAERLIA

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables

approximate to their fair values.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30. BENRMRAEMENR(E)
RARKESEHE
AEET2RNEENNABREGHEEZE
SREWERMAE - REZEWEIE
RARRBEARE - Rk aT 8T RO BE AR N S A
DERKEBEETIREEELEBNREHS
PR UWREZRGFREFEFEM
o BTHREBBAEIRBEEDIRE
AHE HERMN N EECHRNERA L
IR B KM - EEMRENHRAE
REBNEREE -

It AN - AN SR O B EBU(E R T M SRGT
2 FUEFEBEXREAEBRANLAA
MEERR - REBEE LTS MER
SHTEETERRS I MHMHRK - ANF
[ HiE e AR A 2 H B 3R 55,900
B8 (20234 : 6,0008%87T) °

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined benefit plans mainly in GCC.
The end-of-service benefit payments under the plan are
based on the employees’ final salaries and allowances
and their cumulative years of service at the date of their
termination of employment, as defined by the conditions
stated in the respective local labour laws. Employees’
end-of-service benefit plans are unfunded plans and the
benefit payment obligation are met when they fall due upon
termination of employment. Projected unit credit method is
used to assess the present value of the obligations.

The group also operates a couple of defined contribution
plans which receive fixed contributions from group
companies. The group’s legal or constructive obligation
for these plans is limited to the contributions made.
The expense recognised for the year in relation to these
contributions was HK$59 million (2023: HK$60 million).

2024 2023
UAE Saudi UAE Saudi
FTEREEEMNTEE The key significant actuarial
FEERRNT assumptions of defined
benefit plans were as follows:
I8 K Discount rate 5.00% 5.10% 4.83% 4.75%
HeitE R Salary growth rate 4.00% 2.38% 1.00% 3.54%

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

31.

RURBEHHERE

20124 + 7N & & Bt A Giordano UAE
X Giordano KSAZ FE% A% I B8 5 3808
HifE U EHERLERRI 2B TE
SYAEEEANPKEAEMERE
E#1.02BB T - ZR KR HENRA
& B A U B Giordano UAE K Giordano
KSAZ I 3F 14 Befsrl 171F - M B &E|
HAH ZEWBaBY S REBEK
AHER - BMLhEtELSENIRE - K
ROhEEEREUNETT(ET]FHERY
AREalE -

% 2015 F - & & B 3t [ Giordano
Fashions Co. W.L. L.([ Giordano KW J) X
GIO Fashions W.L.L.([ Giordano QA )
ZIEERRERER HROLEE - A E N
ERLERRIZB TR TASBFFE
ERNPTFEEMEREEL1,9008%5
TG o RZ IR RROH BRE N AN 5 B S K U S
Giordano KW K Giordano QAZ I& 1934
BEERRIITE - MEBEIEAHE - 25
B EY S IR LK ARER - BIE
FFERSEMRE HURLHESE
ETFHERINERBEE °

20194 + 7K & [F B Giordano UAE -
Giordano KW K Giordano QA 3E #2 i%
RERET S ek - ETERIGEE - UR
EHRl#2,1008 8T ~ 1,1008 BT &
500& 78 7T & Giordano UAEH)20% 4
FERE S Giordano KW B 31% B 4% 75 1&
# N Giordano QARI41 % HIAS S © T
i — # Y Giordano UAE -+ Giordano
KW K Giordano QAL 75k 25 Y [B) B
T % By 3R 0 B 1T 1 3R A9 48 8 3R 0 B
EEECEEHARI -

ZEREAEHEBEOSBERABERE
THARBRRBASRNESRERAR
BZASMEE  REVNHZRENSE
HRAA RS ERGHE R (T £
@A) REFEVHRELERE 135
ZRRBENEBEDBRE=R
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31.

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$102 million in relation to the financial
liabilities arising from the put option granted to the non-
controlling shareholders of Giordano UAE and Giordano
KSA to sell their remaining interests in these companies to
the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time after
3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized
at their amortized costs, which is measure at the present
value of the estimated redemption amount. The put option
liabilities are denominated in United States dollars (“‘US$”)
and are classified under current liabilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$19 million in relation to the financial
liabilities arising from the put option granted to the non-
controlling shareholders of Giordano Fashions Co. W.L.L.
(“Giordano KW”) and GIO Fashions W.L.L. (“Giordano
QA”) to sell their remaining interests in these companies
to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of
the shares in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized
at their amortized cost, which is the present value of the
estimated redemption amount. The put option liabilities are
denominated in U.S. dollars and are classified under current
liabilities.

In 2019, the Group entered into agreements with the non-
controlling shareholder of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW
and Giordano QA who exercised the put option to sell
20% economic interests in Giordano UAE, 31% economic
interest in Giordano KW and 41% economic interest in
Giordano QA at considerations of approximately HK$21
million, HK$11 million and HK$5 million respectively. The
associated put option liabilities recognized arising from the
put option granted had been lapsed accordingly at the time
of further acquisition of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW and
Giordano QA economic interest.

"“The redemption amount of the put option liabilities is
determined at higher of fixed amount of cash or fair value
of the equity investment based on discounted cash flows,
using inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32. EERIBEE

EEBRBERBAEZINEEEER
RE RN & RDAR R 2 B R M F 2 B
& o

AEERFAZELEHEBEEERABEZ
PH) (R — B E 2 AT AT 1
™

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method at the rates applicable
in the respective jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same

taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

BEHEB(EE)ERS Deferred tax (assets) liabilities
mEE
wE  R2K2
HREEE  HERE Accelerated  REEA
Right-of-use Lease accounting  Unremitted At CE
(U EEETREf) (In HK$ million) assets liabilities depreciation profits Others Total
1202451 A1 At January 1, 2024 108 (120) 5 10 (31) 72
BEEE Translation difference - 1 - (12) 1 (10)
RAERSB (H% )53 (Credited) charged to income
(Wit11) statement (Note 11) (15) 15 2 ) 13 12
20245124318 At December 31, 2024 93 (104) 7 95 (17) 74
002351518 At January 1, 2023 101 (113 o) 111 (40) 57
BEZE Translation difference - - . 0) . ?)
REERPIIZ(H2) Charged (credited) to income
(Wiit11) statement (Note 11) 7 7 7 1 9 17
2023124318 At December 31, 2023 108 (120) 5 110 (31) 72

REBEBRERIES. 278 B T (2023
F 43288 m) o WERERBIEBER
3.6018 B L (20234 : 2.72BE 7T) H R
202412 A31 HESFERNEM - 88 T &0
DEBZEEMNREBRWE R A 2 &R
TRIBEIEL -
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The Group has unrecognized tax losses of HK$527
million (2023: HK$432 million). These unrecognized tax
losses to the extent of HK$360 million (2023: HK$272
million) will expire within 5 years from December 31, 2024.
The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses of
subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which have no expiry
date.
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32. EEREE B (H) 32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
EEHB(EE)AG(E) Deferred tax (assets) liabilities (continued)
TEEATERNFAT  BERELEMERF R Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
Bl — RS EEFRIBE E R BT legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
MIBBEEMREE - THSBELET AE current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
BEE  RNEHBEEABRANTIE - relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts,

determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(X B EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
REHIEEE Deferred tax assets (21) (39)
EIERRIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 95 111
74 72
33. HtkRBERE 33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(KB EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
MEaEHZ23) Lease liabilities (Note 23) 390 337
Hib Others 27 -
417 337
HtmBpREEREBEINRRKeE TR Other consist of provision for asset retirement and pension
1 o obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34. HEEE

(@)

MR2024F12A31H » "EEBRET
EEH  BRAERERZTAINE
KA HENTERNSHEEZA
R—FERNIBPNEEA1,1008 8
7t (20234 : 1,000887T) °

HEANBEE TRERKGHR M2
BT E R ERE - BT A
EME IRFERIEREE S SHIAE
EREZHE(UBSERE) -
EiAEDNRREREERTE -

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

34. LEASES COMMITMENTS

(a)

As at December 31, 2024, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease charges payable under non-
cancellable leases in respect of retail shops, office
premises and warehouses which were due within
one year amounted to HK$11 million (2023: HK$10
million).

The leases contracts have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights. The lease rentals of
certain outlets are based on the higher of a minimum
guaranteed rental or a sales level based rental. The
minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at
the above commitments.

(b) M2024F12H31H @ KEBEFZ (b) As at December 31, 2024, the Group had future
EEH R AE 7 T R ARKEE aggregate minimum lease income receivable under
Ko H B B B K FE YA B U A R non-cancellable operating leases in respect of retail
N shops and office premises as set out below:
(ABEEETHEENT) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
1F R Within one year 8 6
1F1ZE5F A After one year but
within five years 14 1
22 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #
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35. EXENE

R20244F % 2023F12 A31H » NEFHI
EXNE /N

BEREARNEEMERE -
ERELEANEIE -

36. MEEBELA 2EEHK

TRAMAEEREME RSN ES
c BEIAE
FTEEMBEDNARSREM - 3K
RREREBAREGAPBRERT D

B BRAS MRS

EARATHFELNEERE -

35.

36.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group had
no material capital commitment in respect of leasehold
improvement, furniture and fixtures.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flow were,
or future cash flows will be classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing

activities.

MEXBEE
Liabilities from
financing activities

HEAE IRITER
Lease Bank
(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) liabilities loans
M2023F1 18 2 FEH Net debt as at January 1, 2023 613 12
EEBITER Repayment of bank loans - (105)
EINERITE K Addition of bank loans - 123
HEaE 2R ITK Payment for principal element
of lease liabilities (400) -
HEBGBEZFEH TR Payment for interest element
(REEZEBNR) of lease liabilities in
operating activities (39) -
IR EH Non-cash movements 492 -
R2023F 12 H31 B 2 &4 Balance as at December 31,
2023 666 30
BiBiR1TER Repayment of bank loans - (140)
EINRITER Addition of bank loans - 138
HEaE 2R ETK Payment for principal element
of lease liabilities (408) -
HEBGBEZFEH TR Payment for interest element
(REEZEBR) of lease liabilities in
operating activities (45) -
R & Non-cash movements 505 (2)
R2024F12 A31 8 2 &% Balance as at December 31,
2024 718 26

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. EEMBALRS

BB A TR BERIEEESNS—T7
SEELPBEREERRBH S — 7717
BERFENZ AL - KRZ M AZES
IXMABREZEN AL ERER
BEAL -

(a) HEBALI2ZXRS
RAFER > EFHBRAIE—R
MBEEEKBRE—HALEARE
TERHEKRRRS - BEBEZER
SEFnT

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

(a) Transactions with related party

During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with a joint
venture in the ordinary and usual course of business
on normal commercial terms. Details relating to these
transactions are as follows:

(U BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023
HE T —H&&a QA Sales to a joint venture 144 130
A= i R /NE] Purchases from

a joint venture 1 1
WA —HeaE AR Royalty income from

a joint venture 19 22

(b) EERFEE AN 248k
12 A31 8 eI e A 508 -

(A B & TREL)

(b) Balances with related party

Amount due from a related party at December 31 is:

(In HK$ million) 2024 2023

fEl—FH A& RRIFIA

Amount due from
a joint venture 4 10

20245 K 2023%F12 A31H
i i Y BA B A = FRTB B R R AE JE K
R R EAM WK - BURIES A
I BB REREREER -
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As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the above
amount due from a related party is reflected in trade
and other receivables. The receivable is unsecured in
nature, bear no interest and is repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

37. EEEBALIRSZ (&) 37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) X EEEEHRM (c) Key management compensation
FFERTTESIRERATETE Executive Directors are considered as key
CEENM e E RIS RERM T management and their emoluments have been
10AHE - HMFEERERMTH disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. The
MemT : emoluments payable to other key management are as

follows:
(BB F T mElr) (In HK$°000) 2024 2023
EAFH ¢ RHEAMAER Basic salaries and
other benefits 7,002 7,049
RIKEFTEIHN Contribution to
pension schemes 126 121
EIEE BB Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 5,609 5,800
12,737 12,970
REFER [BEER | A F8EEn The Group’s “Beyond Boundaries” 5-year strategy will
2025F IERFA - At - AT B officially commence in 2025. As such, the number of
FRXSHER  [EAEEEE|(T and/or composition of ‘key management’ (excluding
BIERITES) NEEMN,REK Executive Directors) for the purposes of related party
AIRE @ FEARKEITER © transactions may be updated in future.
38. EEEH 38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
R20244F K 2023F 12 A31H » REEW The Group did not pledge any assets as of December 31,
BEREMEE - 2024 and 2023.
39. FAREIE 39. CONTINGENCY

REEBERRA  UTBEERNH At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided

FEIRF AR for in the financial statement were as follows:

(LA B EETRER) (In HK$ million) 2024 2023

REEAMELRE ZRITER

Bank guarantees given in lieu
of property rental deposits 10 11

RNBEHEERE  EEW TR AEAR
ERZEERMATERAQGIEL ZH
R o [EI - WER20244F [22023%F12 A
1AM ZERRIEH (A HE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

1% L s mnmmemraa

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees. No provision was
therefore made in this respect at December 31, 2024 and
2028.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

40. BEFEZEHIMBERNRS

41.

REE2023F 6 A U EEPT Retail Kreatif
Amerta Internasional B 2 2B & %% 17 A%
h EW—EXEEAEREF —HAE
B JE2 & A B E 2 B PT Giordano
Indonesia([ GID ) #)14.80% &z + 48
REAB100EF I T (T E K508 8
g0) o WEETE - AEEHGIDA A BIFRK
L1 H152.06%1Z H111.84% E63.90%

RN REGIDR R MER - AR B HERIE
7 Tl 14 i K% I 2 ) 1A i P WK TR
D BEARRERREGERIE 6005
BT °

202412 H31H
December 31, 2024

40. TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

In June 2023, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of PT Retail Kreatif Amerta Internasional, whose sole
material asset is its ownership of 14.80% in PT Giordano
Indonesia (“GID”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, for a total consideration of SG$1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$5.9 million). The Group’s effective
shareholding in GID increased by 11.84% from 52.06% to
63.90% after the acquisition.

As a result of the acquisition of an additional interest in
GID, the Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling
interests and receivables from the non-controlling interests,
resulting in an increase in equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company of HK$6 million.

FEWE AT 41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
ARARR2024F12A31TB 2 EEWB A The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the
I Company as at December 31, 2024
ERTRZBHRRE/
FERG EMER/ BEES
L ERES Issued and fully
R Effective paid share capital/l TEX¥K KLHE
WEARER Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2024 2023
EHRERAR &% 100 100 3,000,000 BREZRRIEMADBEERS,/ BB
Bluestar Exchange Limited* Hong Kong HK$3,000,000  Investment holding and provision of
company consultancy services/
Hong Kong
Fast Jean Limited" Bt 100 100 1,000,000 HETEREREBAR/ 48
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/
Taiwan
GIO Fashions W.L.L.* £ 49 49 200000FARESHE METEREREBAR/ LB
State of Qatar QAR200,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #
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41. T EMBE LTI (E) 41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRZBHRERE/
FERGZ HMER/ BEES
L ERES Issued and fully
B 3L 2 Effective paid share capital/ FTEE¥ KLHE
MEAREZR Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2024 2023
GIOR Fashion Company ~ #ig 60 60 26,000,000,0008%& LETERELEBRR/ BH
Limited* Vietnam VND$26,000,000,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Vietnam
Giordano (Australia) Pty. & 92.8 92.8 70000087 HETERERERAR/ AN
Limited* Australia AUD700,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/
Australia
Giordano Fashions L.L.C.*  FiE# 100 100 3,000,000 @Y HETERERERAR, MHE
UAE AED 3,000,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
UAE
Giordano Fashions W.LL*  RiE 49 49 300,000 EHEMR HETERERERAR/ BB
State of Kuwait KWD300,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
State of Kuwait
ERRBRATN 0 100 100 5,000,008 EETERAHRER
Giordano Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 E#BEG /&b
Retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories/Hong Kong
Giordano (Thai) Co., Ltd.* % 100 100 10,000,000%% HETERERERAL,/ FE
Thailand Baht10,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/
Thailand
Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd.  ERAEZ 100 100 5000005 REDLE KETERERERAR/ SRAS
Malaysia RM500,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Malaysia
ERRRFIER AR A 100 100 50,0008FI% LETERELEBAR/ BN
Giordano (Macau) Limited*  Macau MOP50,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/

Macau
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTRZBHRERE/
FER®BZ HMER/ BEES
L ERES Issued and fully
B 3L 2 Effective paid share capital/ FTEE¥ KLHE
MEAREZR Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2024 2023
Giordano Middle East FZE*  FB# - i F 100 100 1,000,000MEE AR BEDHRER
Dubai - UAE AED1,000,000  EEAR/MHE—HE
Distribution of apparel and
accessories/Dubai — UAE
Giordano Originals G 100 100 1,900,004 %t KETERBEIRER
(Singapore) Private Singapore SGD1,900,002  E#AR/HNK
Limited Retailing and trading of apparel and
accessories/Singapore
Giordano Vietnam Limited* &% 60 60 802,000 REMER,/ BB
Hong Kong USD802,000  Investment holding/Hong Kong
Giordano (Cambodia) RER 80 80 4,000000RBRER HETEREREBAR/ THE
Enterprises Limited* Cambodia KHR$4,000,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Cambodia
PT. Giordano Indonesia*  £1f¢ 64 64 2,500,000,00060E KLETERE  ERARK
Indonesia IDR2,500,000,000 HEBEBER/HfE
Retail of apparel, accessories and
related products/Indonesia
ANRBHEKBERAG* REARLNE 100 100 260,100,000TARE RERK HERHERER
Shenzhen Tiger People's Republic RMB260,100,000  EC#A &,/ HERM
Garment Ltd." ¥ of China Investment holding, manufacturing
and retailing of apparel and
accessories/Mainland China
RELZERAT B 100 100 60,001,00087T ®REZR  KKEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$60,001,000 REEERE/ FENL,

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 #
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Investment holding, trading of
garment products, and provision
of management services/Mainland
China
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41. T EMBE AT (&) 41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRZBHRERE/
FER®BZ HMER/HEER
ERELE Issued and fully
B Effective paid share capital/ TE¥¥/ LEHE
LIENGES Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2024 2023
Textile and Garments Co. WM AEH 75 75 27,000,000 KEE HETEREREBAR/
Ltd.* Kingdom of SR27,000,000  YEMA{ATH
Saudi Arabia Retail of apparel and accessories/
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.*  BIEEE 100 100 102%L  WEBEEEFE/B5
Cayman Islands USD102  Licensing of trademarks/
Hong Kong
Hiat - Notes:
+ HNEEAERE # A foreign owned enterprise
MERFE 2B AR *  Subsidiaries held indirectly
42. M HmFz 2 HLE 42. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N BIRAREON2025FE3 26 EES
e E -

The financial statements were approved by the Board on
March 26, 2025.
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On June 9, 2011, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (as amended on May 22, 2012) (the “2011 Share Option
Scheme”). No options may be and have been granted under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme from June 9, 2021, the expiry
date, but the options granted before the expiry date continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of issue.
Subject to the aforesaid, the provisions of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme remained in full force and effect until December 31,
2028, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible
participants.

(2) Eligible participants
0 (a

any Director or proposed Director (whether
executive or non-executive, including any
independent non-executive Director), employee
or proposed employee (whether full time or part

time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded
to work for; any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(i)  any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(3)

(i)  ANEBEEMAKE kIR R =k
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(a) EMEBFHEERHE - MR
i AER - REBHRRE

(o) fEf] AL EREIRHEMZT
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W B - BEHEMAR

() MEMEMRREHEER
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e EMEIRHEFT(BESMAEA
=)

2011 EEREFEmMS 0 BeE
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REZFETTFRTZROAR

Azt 22 R2021F6 A9H Em © ~5
I 4 BE IR AE AR 4R 2011 F BB AR RE 51 2%
l_lm_l o

20253 H26 H + RIK20114F i5 % #E
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1T 1M A B 1T RO IR 15 48 815 83,082,000
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(3)

(i) any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or a company controlled by a controlling
shareholder of;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or
any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,
(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant)
of;

and, for the purposes of the 2011 Share Option Scheme,
shall include any company controlled by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes of eligible
participants.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE UNDER THE SCHEME

No options may be and have been granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme from June 9, 2021, the expiry date.

As at March 26, 2025, a number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is 83,082,000
shares (representing approximately 5.14% of the shares in
issue) that may be issued upon exercise of all options which
had been granted and yet to be exercised under the 2011
Share Option Scheme. No treasury shares were held by the
Company.
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANTS

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted or to be
granted to each participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue unless
the same is approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting.

In addition, any share options to a substantial shareholder
and/or an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, and
where the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted or to be granted to
such person in any 12-month period exceed 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the shares on the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to the Company’s
shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

TIME OF EXERCISE OF OPTION

An option may be exercised under the terms of the
2011 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
commencing on such date on or after the date on which the
option is granted as the Board may determine in granting
the option and expiring at the close of business on such
date as the directors may determine in granting the option
but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant.

THE MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFERS

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$1.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price is determined by the Board which shall
be at least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date when
an option is offered;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date on
which an option is offered; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

THE REMAINING LIFE OF THE SCHEME

The 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period
of 10 years from the date of adoption, and was expired on
June 9, 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 F #
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BREZE T MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS
BIE2011 E AR ST 2 BE ISR E £2024 Movements of share options under the 2011 Share Option
F12A831HILFEER 7B MOT - Scheme during the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out
below:
2011 R fEEHE
2011 Share Option Scheme
BREHR
Number of share options
Ro0o4F  RERRE RERTRE  REAXN  RERZE RNouFE  SRARE
181A Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Canceled 12831 Exercise L]
AERAL As at during during during during As at pice  HHAH  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2024/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2024/12/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
BT (§/5/8) (£/5/8)
HKS  (YYYYMmDD) (YYYY/MM/DD)
g2
Directors
FE 100,000 - - 100,000 - - 5,000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
CHAN Ka Wai 150,000 - - 150,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
200,000 - - 200,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
250,000 - - 250,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
300,000 - - 300,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
1,366,000 - - - - 1,366,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
1,666,000 - - - - 1,666,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
1,668,000 - - - - 1,668,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/00/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/00/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
7,700,000 - - 1,000,000 - 6,700,000
B2 200,000 - - 200,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
Mark Alan LOYND 300,000 - - 300,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
400,000 - - 400,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
500,000 - - 500,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
600,000 - - 600,000 - - 5,000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
64,000 - - - - 64,000 3792 2015/04/09  2017/03/10 - 2025/03/3
332,000 - - - - 332,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/3
332,000 - - - - 332,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/3

1
1 1 1
1 1 12/31
1,336,000 - - - - 1,336,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31

9,064,000 -

2,000,000 - 7,064,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BREHR
Number of share options
ok RERRE  REAGE  REREN  REREE  ROUE  SRARE

1A1R Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Canceled  12A31B Exercise s

RERAL As at during during during during As at pice  HHAH  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2024/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2024/12/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
A (£/5/8) (£/5/8)

HKS  (YYYymMwoD) (YYYYMm/oD)

ERFARRFRBEREEAREI%NNSRE

Participants with options granted and to be granted in excess of 1% individual limit

0yl
Not applicable

ERERFARRTRERBRACRTRON0INNRRRNBERRSREARBRAL

Related entity participants or service providers with options granted and to be granted during the year exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of shares in issue

NEE
Not applicable

Hpsaz

Other participants

-EHEEANES 2,964,000 - - 2,964,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23

- Other Continuous 4,426,000 - - 4426000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23

Contract Employees 5,946,000 - - 5,946,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2017/0310 - 2024/03/23
7,466,000 - - 7,466,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
8,928,000 - - 8,928,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
2,528,000 - - 26,000 - 2,502,000 3792 2015/04/09  2016/03/04 - 2025/03/31
2,924,000 - - 28,000 - 2,896,000 3792 2015/04/09 2017/03/10 - 2025/03/31
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4090 201500710 2016/03/04 - 2025/06/30
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4090 201500710 2017/03/10 - 2025/06/30
942,000 - - - - 942,000 4340 2016/09/19  2017/03/10 - 2026/06/30
946,000 - - - - 96,000 4340 2016/09/19 201810309 - 2026/06/30
9,386,000 - - 188,000 - 0,198,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
10,236,000 - - 200000 - 10,036,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
12,170,000 - - 388,000 - 11,782,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
2,592,000 - - - - 2,592,000 4050 2017/06/09  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
2,592,000 - - - - 2,592,000 4050 2017/06/09  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
2,616,000 - - - - 2,616,000 4050 2017/06/09  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
6,362,000 - 862,000 148,000 - 535,000 1300 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
6,638,000 - 844,000 148,000 - 5,646,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
9,704,000 - 1,000,000 154,000 - 8460000 1390 2020009/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
99,866,000 - 2796000 31,010,000 - 66,060,000

206 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BhREsA
Number of share options
HoouE  RERRE  RERORE RERXN MEREE  R0uE  SRORE
1A1R Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Canceled  12A31B Exercise s
RERAL As at during during during during As at pice  HHAH  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2024/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2024/12/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
A (£/5/8) (£/5/8)
HKS  (YYYymMwoD) (YYYYMu/DD)
Bfg5z
Other participants
-EHBEER
- Other related entity
0l
Not applicable
Sl 410,000 - - 410,000 - - 5,000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
- Other service providers 7 610,000 - - 610,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
820,000 - - 820,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
1,030,000 - - 1,030,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
1,230,000 - - 1,230,000 - - 5000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
200,000 - - - - 200,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
266,000 - - - - 266,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/09 - 2025/12/31
436,000 - - - - 436,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
1,368,000 - 126,000 - - 1242000 1390 2020/00/09  2021/03/12 - 2028112/31
1,432,000 - 190,000 - - 1242,000 1390 2020/00/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
1,512,000 - 256,000 - - 1,266,000 1390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
9,314,000 - 572,000 4,100,000 - 4,642,000
4t
Total: 125,944,000 - 3,368,000 38,110,000 - 84,466,000
BaF - Notes:

1. RESHEBRINBENEEA  LZEEA

2. REEBRESBITEAHFZREIMEFGKT 2.

1BREKR2.0788 7T -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 & #

1.

Owners of the authorized dealers/franchisees and a legal consultant

The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the

respective exercise date of the options was HK$2.078.
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IMPORTANT DATES
Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting
(both days inclusive)

Final Dividend
(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

May 30, 2025

Dividends

Interim Dividend HK8.0 cents per share
Paid on September 20, 2024
Proposed Final Dividend HK®B.0 cents per share
Payable on June 20, 2025
STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange : 709

Bloomberg : 709 HK

Reuters 0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668

Facsimile (852) 2370 8864

Email investorrelations@giordano.com
WEBSITE

www.giordano.com
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May 27, 2025 to May 30, 2025

June 6, 2025 to June 10, 2025
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Welcome to the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance (the "ESG")
Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”), which updates
our latest initiatives and achievements with respect to sustainability. As
you may be aware, "World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano's credo
since its inception and reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity,
regardless of ethnicity, nationality or culture, which transcends our
operations and management.

Giordano has long been committed to being a responsible corporate
citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility policy
statement in 2005. Since then, we have continued to focus on “doing well
by doing good” in order to make a positive impact in the communities
where we do business, paying particular attention to stakeholder relations,
community involvement and environmental protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on ESG Reports
and growing demand for corporate disclosure from stakeholders in
general, this Report primarily addresses our approach and performance
against ESG metrics, including the impact that we are making on the
environment and communities, the way we deliver responsible products
and exceptional service to our customers in fairly and transparently, how
we invest in our employees’ development and foster an inclusive and
supportive working environment, as well as our framework to develop
strong governance, effective risk management systems and robust
controls.

GIORDANO
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GIORDANO

Reporting Standard, Principles and Scope

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
in compliance with the “comply or explain” provision thereof. Detailed
references to the “Stock Exchange's ESG Reporting Guide” have been
included at the back of this Report to aid readers and facilitate greater
transparency.

The content of the ESG Report is determined through the Group's
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment processes,
which include identifying ESG-related issues, collecting and reviewing
management and stakeholders’ opinions, assessing the relevance and
materiality of the issues, and preparing and validating the information
reported. The selection of material ESG factors are derived from
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessments.

Quantitative environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the ESG
Report so that stakeholders can have a comprehensive understanding
of the Group’'s ESG performance. Information on the standards,
methodologies, references and source of key emission and conversion
factors used on these KPls reporting are stated wherever appropriate.
To enhance and maintain the comparability of the ESG Reports
between years, the Group adopts consistent reporting and calculation
methodologies as far as practicable. In case of any changes in the
methodologies and specific standards, explanations have provided in
corresponding sections to facilitate information interpretation.

This ESG Report provides an annual update of Giordano's ESG
performance for the year of 2024, which covers our operations in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore (collectively, the
“Reporting Markets”), which contributed to 42.5% of Giordano's sales in
2024 excluding shops operated by our franchisees and licensees. There
are no significant changes in the reporting scope of this Report from that
of the last one in 2023.

ESG Governance

Effective ESG plays a definite role in driving the Group's pathway toward
sustainable development. To ensure proper implementation of ESG,
the Board has charged the Group’s Risk Management Committee (the
“RM Committee”) with assisting the Audit Committee to oversee the
Company’s ESG development and execution, as well as to help determine
the ESG strategies and direction ahead, to keep track of potential ESG-
related risks. With the Board's supervision, the management of the Group
formulates and executes ESG-related polices and strategies.

Board Statement

Good corporate governance inextricably linked to positive governance
of environmental and social issues. With the aim to ensure proper
ESG governance within the Group, the Group’s board of directors (the
“Board”) shoulders the ultimate accountability for the supervision of the
Group's ESG performance, while authority has been properly delegated
to each management of the Group. In a bid to ensure the establishment
of appropriate and effective ESG risk management measures and internal
control systems, the RM Committee and the Group's Internal Audit
department are responsible for overseeing the Group’s ESG strategies
and performance, as well as assessing and identifying ESG-related risks.
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The RM committee review and assess the internal operations to identify
material ESG issues, including climate related risk (e.g. natural disaster on
supply chain), and prioritize the ESG risks through materiality assessment.
They review and monitor the Group’s ESG policies and progress against
environmental targets.

In order to mitigate sustainability and ESG-related risks, as well as to keep
track of the Company’s ESG development, the RM Committee reviews the
Group's performances against industry leaders and peers of comparable
size to ensure the latest requirements and compliance status are met.
Timely adjustments will be made to cater for the emerging market trends
regarding ESG-related issues that may potentially impact the business
operations of the Group.

The RM Committee will also inform the Board of developments vis-a-vis
in ESG performances, visions and strategies through Board meetings,
dedicated reports and other communication channels on a regular basis.
The Group has established communication channels, between business
divisions and its stakeholders for better communication of ESG-related
issues. The communication channels are reviewed regularly to ensure
that effective communications are made between the Group and its
stakeholders. During the Reporting Period, the Board has assigned an
independent consulting firm to conduct a materiality assessment for
better identification of potential and material ESG issues relevant to
the business and its stakeholders. Stakeholder engagement has been
conducted to engage with relevant stakeholders for more precise
identification of the material issues that could internalise the opinions of
the stakeholders. The issues would be prioritised and those with higher
significance will be considered material. The Board would also review the
material issues regularly to ensure appropriate ESG management policies
are in place, so as to promote prompt responses to meet stakeholders’
expectations.

The Nomination Committee of the Group reviews the diversity, structure
and size of the board, Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy to
achieve gender and race diversity in the board, which encourage inclusion
of a broader spectrum of diverse perspective within the recruitment
approach and policies. They oversee the planning for the appointment
and resignation of the Directors and senior management, as well as
evaluate the independence of the independent non-executive.

The Audit Committee monitor and evaluate the Company’s risk
management, corporate governance functions, and internal auditing
process. They ensures that Company complies with applicable
environmental and labour laws and regulations.

In an effort to enhance ESG performance, the Group endeavours to
review plans and performances regarding its operation and sustainable
development. The Board would keep track of ESG-related work execution
with respect to the proposed plans and targets, to formulate future plans
on the Group's ESG development. The quality and quantity of ESG-
related staff training are also monitored to ensure the Group’s message
on ESG-related issues and market trends are well conveyed.
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Bin&
Stakeholders

RIS HER

Expectations and Needs

Stakeholder Engagement & Materiality
Assessment

The Group believes that stakeholder engagement and support are
crucial to the Group’s business success. By understanding stakeholders’
expectations and concerns about sustainable development, the
Group can grasp a more comprehensive perspective for developing
the sustainable development goal and improving the sustainable
development strategy. The Group has established various communication
channels, including surveys with ESG-related questions, to receive
opinions and to promote expressions of suggestions from different
stakeholders across the entire business. Stakeholders’ expectations and
concerns will then be reflected and considered while evaluating the
Group's sustainable development goals and strategies.

For this year’s ESG Report, the Group has engaged an independent
third-party consulting firm to assist in the collection of stakeholders’
opinions regarding the Group’s ESG issues. Opinions are collected
via various communication channels, including questionnaires. Results
derived from quantitative and qualitative analysis of the stakeholders’
opinions are referenced to understand their expectations and needs, and
to improve the Group’s management of ESG-related issues. Meanwhile,
the stakeholders’ opinions will also be incorporated into the materiality
assessment process to identify material ESG issues of the Group. By
acknowledging the importance of the values induced by the stakeholders’
opinions and suggestions, the Group will continue practising stakeholder
engagement for modification of sustainable development goals and
strategies.

wEMOES X

Means of Communication and Response

o EFEIRBUR  EEER s THIEE WS
Compliance with national policies, laws and Information reporting regularly
E E regulations o THIHESHIESE
&fﬁ*ﬂﬁﬂ s KRR EMB Meet the regulators regularly
Pay taxes in full and on time o s
Government and . o
Regulators * MREERS Examinations and inspections
Ensure production safety
o O o RRKRE
Returns Shareholders conferences
o o s SRLE LN i
i () Compliant operation Announcements
g s RANAIEMR o BB EFBEBMA AN ML
B3 Rise in company value Email, telephone communication and
Shareholders o EBEAMANER company website

Transparency in information and effective
communication

GIORDANO
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HESHEBE

Business Partners

S

Customers

&

BIRE T

Environmental
Regulatory
Authorities

hst

Industry

Employees

el
QQO
tEMAR

Community
and the Public

HEME\ER

Expectations and Needs
MIERE
Operation with integrity
FEHS
Equal Rivalry
& RETT
Performance of contracts
BRI
Mutual benefits and win-win results
£ E @A AR TS

Outstanding products and services
fERMEL R

Health and safety

[BITE %

Performance of contracts

MERE

Operate with integrity

SR

Compliant emission

ERBE IR

Energy saving and emission reduction
ERER SR &

Ecosystem protection

BAITHERE
Establishment of industry standards
HEBTTEER

Drive industry development

RAERER

Protection of rights
B

Occupational health
oA

Remunerations and benefits
BERER

Career development

AN 5

Humanity cares

fmEE

EE

Participation in charity

BEMEES X

Means of Communication and Response

s EEMT A=

Review and appraisal meetings
* HHBER

Business communications
o REAMAYE

EgP Nl =]

Engagement and cooperation

o BPRBHFLKEZES

Customer service centre and hotlines
s EPRERHE

Customer feedback survey
o HRERTA

Social Media Platforms

* ESGHRE
ESG Reporting

* 2INTTEWRIE
Participation in industry forums

s BEIRBER
Employee communication meetings
o TR A HSE A8
House journal and intranet
s BETHM
Employee mailbox
o SEIFTIEDS
Training and workshops
s BLEH

Employee activities

o N AL

Company'’s website

LIVNSIVNGi

Company’s announcements
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During the preparation of the ESG report, the Group has commissioned
an independent third-party consultant to assist us in conducting the
comprehensive materiality assessment in a fair and equitable manner. The
materiality assessment has been implemented in three main phases as
follows:

(i) Based on the relevant national and local standards and policies,
industry characteristics and the development of the Group, we have
identified 40 potential material issues in respect of ESG that may
have an impact on the Groups business or the stakeholders;

(i)  We have invited internal and external stakeholders (including
employees, management, directors, clients, suppliers and
communities) to fill in questionnaires online, so as to collect and
identify their level of concern for each of such issues;

We have established the two-dimensional matrix as "significance
to the Company’s business” and “significance to stakeholders” by
conducting analysis on valid questionnaires, so as to determine the
priority of the potential material issues.

(iii)

The following chart represents the materiality matrix based on the findings
from the questionnaire survey.

. )
= 36
& (@]
" 4;:: 3025 22
= 0 18
1 ° 2 & o
S 6) 6 O
< 2 0°0 , P2 13
= o 33 37 e L] o]
% e, ®
2 w 350 23. 20
g £ g 5} A 21
53 LA
& 2 15 9
5 & 0160 § ©
© @)
# O 0
8l 10 40
8 1 38 5
& w o ©
= ®
£z 12 5
E - O
" 14
@)
& Low i Medium & High
_ HEBMEKHEEM Significance to the Group's business /
BiR SIEM HEEH HERE
Environmental Labour Practices Operating Practices Community Investment
1 RIFAER 18 EEAR 25 ZEAR 38 DR@mEE
Environmental Compliance Employment Compliance Operational Compliance Charity
2 ERER 19 HEREF 26 ERHEEEORERR 39 HBHEHE
Air Pollutant Management Remuneration and Benefits Managing Environmental Risks Promotion of Community
of Supply Chain Development
3 EWPIRER 20 TEEFEURERE 27 ERHEEESTERER 40 HATHRE
Fleet Emissions Management Working Hours and Rest Managing Social Risks of Rural Revitalisation
Periods Supply Chain
4 BEKER 21 ZhultBETERE 28 EEBER
Wastewater Management Diversity and Equal Procurement Practices
Opportunity
5 BREBEIE 22 BEREELE 29 mEER

Noise Management

GIORDANO

Occupational Health and
Safety

Quality Management



Environmental

6 Pt 7137
Greenhouse Gas Emission

7 EEYER

Waste Management

8 BERE R

STEM EEEN
Labour Practices Operating Practices
23 HEIEER 30 FREREZE
Training and Development Customer Health and Safety
24 RBIIEETEBHIZT 31 EBEPRBER

Prevention of Child Labour and
Forced Labour

32

Customer Service Management

BERAENTHERER

Energy Consumption

9 KARER
Use of Water Resources
10 HEeR|E
Green Office
1" ZERIRIER
Green Energy Project
12 HmegE
Green Building
13 RMERBEMEHER
Use of Raw Materials and
Packaging Materials

14 TESAER
Soil Contamination
Management

15 AREfRE
Ecological Protection

16 EHRIREL
Responding to Climate Change

17 RREHEDRRE
Prevention and Handling of
Environmental Incidents

ERESGHERAEENRER M ERANEH
MREZRL  AEECETEEEFTEIARRIY
AEBEREFNDENEHEAEEATENRE
HERERERE - ZATHRERTNERE - HME
HMARBIRHNEZEEE - E12E /0 HETA R
BE=FRE HEREAZEATINZEEER -
HAHERRE @ RERERWT

Responsible Sales and
Marketing

33 REMBEE

Intellectual Property Protection

34 HIRERFEE

Research and Development
3B BMkE

Information Security
36 FPRALRE

Customer Privacy Protection
37 RAES

Anti-corruption

In view of the relevance and validity of the ESG Report with the Group's
environmental and social performance, the Group has conducted a
materiality assessment to identify ESG issues that are material to the
business of the Group and its stakeholders. The assessment is based on
stakeholder surveys, materiality maps provided by well-known external
institutions’, the judgement from management, as well as professional
opinions from third-party ESG professionals. The material ESG issues
identified are as follows:

B Aspects E KEIE Material Issues

et
Environment
ETEE

Labour Practices
EEEE

Operating Practices

1 EZUTET2ENERMEEZRES BAAR (MSCI) A 1
SEEREMENZEE([SASBRENERE - HERER
TEBZ2MEREZMSASBE R -

B ZE REEHERT Greenhouse Gas Emission
[RME R BEMEHMER Use of Raw Materials and Packaging Materials

{E{E A 4 Employment Compliance
B3 @ 8% 2 Occupational Health and Safety

B EERIRERR Managing Environmental Risks of Supply Chain
B EEMN T2 EPE Managing Social Risks of Supply Chain
EFEFL{R# Customer Privacy Protection

The materiality maps referenced in the materiality assessment include the ESG Industry Materiality
Map and the SASB Materiality Map produced respectively by MSCI and the Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board ("SASB”).
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Environmental Management, Objectives and
Progress

The Group is committed to embracing green development, as well as to
minimising the environmental impacts from the daily business operations.
Understanding the importance of incorporating green measures and
practices into the business to achieve sustainable development, the
Group has developed a series of sustainable development strategies
together with a number of environmental targets to push forward the
Group's commitment to protecting the environment.

During the Year, the Group has set preliminary directional targets to
focus on mitigating (i) air and greenhouse gas emissions; (ii) energy and
water use; and (iii) waste generation during business operations and
development. The Group looks to gradually reduce power and water
consumption, as well as greenhouse gas emissions and waste generation,
through actively implementing measures on different environmental
aspects, such as power saving, water conservation, and paper use
reduction.

Apart from developing strategies and setting targets to promote
sustainable development, the Group is also obligated to strictly comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection, including
but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water Pollution
Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong, and the
Environmental Protection Act the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group reviews its operations regularly to
assure that the laws and regulations are complied with. During the Year,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance relevant to
environmental laws and regulations.

B E Aspects B# Our Goals HEFE Progress

BERE A7 RS AT = RS FEAN 51 R26VR ER BB RS, 516 A —

Greenhouse Gas Mitigating air pollutants and Stz RS ’Jt 3916 A —EbixE E
(JA2021 5 B E )

greenhouse gas emissions

Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas
emission reduce from 5,516 tCO,e to
3,916 (using 2021 as baseline)

A7k A 7K FEIKBE50,16432 77 KR A £126,507 37 75 2K
Water Use Mitigating water use (BA20214 RE#E)
Water consumption reduced from 50,164 m®
to 26,507 m? (using 2021 as baseline)
BEIR{E A D BE TR (E FREE#10,427 K BB R 2 517,659 Ik FLBF
Energy Use Mitigating energy use (1’/\2021 FRER)
Electricity consumption reduced from
10,427 MWh to 7,659 MWh (using 2021 as
baseline)
BEZEY) BMAEBELRREPNEEYE  EIEVHRERK27.43%(LA2021F A&
Waste AMER #)

Mitigating waste generation

during business
development

GIORDANO

Non-hazardous waste and hazardous
waste reduced 27.43% in term of intensity
(using 2021 as baseline)

operations and
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Caring for our Environment

RBRIEBEA1 : IHEFEOEELRD K

Environmental Aspect A1: Minimised Emissions through Green-Minded Operations

M

EEMR  BABOEREELSRRE
2 RABEDHTNE—RE - AHER
MAEEERMNLE  HeF-—UNE R
BEEREY RN -

BPEE - ARNAX IS MERLERE
B A ERRRRER

BRIREE@EA2 - BHER

Environmental Aspect A2: Conserving Resources

Mm

REBEREFBBUTHETORMD [HRET ]
B - BB s E B E RN HFE
BER ~ KER ~ MR BRI DUR Do B
M RERRERE - 10

o HEEBHHLMATRERNIRRE

. BERARGERDR - O E
ARHHRRE

o HEEBHENRMIEMNEL

e HEMEREENMEINEHLE -
AEIRIR © M

o REAXPMEBBHINRRIM -

M

M

At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business operations are
environmentally friendly, making every effort to reduce waste
and emissions from every aspect of our business activities, from
production at our suppliers through to our business operations.

We believe that our business activities and the facilities of our
overall operations comply with the relevant laws and regulations on
environmental protection.

In active alignment with the Hong Kong governmental policy of
reducing “carbon footprint”, we are committed to reducing carbon
emissions and protecting and sustaining the environment through
efficient use of resources and reduced consumption of electrical
power, water, paper and raw materials by:

* Incorporating sustainable environmental practices into our
business principles;

o Using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting the
volume of raw materials and packaging consumed;

° Reducing waste generation within our operations;

o Promoting environmental protection, via supply chain
management and smart shop operations; and

° Promoting environmental awareness among our customers and
business associates.
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(2) Striving to create shareholders’ value, we are also concerned with
the conservation of ecological resources and driving environmental
protection. Based on the 5Rs principle — to Replace, Reduce, Reuse,
Recover and Recycle — Giordano spares no effort to cut down on
the use of resources, recycle materials, as well as to reduce the
generation of waste by implementing different practices internally:

e Displaying notices and posters of water conservation at offices

and shops;
o Inspecting taps regularly and repairing any dripping promptly;

o Promoting the concept of “paperless meetings” with the use of
electronic copies of documents;

*  Pre-setting printers for double-sided and black-and-white
printing;

o Recycling used paper;
o Reusing and recycling carton boxes;
®  Reusing shop furniture; and

o Reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

Saving Energy

As electricity consumption is the biggest contributor to our greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions, various energy saving and efficiency measures
have been undertaken in most of our office premises and shops:

° A )ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Energy-Saving Initiatives)

FREA R4 J
Lighting

L]
ZREL .

Air-conditioning

GIORDANO

B 20084 #E - B8 A1 T /E SHE AR

A group-wide initiative to convert lighting in all shops to
energy-saving lights commenced since 2008

2022%F - AEEEETISL2EATEE NNERERXBEARAE LB BER AT
RENREHEED S REEEBEFTERSHEEFITERERRNRAR
e

In 2022, the Hong Kong Market of the Group participated in the Electrical
Equipment Upgrade Scheme of CLP Hong Kong and the Energy-efficient
Equipment Subsidy Programme of HK Electric.

NERBHN D ERAERIMANKLERFZRSL

Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient
MRz R TR B R

Shorten the operating time of air-conditioning
HRENFIREE25-26T

Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25-26T
EHBEREZR  EHRURERREARE

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better performance
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Going Green at Work

Faced with the increasing threat to the environment over the years,
all of us undoubtedly owe a duty and responsibility to make Mother
Earth a cleaner and safer place to live in for ourselves and for future
generations. Acting in a socially and environmentally responsible way
is more than just a legal duty, and here at Giordano, we encourage
our staff to adopt environmentally responsible behaviour and
promote environmental protection in the workplace. The “Green
Team” set up in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010 is a vivid
example, which brings together representatives from different
departments to initiate programs for promoting low carbon living.
Moreover, to inspire and encourage staff’s green actions, we have
also launched the following initiatives:

e Arrange charity bazaars from time to time

- Encourage colleagues to donate surplus items to the
Company's charity bazaar for charity sale. Besides, it can
raise funds to help disadvantaged groups or be given to
those in need, which will contribute to the environment and
society. In 2024, Giordano WWS Charity held the Sample
Sale Activity, and donated HKD15,710 through the event.

RERHE R
T AR 2 EWWS Charity2##1 HIREBISample SaleiEEh

Date:
Time:

B RUEE) DAL B IR R LR

26 Jan 2024 (Thu)
11:00 E 16:00

Venue: 5/F Learning Center

G NSTIHERPN7OERIFBERN  MERNDSRT AN, W0HMN, SRR

« FURMIE ER 410078 SR L E BT SR IO IR i~
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BEamRNEE Green Performance

TEAGESRAERRNEAENRE  BET Overview: Below is a summary of our environmental performance with
RETMIBIEIEE « BAEMNAEREE : respect to our operations in shops, offices and warehouses in the

Reporting Markets:

te—

== ) 248,54 7 AIR POLLUTANT (e “)
TN

. ~

AR Fs) Hmaltyr=) FERLY) (F3)
2024 Nitrogen oxides (NOy) (kg) Sulphur oxides (50 (kg) Particulate matter (Pm) (kg)
E AE B
Vehicles Vehicles Vehicles
Total Total Total

63.69 0.27 5.97

*2129.49 0.25 12.56

);Esﬁﬂmi%ﬂ) GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS "ete2 ;535‘::5%5311@@)

G — (am-alsmuE) B —(aw-ainns st (e —am =

Scope 1 (tCOse) Scope 2 (tCOse) Total (scope 1+2) (tCOe)

250 12,000 12,000

200 10,000 10,000

- w B o |}

0o E -35.03%* 5 3,872 -5.08%* R o 3,916 -5.58%%

l

v6€'S
922’y
L0V
9
LEY
L'y

- 4,000 4,000 4
50 a o 44 2,000 2,000
0 L C hel 0 - ~N
)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

HIE—+EBE _2E aw-a HIE=(am-—aitnEs) HEET (W — s =)
thiEe, / S—a8BTHER) Scope 3 (tCo2e) Total (Scope 1+2+3) (tCOse)
Intensity (Scope 1+2) (Other indirect emissions)
o (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)
o
N
0 ’ 180 " 4,500
9) PR S S 4,094
5 3 s g 2.354 120 3,000 2
Q 5 N BN -4.71%* +278.55%* -2.38%*
- a & 60
. 1 o 1,500
by <
%= 72020 2021 2022 2023 2024 ¢
0
\, 2023 2024 2023 2024
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=)
25y
H
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TOTAL GHG EMISSIONS BY CATEGORY (unit: tco.e) emissions in 2024

# JERDEFGETIR 2024 FEAERBHRAENEN L )

+
S, ) TS T EL LT T T e
# Percentage contribution of the subject consumption towards our total GHG

Qzé

SNEBE FA7KERIZENE J1HFE NRIEWMBHEFEE EREBEMESNTIR P AR ZE Bk AT
Purchased Electricity used for Corporate Vehicle I\/Iethane gas Business air travel
Electricity fresh water and Fuel Consumption generation at landfill

sewage processing

3,872 14
(94.56%)" (0.35%)"

(1.08%)"

due to disposal of
paper waste

27 137
(0.67%)"

HE o SBIE (kS ERETHEER)
Total (m¥ Intensity (m*/HK$1m sales)
80,000 35
oog
60,000 3 s N E N
w g 20 © & §

40,000 § 52 ﬁ 26507'2-58%* 15 . g 15‘932-1.68%*

o

L 10

o o
20,000 N =
RN
o
el
0

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

S0C9L

o

l

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

HifhEEE VEHICLE FUEL CONSUMPTION * 2024 £ 2023 B HLEE) 2024 vs 2023 % Change )

#atam WE (B B-EEBTHER)
Total (Litre) Intensity (Litre/HK$1m sales)
80,000 40
35
64,000 o 0 31’
48000 s 2B
w88 34.94%* » S8 = 34.43%*
- . ‘0 - ]
32,000 él 8 17,223 1; S 3 3110352
=) o b \‘
2 5 &3

16,000
= .

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

eLy'

v ﬂ
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

ﬁig ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION * 2004 H¥ 2023 A LB 2024v52023%Change)

HET Ckmm) WRIE OkEE s—EEETHNER)
Total (Mwh) Intensity (MWh/HK$1m sales)
15,000 8
7
12000 g 6 B m
— ~N b
o0 B 7,659 I
o € B +8.93%* . N E B +9.92%*
, N 3 > 2
0
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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) iR EEER 72> PAPER USE (Vote? * 2024 t % 2023 AL 2024 vs 2023 % Change )

HBET ()
Total (Tonne)
12

A

9
© -18 58%*

3

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

IRE (RS- ESETHER)
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

2020 | 0.00598
2021 | 0.00585

2022 | 0.00471 -17.85%*

2023 | 0.00417 ﬂ
2024 0.00343

EEEEVBE en oz annm 7
NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE GENERATION (Paper + Shopping Bags + Packaging Material) "' 7/

*2024 L3 2023 AH LR
2024 vs 2023 % Change

#ET cam)
Total (Tonne)

1,000

800

§G8

600
400 ‘ﬁ +4.25%*

200 ﬁ
0
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

9

SRE (Ru E-EEBBTHER)
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

2020 | 0.503
2021 | 0.452
2022 | 0.500 5.17%*

2023 | 0.312
2024 0.328 ﬁ

)E&Hﬁiﬁﬁ; PACKAGING MATERIAL CONSUMPTION 2000 1 2023 AU 2024 vs 2023 % Change )

ERIRE (2MF)
Price Tag (Tonne)

PRBRE (RBE)
Plastic Packaging
Bag (Tonne)

-6.50%* +32.99%*
2020 | 34 2020 | 164
20211 37 2021 1 179
2022 | 32 2022 | 132
20231 30 2023 1 114
2024 28 2024 152

HAE (RMR)

Carton Box (Tonne)

HET (28
Total (Tonne)

-0.07%* +7.54%*
i 800
~
2020 | 475 w B 6 506
20211 527 = o
400 o~
2022 | 392 S
2023 1 327 200
2024 0
326 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

. ) W% HER""" SHOPPING BAG CONSUMPTION Meted

HRET (A
Total (Tonne)

120
pry
100 =
H

80

60

. o 34 25.79%

BLIT

0
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

col
8L

GIORDANO

RIS (nw, B-ERETHER)
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

2020 | 0.065
2021 | 0.060
2022 | 0.046 -25.12%*

2023 | 0.028
2024 0.021 ﬂ

* 2024 tE¥ 2023 BALLEE)
2024 vs 2023 % Change

SRIE (RN SIHRAS)
Intensity (Tonne/Piece of
Finished Product)

¥
Flat

2020 | 0.00004
2021 | 0.00004
2022 | 0.00004
2023 | 0.00004

2024 0.00004
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Notes:

Air pollutants:

. This year,we have recalculated the historical data, so the data for 2023 has been restated.

. One of our division sold the company owned vehicle, resulting in a decrease in the amount
of nitrogen oxides and particulate matter emissions in 2024.

GHG Emissions

3 Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting Markets are the
GHG emissions arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes) and is computed
with reference to:

(i) the “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories” issued by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC");

(if) the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;

(iii) the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong
Kong (2010 Edition)” issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
and the Environmental Protection Department in Hong Kong;

(iv) the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd, the China Light
and Power Company Ltd and the Companhia de Electricidade de Macau; and

(v) the data published by the International Energy Agency.

. In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have further
classified the GHG emissions of Giordano into 3 scopes (as below), which are defined in
accordance with the international reporting framework published by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”:

(i) “Scope 1" covers direct emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by
the Reporting Markets, arising mainly from fuel used by our own corporate vehicles
(excluding the vehicle fleets of our contractors);

(ii) “Scope 2" covers “energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation of
purchased electricity consumed within the Reporting Markets (excluding electricity
consumed in some retail outlets in departmental stores and/or shopping malls
where electricity is not separately charged).

(iii) "Scope 3" covers other indirect emissions include other indirect emissions that
occurs outside the Reporting Market, including methane gas generation at landfill
due to disposal of paper waste and electricity for water treatment. From 2024, we
also include business air travel in our scope 3 coverage, to improve accountability.
This change also led to a significant increase in our Scope 3 emissions. The
calculation of methane gas generation at landfill due to disposal of paper waste
is based on Appendix Il “Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” provided
by the Stock Exchange. The calculation of electricity for water treatment is based
on the standard of the Water Supplier Department and the Drainage Services
Department of Hong Kong. Carbon emissions from employee business air travel are
calculated using the carbon emissions calculator of the International Civil Aviation
Organisation.

Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where water supply and
discharge are controlled by the building management. Thus, the retrieval of the relevant data is
not feasible.

There is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the daily operations of the
Reporting Markets.

The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the daily operation of the
Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping bags and packaging material).

In view of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous
waste.

Due to the re-accounting of the total amount of non-hazardous waste, the 2023 data has been
restated.

The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic shopping bags
purchased for store use in the Reporting Markets.

GIORDANO
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Paper Reduction

The Group continues to encourage a paperless working environment
which not only reduces environmental damage but also fits commercial
goals, as it can save physical space, facilitate information sharing via IT
networks, and reduce complicated documentation procedures. In recent
years, the Group has implemented paperless internal human resources
processing such as employee timesheets, payrolls, leave applications,
surveys, assessment papers, inspection forms and many more. In addition,
the Finance department adopts a non-paper approval process for
approving the payment of non-trade invoices and the claim of petty cash.

Moreover, duplex printing and copying have become the norm within
the Group, greatly reducing paper consumption and saving costs. Usage
data of office printing machines are regularly collected and assessed for
monitoring the efficiency of the paperless environment.

Secure Printing with Tap & Print

The Group has adopted a “Secure Printing with Tap & Print” printing
solution in the office, helping the Group become more cost-efficient
through smarter printing. The print solution enables the Group to achieve
environmental objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as printing is
released only upon presentation of a staff card from that particular staff
who gives the printing instruction.

Corporate Communications

The Company strongly recommends shareholders access its corporate
communications, including financial reports, through the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company, instead of receiving printed
form. By introducing electronic means of corporate communications to
shareholders, the quantity of printed materials has been considerably
reduced. This paperless practice thus helps to protect the environment, as
well as save costs for printing and administrative charges, etc.

Giordano’s City Centre Deira Store Awarded
4-Stars in Green Star Awards for Environmental
Efforts and Sustainability

In 2020, Giordano's City Centre Deira store has been awarded 4 Stars
in the Green Star Awards ceremony, which was held at the vibrant
'INDOORS’ pop-up space in City Centre Deira, Dubai. Green Star is
modelled on the United States ‘Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design’ standards (LEED), the points-based rating standard that concerns
the design, construction, operation, and maintenance of green buildings,
malls and neighbourhoods.
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Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the environment and
natural resources. We strive to improve our technical know-how to
minimise the negative impact on the environment during production
and operations. We:

(i)  take into account the environmental impact of our activities and
decisions;

(i) continuously improve the environmental protection initiatives
and strengthen target and responsibility assessments,
environmental protection supervision and management; and

(iii)  strictly control environmental risks.

Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices
throughout its operations, and places environmental protection as
one of its top priorities in the process of supply chain management.
We are concerned with the environmental risk factors in production,
such as emissions and waste discharge. Thus, in the selection of our
suppliers, their measure of protecting the surrounding environment
is one of our key selection criteria.

Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products. For
example, we use polypropylene as one of the major components
of our G-Warmer thermal base layer collection. Polypropylene is
degradable when exposed to heat and UV radiation, and is also
fully recyclable. For our premium activewear brand, Silvermark by
G-Motion, we began using fabrics treated with Teflon-EcoElite
finishing since 2017, which is a non-fluorinated fabric treatment
for durable water repellency with 60% of its raw materials being
renewably sourced.

Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we opted to
charge more per plastic shopping bag than that requested under
the Environmental Levy Scheme on Plastic Shopping Bags of the
Government of the HKSAR; that is HK$2, to discourage the use of
plastic bags and to encourage customers to bring their own bags.

In addition, stores in the East China region are using paper shopping
bags instead of plastic shopping bags.

GIORDANO
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Environmental Aspect A4: Responding to Climate Change
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GIORDANO

In an effort to enhance transparency and consistency in communicating
climate-related information to our stakeholders, the Group is committed
to aligning our climate risk disclosures with the recommendations of the
IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures (IFRS S2). In 2024, we engaged with
a professional external consultant to conduct Gap Analysis to identify
areas where we need to improve within the current IFRS S2 disclosure
framework.

(1)

(2)

Governance

Our Board and RM Committee oversee climate-related risks and
opportunities. They regularly conduct comprehensive assessments
of relative matters and delegate the execution of climate-related
operational activities to designated staff members, ensuring that our
response to climate change is coordinated and effective.

Strategy

We firmly recognise that climate change is a multifaceted and far-
reaching issue that significantly impacts our business. As such, we
have seamlessly integrated climate-related factors into the core of
the Company's strategic decision-making process.

For physical risks, such as the impact of extreme weather on our
supply chain, we are strengthening our supply chain resilience. We
are diversifying our sourcing locations to reduce the reliance on
regions prone to extreme weather events, like areas frequently hit
by floods or droughts. Additionally, we are investing in advanced
forecasting systems to better anticipate disruptions and adjust our
inventory levels accordingly.

Regarding transitional risks, as the regulatory environment
around climate change tightens, we are proactively adapting. We
are increasing our R&D investment in sustainable materials for
our apparel products. This not only helps us meet the evolving
environmental regulations but also positions us as a leader in
sustainable fashion, offering the opportunity to attract increasing
number of environmentally-conscious consumers.

Changes in weather patterns, including precipitation and extreme
variability, could potentially reshape customer preferences for our
apparel products, thus indirectly affecting our sales. Prolonged
extreme weather could also drive up our operating and maintenance
costs, such as higher transportation and insurance premiums. We
are acutely aware of these potential impacts and are strategically
planning to manage them.
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(3) Risk Management

(4)

We have a robust process in place to identify, assess, manage, and
monitor climate-related risks. This includes regular risk assessments
to evaluate the vulnerability of our business operations, more
specifically, identifying whether the risk is physical or transitional,
the timeline of its impact on the business, and the relevant affected
business departments. We also review our risk inventory to identify
any areas of climate-related risk that may have been overlooked.

Metrics & Targets

We are committed to reducing our environmental impact and
have implemented measures to mitigate climate-related risks.
These include maintaining comprehensive insurance coverage for
assets that are prone to damage by extreme weather conditions,
which helps to minimise potential maintenance and repair costs.
In the event of extreme climate events, we take special actions in
accordance with the pre-set response plan to protect the health and
safety of our workforce.

We are aware of the ongoing enhancement of emissions-reporting
obligations and regulations of existing products and services, which
may increase our overall operating costs. We are actively taking
action to adapt to these changes and continuously improve the
transparency of climate-related information disclosure.
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MEZRMNNE
Caring for our Employees

itEEmEBT - EE
Social Aspect B1: Employment
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As an international apparel retailer, Giordano's retail network spans
five continents operating through approximately 1,732 point of sales
as of December 31, 2024, which enables us to deliver our 'World
Without Strangers’ credo globally. As of December 31, 2024, the
number of employees in our reporting market was 2,523, basically
unchanged from 2023.

Giordano believes that its long-term success depends on the
contribution of each and every individual in the organisation. As
such, Giordano is committed to treating its staff with fairness and
respect. We believe in cooperation, teamwork and trust as the
foundation of Giordano. We hire based on ability and merit, reward
and promote based on performance.

EHRTHIHE T S% TALENT DISTRIBUTION BY THE REPORTING MARKETS

1,515 1,427 1,176 1,210 1,134

EB K EPF Hong Kong & Macau

A B X BE Mainland China

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2020 2021
537 527

2022 2023 2024
417 432 455

GIORDANO

&2 Taiwan

2020 2021

2022 2023 2024
893 802 758 737 747

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
177 149 152 145 187
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EIEER 2%
Employment Type Distribution

25 Full-time )

2020 | 2,626 (84.11%)
2021 | 2,295 (79.00%)
2022 | 2,052 (81.98%)
2023 | 1,943 (76.98%)

2024 | 1,87 8(74.44%)

(ﬁﬁ | &# Part-time / Contract)

. 2020 | 496 (15.89%)
') 2021 | 610 (21.00%)
2022 | 451 (17.10%)

2023 | 581 (23.02%)

2024 | 645 25.56%)

C F ¥ By Age )

2024
I 30 5%,

[}

< 30 years old ‘ 92.44%

30-50 &% ‘ .

30-50 years old 18.97%
g

S0 | 2s.2e%

> 50 years old

Respecting and Reflecting Diversity

demonstrated below:

FiRDH
Age Distribution

BLETht
Staff Composition by Gender

1R 30 2 A\ m

2020 | 1,017 (32.6%)
2021 | 829 (28.54%)
2022 | 615(24.57%) 2024

< 30 years old

2023 | 562 (22.27%) 576(22-336) £ Male # 1 Female
O, O,
2020 | 1,912 (61.2%) 19.60% | 2020 | 80.40%
2021 | 1,882 (6478%) 30-50years old 1914% ‘ 2021 ‘ 80.86%
2022 | 1,677 (67.00%) 2024 19.70% | 2022 | 80.30%
2023 | 1,726 (68.38%) 1,690(66-98%) 21.32% | 2023 | 78.68%

19.54%!| 2024 180.46%
2020 | 193 (6.2%)

2021 | 194 (6.68%)
2022 | 211(8.43%) 2024

KH 50 5%
> 50 years old

2023 | 236 (9.35%) 257(10.19%)
EERKLZE
Turnover rate
C 1 5 By Gender ) C i & By Region )
2024 2024
BB ‘ 9
m m Hong Kong 15.78%
AN =]
== ‘ 74.53%
Taiwan
B4 Male 2214 Female EP ‘ 11.18%
China
42.87% 34.46% R
AR ‘ 95.78%
Singapore

GIORDANO

We believe in diversity and endeavour to safeguard a diverse working
environment, which is reflected in the composition of our staff as
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A series of policies, handbooks and protocols are in place in
Giordano to help build a workplace where our staff are treated fairly
and equally, with their rights and interests being protected. These
include:

(i) Staff Handbook

Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws and
regulations. All staff are treated equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their social
identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political faction or marital status. All
staff are required to acknowledge receipt of the staff handbook.

(i) Code of Conduct

Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and fairness are
important values, and are crucial to our long-term development
and success. Thus, the Code of Conduct has been established
to convey our expected standards of conduct and practices to
all staff, who are required to adhere to the highest standards of
business and professional ethics so that we can earn the trust of
our business partners and customers and grow our business.

(iii)  Whistle-Blowing Policy

To create an open, transparent and safe working environment
where staff can speak up, we have a longstanding
whistleblowing policy in place that allows them to raise
concerns and for Giordano to follow up cases in a systematic yet
protective setting. The Company regularly updates the whistle-
blowing policy.

The following people management arrangements are in place in
Giordano to provide our staff with a better environment to work.

(i)  Remuneration

Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages, share
options and generous goal-oriented or performance-based
bonuses tailored to different levels of staff, in order to reward
and retain a high-calibre leadership team.

(i) Increasing Annual Leave Entitlement

In 2017, we largely increased the annual leave entitlement of
staff in the Hong Kong and Macau markets. This not only allows
them to have a better work-life balance and work performance,
but also helps retain and recruit talent as well as enhance
Giordano's competitiveness.
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(iii)

Family-Friendly Employment Practices

a.

Flexi-Time Arrangement at Work

We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at work and
at home. This is one of the keys to both retaining high-
quality staff and allowing them to thrive. That is why we
strive to create a working environment which that caters
for the needs of our staff and their families, with the
introduction of flexitime work arrangements for office staff
in Hong Kong and Taiwan from 2016. Concurrently, for
our shop operations, we also adjust the front-line staff’s
working hours to attract certain targeted manpower, e.g.
homemakers and retirees.

Working from home

During the Covid-19 pandemic and for the sake of the
health of our colleagues, the Company has encouraged
staff to arrange more work from home, to reduce the need
for going out and, thereby, reduce the risk of infection.
We have realized that working from home has become a
preference for some employees, so we have been offering
this office option to our staff as an option until 2024.

Supporting Breastfeeding

In support of our working mothers’ needs of pumping milk
in the workplace, we have specially designated private
space in the office of our Hong Kong Headquarters for
breast milk extraction.

Early Introduction of 14-Week Extended Maternity Leave

In advance of government enforcement, our Hong Kong
Headquarters implemented an extended 14-week paid
maternity leave policy from October 23, 2018, taking care
of the needs of parents working in our Hong Kong offices
and on the front-line to look after their new-born babies.

Early Introduction of 5-Day Paternity Leave

Effective from November 13, 2018, we also took an early
lead in introducing the 5-day paternity leave for our
male staff in Hong Kong, which is far ahead of the local
legislation.

Shortened Daily Working Hours (Office)

To further address staff’'s work-life balance needs, a trial
program first introduced in August 2018 to reduce working
hours in the office of Hong Kong Headquarters by 1-hour
per working day (i.e. from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) has been
made permanent to fulfil individual employees’ personal
and professional goals, effective from October 2018.
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(iv)

=

a.

A

;

Giordano Taiwan was awarded the Blessed
Enterprise Gold Award conferred by 1111
Manpower Bank

In 2022, Giordano Taiwan won the Blessed Enterprise Gold Award issued
by 1111 Manpower Bank with the support of online voters for its positive
corporate culture and mutually supportive working atmosphere. This
award aims to recognise those candidates who have made breakthroughs
in talent strategy management and individuals who have achieved
outstanding achievements. Factors considered in the review include the
support and care for employees, and leadership and management.
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(iv) Acknowledging Our Staff
a. Staff Commendation Award Scheme

Not only do we circulate commendations from our
customers who acknowledged our staff’s good
performance, but our Hong Kong Headquarters has also
implemented a “Staff Commendation Award Scheme”
since September 2016 to encourage and award staff with
outstanding performance and/or significant contributions.
Outstanding staff will be nominated every quarter and the
winners will be awarded a Staff Commendation Certificate
and a cash coupon as a token of our appreciation.
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b. Employee Recognition Ceremonies

The Employee Recognition Ceremonies were introduced
to recognise employees that have gone above and beyond
the call of duty at work during these challenging times.
The event allows the Group's executive management
to publicly acknowledge the staff that has exceeded
expectations, as well as to foster a greater sense of
belonging among Giordano employees.
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c.  Long Service Award

In recognition of the loyalty and commitment of our
longserving staff, we present Long Service Awards annually
to staff who have served the Company for 5 years, 10 years
and 30 years, respectively.

Staff Activities

To reinforce the staff’s sense of belonging to Giordano with
a healthy work-life balance, we arrange a wide range of staff
activities every year. This year, we organized various interest
group activities for staff to participate in.
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Dongguan - Outdoor team building activities

S e o et e e i e e o

s i

REME - Wik ETEFIDIYERD

Dongguan - Women's Day Event, Eternal Flower Handmade DIY
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Hong Kong Market - Participation in Together Run For National Day 2024
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Social Aspect B2: Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
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(1) OHS is a crucial component of Giordano's overall safety framework,
and reducing health and safety risks in the workplace is an important
and constant objective. In addition to a long history of no-smoking
policy at the workplace, we continued to reinforce our strong
leadership, management system and training programs in 2024, so
as to strengthen our safety culture and enhance our overall OHS
performance. During the Reporting Period, Giordano is not aware of
any non-compliant cases relating to OHS.

Information related to work-related fatalities and injuries cases from
2022 to 2024 are as follows:

EISTRZE Work-related fatalities and injuries
EEAET ST EMRAAR

Number of work-related fatalities occurred

BEETERH
Number of work-related injuries occurred

ATHBERRNITIERE

Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries
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21 25 24
844 1,362 713

(2) To ensure a safe working environment, we:

(i)  provide intensive training programs for our staff to improve their
safety awareness;

(i) regularly monitor workplace safety, particularly with District
Supervisors allocated to supervise and monitor shop and
warehouse operations, to ensure each phase of which operates
safely by facilitating necessary tools with a safe working
environment; and

(iii) carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses and
shops to reduce workplace hazards.

a. Hosting the webpage "Tips on Occupational Health &
Safety” on the Company’s Intranet

b. Conduct regular office working environment inspection to
promote cleanliness, fire safety and work safety.

(iv) conduct Staff Satisfaction Surveys. Each year, Giordano
conducts staff satisfaction surveys to collect useful feedback as
reference for improving our policies.
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We value having a joyful and healthy workforce.
We believe that having a joyful and healthy workforce is the
cornerstone for the long term success of the organisation.
We pledge to promote physical and mental well-being among ourselves
with emphasis on the following areas:
1. Healthy eating 2. Physical activity 3. Mental wellbeing
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provide series of hygiene and cleaning measures implemented
to protect the physical health of our employees, including:

a. Providing alcohol sprays and wipes, hand sanitiser and face
masks, etc.

b.  Providing protective and sanitisation equipment, such as
masks for frontline store colleagues to protect the health of
colleagues and customers.

c.  Strengthening disinfection and sanitisation: The Company
has strengthened the cleaning of toilets and the pantry,
and regularly sprays and disinfects carpets.
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Social Aspect B3: Talent Development and Retention Strategy
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Giordano encourages learning and recognises that values and
fairness, as well as opportunities for continuous professional and
personal development, are equally important drivers for high
achievers. As such, we invest heavily not only in comprehensive staff
training and development programs in sales and service, but also in
management, planning and leadership programs, to address staff's
professional and personal development needs and to retain a skilled
and motivated workforce.

Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness) policy,
Giordano conducted a review of the team structure by department
heads in 2016 and identified talents for focused development in the
coming years. This remains ongoing.

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating talent with
an international perspective, insight into international practices and
strong competitiveness.

(i)  Ever since the 1990’s, Giordano has operated a Management
Trainee (the "MT") program to nurture retailing talents, with
satisfactory results.

(i) In 2014, we modified and upgraded our MT Scheme in the
Hong Kong Headquarters to ensure that participants received
a holistic and comprehensive training experience, such that
upon graduation, successful graduates could be placed directly
into mid-management roles. With the renaming of MTs as Fast-
Trackers (the "FTs"), this reform included a tightening in our
admission requirements in terms of academic results and a
restructuring of the syllabus to include real business tasks in
various departments and functions within Giordano. Successful
graduates have now taken on a number of important roles,
including product development and management as well as
brand management. Some of them have even been stationed in
overseas regions.

(iii) Since 2017, we also extended this Hong Kong-style FT program
to our Mainland China market to cultivate more retailing talents
for our future growth.

Global Talent Development & Retention Initiative (“TDRI") is one of
our key strategic programmes in the coming years. Apart from hiring
FTs externally, we have turned to pinpoint and groom our existing
talents within the Group's business across all regions. Further to the
nomination by regional General Managers of between 1 to 3 talents
with (i) proven contribution towards their business; and (ii) potential
to become a future member of senior management, bespoke and
role-specific 1-year development program involving overseas events
and short-term postings have been devised and executed.
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5)

Internship Programme

In 2021, Giordano Saudi Arabia recently rolled-out its new internship
programme, in conjunction with the Jeddah Chapter of the
Entrepreneur Organisation.

()  The innovative internship programme has been tailor-made for
the Saudi market, offering participants a full range of site visits
and tours, followed by work experience in both Giordano’s
retail stores and in their preferred functional departments
at the Company’s regional headquarters, taught sessions in
the realms of sales and marketing and visual merchandising,
and culminating with a final assessment and the issuance of a
completion certificate.

(i)  The aim is to maximize the interaction between the Company
and the participants, striking a balance between conveying our
core values while allowing the interns to make decisions about
their participation early on, to identify potential talent for long
term development.

Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to maintain
its competitive edge. We believe that continuous updating of
professional skills and the sharing of knowledge will allow the
Company to grow with the times. We, therefore, allocate ample
resources to staff training and development with the aim of
sustaining a competent, professional and ethical staff force that will
contribute to the success of the Company. In 2024, we have provided
in-house training to our frontline staff and non-frontline staff of the
Reporting Markets for 30,869 hours and 4,967 hours, respectively.
The total number of training hours delivered during the Year is 35,918
hours.
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TOTAL IN-HOUSE TRAINING HOURS RECEIVED BY STAFF

5)
(Note 1, 2, 3,4, 5)

MRRT
Frontline Staff
2020 15,534
2021 13,560
2022 17,598
2023 8,738

2024 30,869 /)% Hours
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Certificate of Appreciation
2022-24

ERARARLE
Giordano Limited

GIORDANO

=] X2 2111 i
ERRAT LI ST
. Total in-house Training Hours
Non-Frontline Staff .
Received

4,288 19,822
1,609 15,169
2,224 19,882
1,953 10,691

4,967 ')\ Hours 35,836 /| \i: Hours

Notes:

1. The percentage of employees trained by employee category in 2024 was 66.88% and 42.24% for
frontline staff and non-frontline staff, respectively.

2. The average training hours completed per employee by employee category in 2024 were 20.2
hours and 5.0 hours for frontline staff and non-frontline staff respectively.

3. The percentage of employees trained by gender in 2024 was 38.95% and 61.63% for male and
female employees, respectively.

4. The average training hours completed per employee by gender category in 2024 were 6.3 hours
and 16.1 hours for male and female employees, respectively.

5. Some divisions continuously improve the online training systems, resulting in an overall increase
in training hours.

Giordano's Participation in the Manpower Developer Award Scheme

Giordano has participated in the Manpower Developer Award Scheme
organized by Employees Retraining Board since 2012. In addition, the
Company was honoured the Super MD in the scheme and received letter
of appreciation from Employees Retraining Board.

ERNARDE
Giordano Limited

=8 SuperMD Hum
O roceiving the honcur o Super MD
2023-28
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People-Oriented Staff Development

Based on our staff’s different needs, we regularly organize
internal training and on-job training for staff in different roles
— this not only improves our staff's work performance, but also
helps equip them with new skills to face new challenges.

(i)

(iii)

Onboarding Training

The Company provides diverse and practical onboarding
training for new employees, including but not limited
to company introduction, organisational structure,
corporate culture, human resources, and attendance. The
arrangement of onboarding training can help employees
adapt to the work environment faster and better.

Recruitment channel development

In response to talent needs, Giordano Taiwan continues
to develop recruitment channels. In addition to
continuously recruiting through 104 Manpower Bank and
1111 Manpower Bank, Giordano Taiwan also signs up for
large-scale job fairs, actively explores talent recruitment
channels, increases multiple recruitment channels, and
improve talent recruitment flexible use.

Refresher Training

In addition to strengthening the basic skills, we equip staff
with the latest information and knowledge, so that they
could carry out their duties to the highest standards.
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) L &8 Diversified Training Programmes )

@ﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ Hong Kong Market
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The "Work Experience and Individual Creativity in the Age of Al”
Training Seminar

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu), an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group, presented a seminar on “Work
Experience and Individual Creativity in the Age of Al”, which was
attended by 150 employees from Hong Kong and Mainland China
both online and offline. Professor HUANG shared how can we
enhance individual creativity and flexibly utilise new technologies in
the current era of Al, making Al a helpful assistant and allowing us to
have more time to focus on doing our work well.

AR TRIEREEAAIE
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£ B %8 37 3F #1177 & = Alison Elizabeth
LLOYDB A FE THMESE LI T ENEZE
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The "How to Transform Data into Decision Insights through Analysis”
Training Seminar

Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD, an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Group shared her expertise in data analysis, to inspire
employees on how valuable the data is in today’s world. The seminar
was attended by over 200 colleagues from Hong Kong, Taiwan, and
Mainland China, online or offline.

GIORDANO



@ Bi#mH% Taiwan Market
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“"The Way Forward” Training
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ESG Green Lecture

Mr. LIN brought a sharing lecture on low-carbon diet and green
living, reminding employees to pay attention to energy conservation,
emission reduction, and dietary health, while also bringing some
money saving tips.
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@ RE X% Mainland China Market
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West China Region

Product knowledge training (Live-streaming)

Lecturers from the West China region explain the features of the
latest products through online live streaming. This training not only
saves resources, but also increases colleagues’ knowledge reserves
in product aspects, and improves overall business level.

GIORDANO
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(i)

(iii)

Internal Training

Other internal training programs are designed to help staff
develop their capabilities, advance their careers and enhance their
management and interpersonal skills.

Survey on Training Needs

Each year, we conduct a survey to understand our staff’s expectations
and needs for training, which aids in designing the useful and
practical training programs for them in the following year.

Training Subsidies

a.

Study Allowance Scheme

To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge and skills
for personal growth, which benefits their work performance and
future career development, Hong Kong Headquarters has set
up a "Study Allowance Scheme” to subsidise our staff in taking
external work-related training courses.

Management Academic Assistance Scheme

The “Management Academic Assistance Scheme” has been
implemented since September 2016, which is designed to
develop existing and potential management talent at Hong
Kong Headquarters through financial support to successful
applicants who wish to pursue higher education, such
as studying undergraduate, or postgraduate degrees or
attainment of professional qualifications or accreditation.
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GIORDANO

Safeguarding the rights of employees and creating an environment of
respect, integrity and fairness for employees is of paramount importance
to the Group. Giordano prohibits the employment of child, forced
or compulsory labour in any of its operations, including at suppliers’
production facilities.

The Internal Audit, Quality Assurance and Human Resources departments
implement a comprehensive checking systems during the recruitment
process to ensure compliance with all the applicable laws and regulations
regarding employment and labour standards. If child or forced labour
is found in any place of production, the Group will warn the particular
supplier. If repeated violations occur, the Group will terminate all business
with the supplier concerned.

In 2024, we did not identify any operation or suppliers having significant
risks of child labour, workers exposed to hazardous works, or forced or
compulsory labour.
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Caring for our Suppliers
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Social Aspect B5: Efficient Supply Chain Management

ERNRAHEREERNMEERRTEZERKA At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise

B EETESNHENEERE AOMRFAMR of satisfying customers' needs, and better coordination among the
fE B A MEERBE - 248 FEEAR various functions of our business, such as the supplies, manufacturing,

BB S RRE - BAIBAEEERAE - AR warehousing and distribution through better planning and information

A e

sharing. With more effective integration of resources, we thus reduce
costs and maximise efficiency.

HZE2024F12A31H - EFREE162KHE As of December 31, 2024, Giordano had a total of 162 suppliers, located in

B DA REM

different parts of the world:

2020 | 105 (83.3%)
2021 | 108 (87.1%)

(BIEEEE)

CHINA
(including Hong Kong) 2023 I 113 (9040%)

2024 | 150 (92.59%)

2020
HEgss 2021
SOUTHEAST 2022
ASIA 2023
2024
2020
& 2021
EUROPE %
2023
2024
2020
tHREM R O
REST of the 2022
WORLD 2023
2024

2022 | 131 (90.34% EEVREXD)

9 (7.1%) 11 6.79%)
12 (9.7%)
9 (6.21%)
9 (7.20%) HERMES S
Suppliers by Suppliers
1 (6.7%) by Geographical Region
7 (5.6%)
: 2024
2 (1.3%)
1 (0.80%) 150 ©259%)
1 (0.62%)
5 (4.0%) W +E(REES) B
4 (3.2%) CHINA (including Hong Kong) EUROPE
3 (2.07%) B s SR
2 (1.06%) SOUTHEAST ASIA REST of the WORLD
0
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GIORDANO

We have established a complete supplier quality assurance mechanism,
which covers the approval and evaluation of suppliers, quality inspection
and supervision, strategic supplier development and materials
procurement. Furthermore, we actively promote the sustainable
development of our supply chain and the joint fulfilment of corporate
social responsibility with our partners to provide the public with
highquality products and services. As such, supply chain management is
always one of the key links in Giordano's quality control system.

(1) Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano’s success, we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our
quality, performance and not least labour standards. In particular,
we expect them to comply with the below “Core Ethical Sourcing
Requirements”:

only employs workers that are above the local legal minimum
age;

does not use forced or prison labour in any part or aspects of its
facilities;

does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;
does not contravene local environmental laws and regulations;

provides a safe and healthy work environment for its workers;
and

compliant with our various standards and committed to
following up on corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing similar values and
principles, and intend to purchase from those who meet our above "Core
Ethical Sourcing Requirements” and have improving their standards on
labour, health and safety, and environmental demonstrated a commitment
to practices. Thus, prior to engagement, new suppliers are required to
complete and pass our “Ethical Audit Questionnaire”.

(2) Quality Assurance Mechanism

(i)

Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection
of suppliers. Apart from eligibility checking, suppliers are also
subject to assessment and on-site audits on product quality as
well as suitability and quality consistency tests conducted by our
Quality Assurance Team. Only those who pass our audits and
assessments will be included in the "Qualified Supplier List” for
bulk purchases. Also, to ensure our product quality, we carry
out long-term quality monitoring and regular audits/reviews
on all suppliers. Should there be any significant change in a
supplier’s eligibility or any serious quality issue, we may suspend
its deliveries immediately and, if necessary, cancel its status as
our qualified supplier. Moreover, our unannounced inspections
from time-to-time will ensure our suppliers comply with our
various standards.
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(i) In order to mitigate environmental and social risks within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development of
our suppliers, a "Quality Manual” which covers below guiding
documents is also distributed to our key suppliers:

° “Suppliers Code of Conduct”;
° “Workplace Standards”;

° “Product Safety and Regulated Substances Specification”;
and

° “Accepting and Offering Policy”.
Enhancing Competitiveness by Technological Innovation

Giordano will carefully examine every detail of the production
process and raise any issues that may be discovered, to work with
its suppliers to identify possible areas for further improvement. By
optimizing the process, upgrading the technology and improving
the workmanship, our suppliers not only greatly improve their
production efficiency and product quality, but also help upgrade
their capabilities in response to more challenging markets and
enhance their competitiveness. This close-knit working relationship
between both sides allows the parties to maintain more stable and
mutually beneficial cooperation.

Inventory Control

(i) Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising efficiency
and remains a core competence of Giordano. The inventory
turnover days as of December 31, 2024 were 110 days, basically
flat compared to 2023. Most of the merchandise is evergreen
and in-season styles. Our inventory level remains healthy.

(i) In addition to our own consolidated inventory, Giordano
responsibly monitors inventory held at our suppliers and the
franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not build
up off-balance-sheet inventory that would jeopardize our
merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in future.
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Social Aspect B6: Service and Product Liability
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GIORDANO

At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers with the
most enlightening shopping experience. Giordano's straight-forward
mission, “To Make People 'FEEL GOOD' and 'LOOK GREAT'”, fully
illustrates our total commitment to superior service and outstanding

quality.

(M

"Giordano Means Service” Campaign

Giordano's commitment to superior service stems from the
“"Giordano Means Service” campaign which was first launched in
1989, at which time every staff wore a yellow badge bearing the
words “Giordano Means Service”. Since then, quality service has
become one of the tenets of Giordano.

To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer service, we
conduct performance evaluations frequently at the store level, as
well as for frontline staff by mystery shoppers. Our efforts to provide
excellent customer service have been recognised by a long list of
service-related awards we have received over the years.

"Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective that
Giordano has upheld for many years, which we achieve through
“thinking one step ahead for customers’ needs” and “providing
tailor-made services”. Our frontline staff provide professional advice
and flexible and rapid response to customers, helping them choose
the right products in need. Meanwhile, to satisfy our customers, we
also allow them to return and exchange products after purchases.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not recall any products for
safety and health reasons. It did, however, receive 107 product and
service-related complaints in the reporting markets. All complaints
have been resolved by product exchange or communication. The
Group continues to provide training to new employees, senior sales
and supervisors, enabling them to better understand customer needs
and excel in their performance to meet customer’s expectations.
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Awards and Recognition

Giordano Named Company with Most Admired Customer
Service by IMAGES RetailME

Giordano was conferred the Most Admired Customer Service
award at the prestigious IMAGES RetailME Awards KSA 2023,
held in conjunction with the Saudi Retail Forum. The award lays
testament to Giordano's unwavering dedication to providing
quality clothing and exceptional customer service experience
in the region. In the fiercely competitive retail landscape in
the Middle East and North Africa, the brand’s commitment to
customer satisfaction has established a noteworthy standard
among industry peers.

Giordano GCC Receives MENA Retailer of the Year
Commendation Award bestowed by Retail & Leisure
International (RLI).

The RLI Annual Global Retailer Award fully recognizes
Giordano's outstanding performance in all aspects of its retail
business. This is a high degree of recognition for Giordano's
unremitting efforts over the years to create a unique shopping
experience, provide high-quality products, and actively adapt to
the evolution of industry trends, thus consolidating its status as
a world-class operator.

Giordano GCC won the Best Middle East and North Africa
(MENA) Retail Brand Gold Award, awarded by the Middle East
Council of Shopping Centres & Retailers (MECS+R).

The 2022 MENA awards identify and honour the shopping
centres, retailers and individuals that have demonstrated an
unparalleled ability to succeed, continually set standards of
excellence, and implement innovation and creativity throughout
the industry. In 2024, Giordano also awarded by RLI the MENA
Retailer of the Year Commendation Award 2024.

Giordano won 2019 Outstanding QTS Merchant & Service Staff
Awards

Hosted by Hong Kong Tourism Board to award the retailers for
their outstanding services, Giordano won a silver award in 2019.
In addition, Giordano has continuously been recognized as a
Quality Merchant by the Hong Kong Tourism Board for 17 years.

Giordano Website won Top 10 eCommerce Website Award

The Retail Asia Expo has awarded Giordano's eCommerce
website as one of the “"Top 10 eCommerce websites” for
2018. This “"Top 10 eCommerce Website Award”, which
recognised and awards websites that have raised the bar for
user experience and achieved outstanding operation growth,
has acknowledged Giordano's eCommerce website for
fostering and delivering continuous and exemplary e-commerce
standards as well as enhancing user experience with an
outstanding shopping platform.

Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018 Parents’ Favorite
Family Brand”

Giordano Junior was awarded “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family
Brand” under the "Children Clothing” category in 2018. This
Award was presented by Baby Kingdom, a popular online
parent-child platform in Hong Kong. Further to the assessment
by the members of Baby Kingdom and a panel of professional
judges, Giordano Junior stood out from the other 3 finalists,
being in recognition of its creative designs and high-quality
products.
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2)

Safety and Health

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

In addition to professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a
safe and healthy environment for our staff and customers, and
(b) Eliminating preventable accidents and health hazards in our
business locations.

As mentioned earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii), we have a Quality
Manual setting forth our standards and specification regarding
product quality and safety for our suppliers’ compliance.

We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations on product safety, and regularly update them on
the hazardous substance and inhumane production processes
banned by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting” process and
the "live-plucking” goose down process.

The Group requires all suppliers and manufacturers of its
products and packaging to comply with the Group's policy.
The Group keeps its sourcing protocols reviewed regularly
and up-to-date in order to maintain the high quality and safety
standards of its products and customer satisfaction. The Group
cooperates only with suppliers which can provide products of
high quality and checks if flaws are found to ensure the product
quality.

We also engage independent and accredited third-party
laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with international safety standards.

"We care because you care”. Much effort has been spent on
product safety, which is one of our core values. For instance, we
make sure that all drawstrings in our Giordano Junior clothing
are fixed to the waistband to avoid pulling out by children
accidentally. We also will not use metal zippers, which are
however commonly used by our counterparts.

Giordano keeps up with the needs of customers of all ages
and backgrounds and puts product quality and safety first. Our
teams in product development, quality assurance, sourcing,
frontline sales and customer service go the extra mile to ensure
the quality and safety of each and every product we carry. Over
the past year, there are no incidents of product recall or non-
compliance due to safety or health issues.
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(©)

Protecting intellectual property rights
(i)  "IP Manager Training Program”

Nowadays, intellectual property (“IP”) is recognised as a key
element in business development and, here at Giordano,
protecting IP rights is one of our top priorities. To enhance
awareness of IP protection within Giordano and to proactively
protect our IP from infringement, two of our subsidiaries
participated in the IP Manager Scheme organized by the
Intellectual Property Department of Hong Kong in 2017. After
completion of its “IP Manager Training Program” by our staff,
we were awarded a Certificate of Commendation.

(i) The Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (the “PDPQO") Seminar

The Legal Manager of our global Legal and Company
Secretarial Department based in Hong Kong held two rounds
of Data Privacy Regulation in Asia seminar in English and
Cantonese via online lecture in June 2021, striving to train our
staff in various markets can understand the basic concepts of
the Ordinance, practical industry information and protection of
personal and customer privacy. All office and shop colleagues
must participate and complete a quiz.

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

Customer privacy has become a hot topic that we cannot overlook.
In compliance with the local laws and the European Union’s General
Data Protection Regulations (effective from May 25, 2018, “GDPR"),
we have updated our Group-wide “Privacy Policy and Personal
Information Collection Statement” and "Privacy Notice” (both in
English and Chinese, as uploaded onto our official websites and/
or e-shops, where appropriate) for the public and customers’
reference. We invited an independent third-party global law firm to
audit our practices and confirmed our compliance with the GDPR.
Furthermore, staff are kept reminded to fully observe the policy from
time to time.
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Social Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
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We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and corruption,
and our Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct (as uploaded onto
the Company’s Intranet) clearly inform our staff of Giordano’s
strict standards regarding anti-corruption, anti-bribery, conflicts of
interest, gift, procurement and whistle-blowing policies, as well as
our policies on dealings and investment in Giordano's shares.

To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements imposed and
uphold high ethical standards, all staff are required to complete and
submit a “Declaration of Interests” at least once a year. If there are
any cases of conflict of interest, the relevant staff are required to
update their declaration immediately.

We also proactively promote business integrity and ethics among our
staff by organizing seminars on anti-corruption regularly. These types
of seminars are compulsory to be attended at least once by each
Hong Kong Headquarters staff.

A series of training, including orientation training and refresher
training, are conducted regularly within the Group to support
adherence to various policies and practices including those related
to anti-corruption.

Our whistleblowing channels empower our employees to play an
active role in protecting our business. They can seek guidance and
report misconduct anonymously to their department heads or the
Audit Committee. All reports are handled with care and fairness to
ensure that whistleblowers are protected against unfair dismissal,
victimisation and unwarranted disciplinary actions.

Furthermore, our contracts with suppliers require their full
compliance with our Quality Manual, including “Advantage
Solicitation and Acceptance” as quoted in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)
(ii). In addition, we regularly issue reminders to all relevant staff,
business associates and suppliers reminding them of our Group
Policy on Accepting and Offering Advantages (i.e. twice a year,
before the Mid-Autumn Festival and Chinese Lunar New Year). We
are not aware of any incidents of noncompliance in relation to anti-
corruption in 2024.
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Social Aspect B8: Community Involvement
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Contributing to our communities is a very important part of Giordano's
ethos. Acting on our belief in a "World Without Strangers’, Giordano
actively supports various charitable organisations and causes, especially
those associated with education, children and the underprivileged.
Giordano has engaged in a number of ongoing educational projects:

(1) In 2018, Giordano Malaysia launched the "We Love Orangutans” and
“Amazing Ocean” campaigns revolving around wildlife conservation.

(2) In 2019, Giordano Taiwan had several community activities, including
second-hand clothing donations and beach cleaning activities.

(3) In 2020, Giordano Thailand Volunteer Team participated in Prasingh
Temple Grounds Cleaning Day.

(4) In 2021, a volunteer team from Giordano Singapore participated in a
community event organized by the non-profit organisation TOUCH
Community Services. Volunteers from Giordano guided the elderly
on how to use smartphones and delivered boxed meals to those
in need. Giordano Indonesia and the professional philanthropic
organisation Aksi Cepat Tanggap (ACT) established the "Giordano
Berbagi Programme" to raise funds for flood victims in Bekasi and
Karawang areas of Indonesia. Giordano South China established
an official partnership with Star Studios and Mobile Library to
hold charity T-shirt auction and book donation event. In addition,
Giordano North China Command Centre established a partnership
with the Peking University's outdoor sports team and track racing
team to supply them with official G-motion team uniforms and
competition attire.

GIORDANO

a5 L1043y OS3 veoe

F 8 3 ) 3t 0

5Q
A



14043y ©53 v2oe

< ol

oK M % I8 B

s34

I DfF

ESG

£2022F - EBERREBEF EERE

NERBEEFARELBENES - BEXYE
BREMBEITRERE  BEIER
B mERMN=EROERKE - £~
WEEEKPMGLRERESHTEEMAE "
BRARBETHEEERNRE  REELEE
HONEE RBEKMPGAREIRE - A EFT
HENERRE  ERMABBRZH/NE
H 60617 2 E L EKPMG 2 B2 F{Z 8932

T A —SEHE —(FREIEXK—E
EEIEREREY - ERAEBESRER
(B)MIRITEIE - EITRELIBB) R IMNEEIB BN
EE)  EFBIEEXIEE - ERIESSKE
SETHERMB I SRPNES SRR
BIZESM R ERBEEE -

T 2023%F - £ AT BEIE IR BWWS R =
BREEE  BIR29BTARK - k4N B
TEUNETIHH2NT Bt B SRR
o EARBFEBRLEDHE - EHLHR
REFEETXMBE - £ REBETRE
EREHEETITRS  WENTAIK®
HEREHEBED -EBBEEZEDIYHS
(SPCAEBE) [Chill [EVBEBEEEIEMR
EEREFEEYD - ENEEENT —
#HTMERS M FETMER 2B - Bk
AANXHHREZNBRLEERX o &
FRPOREMEANEREEEHASHA
S EEEF - RBHLHERHRDED -
WARBEBEMERARERERLERY - &
PR S R B fEFree Tree Societyi
Zi#EMTaman Tugu Jungle Nursery#& &
T ° Free Tree Societys® —fEIR{RA4L - &
5 B BRI R R L IR R R IR & 18
S - IR D ZRERMBFITE - BB
REEARFEENEE - E12RTA - &
RRERATCETEETEKNERER
SFNRIE AL ST 3R = T 184 o 4 A+ B
REEELMZhRe 7T FRME T RE
KAR -

GIORDANO

In 2022, the Shanghai Giordano team joined hands with Shanghai
Zhang Zhiyong Public Welfare Service Association to carry out
a charity donation activity. The donated clothes were sorted,
packaged, and boxed by Giordano colleagues, and then donated
to impoverished families in Yunnan, Xinjiang, and Xishuangbanna
prefecture. Giordano Taiwan cooperated with KPMG. Through the
assistance of the Company’s e-commerce team, total of 606 school
children received a pair of sports shoes, a warm jacket or a backpack
as Christmas gifts to school children. Giordano Taiwan cooperated
with Taitung Food Bank to carry out both internal donations and
external donations, including donation of used clothing. Giordano
Mauritius participated in Charity Golf Trophy organized by Order of
Malta (Mauritius) first aid and volunteer service.

In 2023, Giordano China regularly held WWS charity sales events,
raised RMB29,000. In addition, employees also participated as
volunteers in local community marathon races. Giordano Hong Kong
launched the regular based program to arrange clothing donations
to the Salvation Army. Giordano Hong Kong conducted internal
fundraising campaign and for staff gathering, and held internal
sample sales charity fundraising events. In the “ Chill Waterfront
Walk"pet-friendly Christmas carnival organized by the Society for the
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (SPCA) of Hong Kong, Giordano
specially sponsored a batch of T-shirts for customised hand-painted
T-shirts for fundraising, and all proceeds from the booth will be used
to support the medical and daily expenses of the homeless animals.
The Giordano World Without Strangers Charitable Fund establishes
Comprehensive Cooperation with the Manna Grace Charitable
Organization to provide food aid to vulnerable groups and offer
free clothing to families in need and low-income families. Giordano
Malaysia team volunteered at the Taman Tugu Jungle Nursery in
Kuala Lumpur, which operates under the Free Tree Society. The
Free Tree Society is an environmental organisation that spreads the
environmental stewardship message by giving away trees for free to
green our Earth. They also share knowledge and skills to empower
people to live more sustainably. In late December, the volunteers
from Giordano Malaysia’s CSR team delivered gifts to 3 different
orphanages. The children staying at these orphanages were provided
with new, donated clothing gathered by the Giordano team.
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WWS Charitable Fund

The Giordano World Without Strangers Charitable Fund (the "WWS
Charitable Fund” or the “Fund”) has established for several years,
with the Fund'’s background information, mission, donation details
and monthly statements are available on the Company’s corporate
website at https://corp.giordano.com.hk/. The WWS Charitable Fund
allocates funds raised to make a difference for people in need. Past
projects have ranged from primary education initiatives involving
the printing and distribution of educational materials and stationery,
distributing warm clothes, helping remote villages in rural China to
achieve sustainable development, supporting local ethnic minority
students, meal tickets for the underprivileged, supporting orphans
and children with disabilities, all the way through to rapid response to
individuals who have found themselves in emergency financial crisis
for which other sources of help may not be available.

Global Sports Programs

Giordano has traditionally chosen to work with sports organisations
in the markets it operates it, or aims to be in, engaging with local
communities and working together to make an actual difference.

Giordano’s sponsorship of apparel represents a win-win situation
for all stakeholders involved: the Group can showcase its brand and
quality apparel to customers or future customers in those markets
through an authentic and practical medium, while allowing the
sporting bodies to free up resources to invest in coaching, player
welfare and development initiatives.

Giordano has worked with Rugby, Football, Hiking and Trail running
teams from all over the world, including China, Japan, Uganda,
Egypt, Tunisia and Kazakhstan, from grassroots level all the way
through to elite national teams, in children’s, women’s and men’s
sports.

Giordano is currently the title apparel sponsor for the Kazakhstan
men’s and women's national Rugby teams, the Egypt men’s and
women's national Rugby teams, as well as the Malta Rugby League
men’s and women's national Rugby teams.
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In 2024, Giordano held the following activities in different markets:
()  Giordano Hong Kong

Giordano Ladies collaborates with non-profit social service
organisation "Wai Ji Hong Yip” to produce handmade cup
covers. Customers who purchased any product of HKD$2,000/
MOP$2,000 or more can receive it as a gift. We hope to
contribute to environmental protection through these gifts,
while also support different kind of people in the society,
colouring the life with love and art.

glcrdano/radv‘u b4 %'.‘.EE..*

¢ Thene &s nalbliing mane bonly antivtic

W&MW‘

Vincent Van Gogh

Get our imited edtion eco-friendly
cup holder upen any single net
purchase of HKS2,000

(iii) Giordano Taiwan

Giordano Taiwan held the Baisha Bay beach cleaning activity
which aim to protect the environment and enhancing team
cohesion. During the event, a total amount of 81kg of garbage
was collected and wad properly disposed/recycled.

GIORDANO
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
17/F., Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.
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SHINEWING Sustainability Advisory Services Limited (“SHINEWING
Sustainability”) has been engaged by Giordano International Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 709) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Giordano”) to undertake an independent verification on Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2024 ("ESG Report”). The ESG Report
set out the environmental and social performance of the Giordano from
1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024. The scope of the verification
statement is limited to the data and information in the ESG Report. The
Giordano selected several specified performance information in the ESG
Report for the verification purpose, which included the Scope 1, Scope
2, and Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions data’, electricity consumption
data? and water consumption data® (collectively referred to as “Specified
Performance Information”).

Reporting Criteria

The Specified Performance Information are presented in accordance with
the criteria set out under “Reporting Standard, Principles and Scope”
in the ESG Report (“Reporting Criteria”). Such Reporting Criteria are
specifically designed for the purpose of the preparation of the Specified
Performance Information included in the ESG Report and, as a result,
those Specified Performance Information may not be suitable for another
purpose.

Responsibilities of Giordano

Giordano is responsible for the data collection, calculation, making
estimates and preparation of the ESG Report. Giordano is also
responsible for implementing sound internal control procedures to ensure
the content and presentation of the ESG Report are free from material
errors.

Responsibilities of SHINEWING Sustainability

SHINEWING Sustainability is responsible to provide an independent
verification statement to stakeholders based on the scope and
methodology described. We do not assume responsibility or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Footnote:

! Refer to ESG Report Green Performance: Data of Greenhouse Gas Emission

2 Refer to ESG Report Green Performance: Data of Electricity Consumption

3 Refer to ESG Report Green Performance: Data of Water Consumption
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Independence and Quality Control

SHINEWING Sustainability have maintained our independence with
reference to the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We have also taken
reference to Hong Kong Standard on Quality Management 1 (HKSQM 1),
Quality Management for Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial
Statements, or Other Assurance or Related Services Engagements,
and maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including
documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical
requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
requirements. We have the required competencies and experienced to
conduct this engagement.

Inherent Limitation

The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw
to evaluate and measure non-financial information allows for different,
but acceptable, measures and measurement techniques and can affect
comparability between entities. Further, greenhouse gas quantification
is subject to inherent uncertainty because of incomplete scientific
knowledge used to determine emissions factors and the values needed to
combine emissions of different gases.

Reporting Framework and Procedures Performed

We conducted our verification under limited assurance engagement
with reference to International Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information (“ISAE 3000 (Revised)”) issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. The standard
requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain limited
assurance about whether the Specified Performance Information is free
from material misstatement.

A limited assurance engagement undertaken with reference to ISAE 3000
(Revised) involves assessing the suitability in the circumstances of the
Giordano’s use of applicable criteria as the basis for the preparation of
the Specified Performance Information, assessing the risks of material
misstatement of the Specified Performance Information whether due
to fraud or error, responding to the assessed risks as necessary in the
circumstances, and evaluating the overall presentation of the Specified
Performance Information. A limited assurance engagement is substantially
less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement in relation to both
the risk assessment procedures, including an understanding of internal
control, and the procedures performed in response to the assessed risks.
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Within the scope of our work, SHINEWING Sustainability performed
amongst others the following procedures:

Interview the managers responsible for sustainability performance
and data collection;

Review the preparation process of the Specified Performance
Information, including stakeholders engagement and materiality
assessment;

Verify the samples of the representative data and information
selected, including review on conversion data and calculation as well
as inspect the original data and supporting evidence of the data
selected during the verification process;

Perform analytical procedures over the Specified Performance
Information; and

Compare the definition as included in the Reporting Criteria against
the definitions used by the Giordano to prepare the Specified
Performance Information.

Conclusion

Based on the procedures that SHINEWING Sustainability has performed
and the evidence we have obtained, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the Specified Performance Information is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Reporting Criteria of
the ESG Report.

SHINEWING Sustainability
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Aspects, General Description 2024 ESG Report

Disclosure and KPls

A1 Bl

A1 Emissions

—MRHE ERBERIMAREREHR kR THMES BEREEBEEVNEESH - Al
General Disclosure (a) BE &

(b) BFHBITABERTZENBREERADNER -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

A1 PRI R ARRE R B A2
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
A1.2 HER(EE) REREZ(BE)REREBHNEREE A2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.

A13 FELREEENEEREE - A2 fli5E3
Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. Note 3
A4 FELEZEENEEREE - A2

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
A1.5 L FTET S M HER 2 B AR R A ED)E L B R FTEIR A 558 o A2
Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
Al.6 HERAERESEEVMNE - RERFT AR BERAEDE L BZMEEAI LR o A2

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of

reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A2 FiR{EH

A2 Use of Resources

—RIRE BRERER(BIEEIR - KREMRMEL) BB o A2
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
A2.1 REREI DM EE R IMEEREREREE - A2
N Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
N
s A2.2 BRKBREE - A2
w
g Water consumption in total and intensity.
m
o o . s v -
Q A2.3 R PTRT S B REIR(E FA e B IR R R S L B AR FT RN 288 o A2
=z
N Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

it 35
>
NG
~

SR EUE A KR S AT BRI RE - LA PRETSZA K as B IR KR E TS & B IR ERER A 28R - A2 [ifFE6

WP -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency | Note 6
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

ﬁ A2.5 HRBTABEMBNEERSEERRMAE - A2

/’D& Total packaging material used for finished products and per unit produced.

s
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPls

A3 BIRR XAKEIR

it

Description

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

€2024FRIK it E
RERRE)
2024 ESG Report

— M ER REBEITAHIRRERRABREKRERZENER A3

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural resources.

A3.1 MR EBEBDEIREMRAERNEAVERCRNEEEMZENTH - A3
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them.

A4 RIREIL

A4 Climate Change

— MR ER BRI REHEDERTREEHETAEEZENEARBRIEEETENECE - A4

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

A4 HMBERAREHBETAEEYENEARGHEBEE - REHITH - A4(2)
Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

B1 &

B1 Employment

— MR ER BRFHERE  BEREA  TERE - R TSRS - 20l - RIEBRUREMSFEREF B1

General Disclosure f
(a) B &

(b) BFHBITABERVENBREERADNER -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

B1.1 IR - EEEE - FiERIRREDNESLBE - B1
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

B1.2 IR - FEARIRICE B D MEBRALE o B1

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPls

B2 BRRHZRZ
B2 Health and Safety

it

Description
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2024 ESG Report

—RIE FRRHZETEREMREREE B CBEEREN B2
General Disclosure (a) B &
(b) ETHBETABEAZENRBEEENRPINER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
B2.1 BEZF(BEERFE)SFRITHMABRILLE - B2(1)
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.
B2.2 HTHBERTIERE ° B2(1)
Lost days due to work injury.
B2.3 BRATSR A B TR 21856 - IR AEBALT B - B202)
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
B3 R Rl
B3 Development and Training
—RIE BRIRITESETT TIERE M A B R BUR « HEFINES o B3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
B3.1 BRI EEENESNZIEEBDLL B3
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
B3.2 BRI RERERIES - SERRERENO TR - B3
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.
B4 H T #AI
B4 Labour Standards
—RIE BEM FE TSRS TH B4
General Disclosure (a) B K
o (b)  EBTHETAGERFZENMEMEERADINEL -
§ Information on:
g (a) the policies; and
ﬁ (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
% relating to preventing child and forced labour.
R B4.1 i REE G MERAR S ETREHIHT - B4
T
iw' Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour.
Za e e e N
B4.2 R EBER BN ERERB R R SR - B4
{% Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
=
R
&
£
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Disclosure and KPls

B5 HtESEE

it

Description

BS5 Supply Chain Management
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2024 ESG Report

— R ERH RO RE M ERRBK o B5

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

B5.1 ZiEE D HERHE - B5
Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B5.2 HMEREREAHERNIED - MENTERENNHEREE - URBBEATRERTE - B5(1)&(2)
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.3 B REBA RS ERGNIRR A ERBNER - A RBREAITRERE B5(2)
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply chain,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 A BROE R B (R (2 2 IR IREE @ RIS 9B 6 - A RABRIIT RESE 7% - B5(1)&(2)
Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B6 AR

B6 Product Responsibility

— R ERMRHERNRBHEEREZS B  RERLEBFEARBRITESD B6

General Disclosure (a) BE R
(b) BFHETABEATENERER IR ER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

B6.1 DENCEXRERBBTAL 2 LRFPHMACKOETDL B6(2)
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

B6.2 RERRE @ RIS EVIRAFE B PA R S 7% © B6(1)
Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are dealt with.

B6.3 T3 B 4 5 R ARPE AN EE R ARV B 01 - B&(3)
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.4 L BT AR REMBUTRR - B6(2)
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

B6.5 R B EERRE RALBEER - ARBBEMTRERFE - B6(4)

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented

and monitored.
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Description

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPls

B7 R®i5
B7 Anti-corruption

Resources contributed to the focus area.

—RIE BRAM LLRRRR - IR - EFEROE B - B7
General Disclosure (a) B &
(b) ETHBETABEAZENRBEEENRPINER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

B7.1 RERPANETASEEEREIERENETHFARMTOHE RFDER - B7(6)
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

B7.2 Tt By &S e R B MR - LA RABBRIT R Bk - B7(5)
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B7.3 Mt mEE R B TRENRESE - B7(4)
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

B8 MERE

B8 Community Investment

— R BN RLSERTREENELRFEMRREEXEZDHSEBHLENEHBE B8

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the
issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

B8.1 HERRIEE - B8
Focus areas of contribution.

B8.2 HEETHBERMBHMER - B8
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